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COMPANY PROFILE
AT N

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (Stock
code: 2211) (the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) and its subsidiaries aims at huge market opportunities
in the universal health industry, strives to be international brand
operator of universal health and become a leading practitioner of
the strategy of “Internet + Universal Health” as well as a pioneer
of the development of ecology in the industry chain by way of
finance and capital.

The Company is one of the leading pharmaceutical retailer and
distributor in the Northeast of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC" or “China"”). The Group has distinguished pharmaceutical
retail chain network in the Northeast China and it is also the largest
privately operated pharmaceutical distributor in the Northeast
China. As of the date of this annual report, the Group operated
251 retail pharmacies, mainly located in the Northeast China, and
had approximately 1,656 active distributors and 2,555 full-time
staff. In addition, the Group has set up five large-scale logistics
storage centers in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin
and Jiamusi, and has established a high-quality distribution system
across the country and covering the northeastern region of the
PRC.

As a basic business segment, the Group’s main product categories
for pharmaceutical retail and distribution (including import and
export trade) include prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs
(Chinese patent medicines, chemical preparations, antibiotics
and biochemical drugs), traditional Chinese medicine decoction
pieces, biological products, protein assimilation preparations,
peptide hormones, blood products, disinfection products, medical
equipment, family planning supplies (contraceptives and utensils),
prepackaged foods, dairy products (including infant formula milk
powder), nutritional foods, health care products, stereotyped
packaging cosmetics, daily necessities, etc.
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The Group will continue leveraging on the core advantages
of branded products, expanding the scope of cooperation on
branded products, leveraging on business institute training, and
providing more value-added service to employees, customers
and consumers. The Group also enriches the product mix by
introducing more health care products based on the expertise in
pharmaceutical retail and distribution, so as to promote the concept
of the universal health industry. Meanwhile, the Group actively
explores upstream ecological chain, covering the construction for
Chinese herbal medicines base and the production of botanical
capsule.

The Group actively explores online pharmacies, cross-border
e-commerce, influencer marketing and other “Internet+" areas,
and advocates the concept of “Specialization+" and introduces
the development concept of “Platform+". Furthermore, the Group
maintains upstream and downstream ecosystem leveraging on
industry advantage to cope with the situation of “New Norm” in
real economy, and takes the lead in upgrading and digitalized
transformation of the industry.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

REEF

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chairman,

Chief Executive Officer and Chief operation officer)

(Appointed as chairman on 12 December 2022)

Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman)
Mr. Zhao Zehua
Mr. Jin Dongtao

(Resigned as chairman and executive director on

12 December 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Zou Haiyan (Chairman)
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (Chairman)
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Jin Dongkun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chairman)
(Appointed as chairman on 12 December 2022)
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Ceased to be the chairman on
12 December 2022)
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Ge Junming

(Ceased on 28 September 2023)
Mr. Zhao Zehua
Ms. Hui Kit Ying

(Appointed on 28 September 2023)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming

(Resigned on 28 September 2023)
Ms. Hui Kit Ying

(Appointed on 28 September 2023)
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PO Box 309
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Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
Cayman Islands
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Bei Yi Zhong Road

Tiexi District

Shenyang City

Liaoning Province, the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 2404, 24th Floor
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19 Des Voeux Road Central

Central

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited

PO Box 1093, Boundary Hall

Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

AUDITOR
Mazars CPA Limited

STOCK CODE

The Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited: 2211
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

i

For the year ended 30 June
BZAA=THLEE

Unit 2023 2022 Change
By Z—B-=f —T-—F &)
Revenue Wz RMB million 1,297.0 1,273.6 +1.8%
AREBET
Gross profit EME RMB million 213.8 204.2 +4.7%
AREBET
Operating loss REER RMB million (98.4) (188.7) +90.3 RMB million
AREBET ARBBET
Loss for the year FEEE RMB million (106.1) (188.0) +81.9 RMB million
AEEEET ARBEET
Adjusted EBITDA" TR BT E A RMB million (71.8) (140.7) +68.9 RMB million
FE AREBET ARBEET
Basic loss per share? BREREED RMB cents (18.07) (42.66) +24.59 RMB million
AEE S AEES
Gross margin EFE % 16.5 16.0 +0.5 pp HE 2
Operating loss margin KEEEE % (7.6) (14.8) +7.2pp HESE
Net loss margin FEEEX % (8.2) (14.8) +6.6 pp HEDE
As at 30 June
RARA=tH
Unit 2023 2022 Change
Efy Z—BZ=f _—F__f &
Current ratio® BN LL O times 15 0.9 1.1 0.2
Trade receivables turnover®  FEUSER AR E Days X 25.0 26.3 -1.3
Inventory turnover® FERERED Days X 59.8 79.3 -195
Trade payables turnover® FERTBRFAE R B Days X 104.5 99.6 +4.9
Return on equity"” i NEEEd % (33.5) (46.0) +12.5 pp EESE
Return on total assets® BEREDREKO % (14.4) (22.4) +8.0 pp EEHE

6 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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Notes:

Adjusted EBITDA is calculated by adjusted loss before interests, tax, depreciation and
amortisation, excluding the effect of share of post-tax results of an associate, impairment
loss or, if applicable, its reversal on intangible assets, property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and investment in an associate.

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company
by weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue (the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2023 was 583,115,272,
versus 439,825,795 for the year ended 30 June 2022).

Current ratio is calculated by dividing current assets by current liabilities.

Trade receivables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and
ending balances on trade receivables for the year, divided by revenue for the year,
multiplied by the number of days for the year.

Inventory turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on inventory for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied by
the number of days for the year.

Trade payables turnover days are calculated by using the average of beginning and ending
balances on trade payables for the year, divided by cost of sales for the year, multiplied
by the number of days for the year.

Return on equity is calculated by dividing loss attributable to owners of the Company by
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

Return on total assets is calculated by dividing loss for the year by total assets.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

CONCENTRATE ON UNIVERSAL HEA
SEEKEE

UPGRADE TO NEW CHANNEL
ABFEE 4

Dear Shareholders,

[, on behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the
Company, am glad to express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders
of the Company (the “Shareholder(s)”) and all who give strong support,
understanding and encouragement to the Company. | would like to take
this opportunity to present the annual report of the Group for the year
ended 30 June 2023 (the “Year").

EHWEMRR :
AANERERARAARER((EE)2((ESE DARRHABTMUAR AR K

RDAHEZRALHARBBBES - EAT RO - EEEGE - 75
EPREAEEEE T =—FRA=TRHIEFE([XFEHRSE o
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

MACRO ENVIRONMENT

During the Year, the economy faced greater pressure of slow
down as certain emergent factors were out of the expectation as
a result of the complicated and evolving environment of the world
and the frequent COVID-19 epidemic (the "Epidemic”) in China.
The pharmaceutical industry is an important part of the national
economy for China, closely related to the people’s health, and is
an essential industry related to the construction of a harmonious
society. Although facing the difficulties of reform, it still has a
promising future.

Despite the increase of uncertainties due to the impact of the
Epidemic and geopolitics, China’'s pharmaceutical industry has
been growing relatively fast in recent years. With the market
size of China’s pharmaceutical industry amounting to RMB1,658.6
billion in 2022, it is expected that the market size of China’s
pharmaceutical industry will further reach to RMB1,797.7 billion
by the end of 2023.

There is a huge amount of unsettled medical health requirements
with the large aging population. The new era of pharmaceutical
innovation has arrived with the unprecedented medicine evaluation
reform, the normalization of bulk purchases and the acceleration
of innovation as the key solution.

In recent years, a series of industrial policies have been launched
by China and its government to encourage the development of the
pharmaceutical industry. The policies has continuously promoted
the development of the pharmaceutical industry, which includes
the “14th Five-Year” Development Plan for the Pharmaceutical
Industry (" TPUR"EBZET 2 EHE]) ), the Notice on the
Implementation Plan for Promoting the High-Quality Development
of the Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient Industry ( € B B[R £} 4%
EXREESEREMSENBA) ), the Action Plan for Developing
the Pharmaceutical Industry (2021-2023) ( & 8K 50 B8 B
HETEETE(2021-20234F)) ), the Notice on Certain Measures
for Support of the Development of the Pharmaceutical Industry

((BERTRHBEERZRE THENEA) ).

In particular, the development of the pharmaceutical industry
would be deeply impacted by five types of policies, including the
negotiation on medical insurance, payment method, commercial
insurance, approval and review of drugs and bulk purchases during
the “14th Five-Year"”.
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

Under the Epidemic, the Company’s business developed steadily.
Among the business segments of the Group, pharmaceutical chain
retail business had restrained the sharp decline. The Company
launched online publicity and marketing on the mobile Internet,
comprehensive promotion by Internet celebrities, online pharmacies
and cooperation with third-party online service organizations in
some areas, providing basic support for the Company'’s strategic
transformation. For the Year, the Company’s total revenue was
RMB1,297.0 million.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

We have observed three major trends in China’s new healthcare
retail, namely diversified healthcare service channel, integration
and division of work of online and offline, and more diversified
healthcare consumption. Given the situation, the Group would
continue its established development strategy and become
more innovative by focusing on the pharmaceutical industry and
concentrating on the universal health industry. Firstly, we will
continuously improve the operation quality of its retail chain stores,
increase the categories of pharmaceutical products, and enhance
our service awareness and capabilities. Secondly, we will constantly
develop value-added services in our stores to meet the diversified
needs of consumers. Finally, we will continually strengthen our
investment in the Internet and promote the integration of online
and offline stores and services to capture the market opportunities
under Internet-based medical services.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

The environment, society and governance are also the basis for
the Group to develop in a sustainable way and perform social
responsibility, and are taken seriously by senior management.
We will make efforts in aspects such as environment, employees,
customers, supply chain, anti-corruption and even community
participation, while creating economic value for each stakeholder,
to both improve governance and take into account the maintenance
of the natural environment and the social competitive environment,
so as to adapt to the global trend of coordinated economic and
social development.

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude
to the Board, management members and all staff for their
dedication and support to our Group's strategies and business
development.

Chu Chuanfu
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 September 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BERBNWmR I

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In the past year, the Chinese pharmaceutical industry faced a
number of new challenges and opportunities in the healthcare
field. The outbreak of the Epidemic had a profound impact on
the Chinese pharmaceutical industry. The Epidemic has promoted
the research and development and production of anti-epidemic
drugs and medical equipment and facilitated the development
of digitized healthcare and remote medical care. At the same
time, it also faced with fierce market competition and pressure
on drug prices. Despite the impact of the Epidemic, the Chinese
pharmaceutical market still maintained a good momentum of
development in the past year.

On 26 December 2022, the National Health Commission of the PRC
released the General Plan on Implementing “Class B Infectious
Disease with Measures against Class B infectious Diseases” for
Novel Coronavirus Infection( (EAREFEBRREEHR [ 288
LE| WMMREEFZE) ) formulated by the Joint Prevention and
Control Mechanism of the State Council in Response to the Novel
Coronavirus Infection (B & %1 52U 75 iR i 55 Rk 2 7 15 Bk oy B 4
475 48), which clearly stipulates the implementation of “Class
B Infectious Disease with Measures against Class B Infectious
Diseases” for novel coronavirus infection since 8 January 2023. In
accordance with Prevention and Treatment of Infectious Disease
Law, dropping quarantine measures against people infected
with novel coronavirus, stopping identifying close contacts or
designating high-risk and low-risk areas, implementing the stratified
and categorised admission and treatment and adjusting medical
insurance policies in a timely manner, adjusting testing strategy
to “test as you wish” and adjusting the frequency and content of
Epidemicinformation. According to Frontier Health and Quarantine
Law of the PRC, disease control measures targeting inbound
people and cargo will be lifted. This requirement represents a
significant change in the mode of domestic epidemic control that
has lasted for nearly three years, and is of great significance in
promoting social and economic development and enhancing the
public awareness of self-health management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

During the Year, the Chinese medicine industry continuously
received favorable policy changes. The Implementation Plan for
“14th Five-Year” Chinese Medicine Culture Dissemination Project

(CT+mA] PEEX LB TIEE

2023, emphasizing the promotion of Chinese medicine culture to

EEHE) ) was released in April

enhance public understanding of Chinese medicine. In addition,
in February 2023, the General Office of the State Council issued
the Implementation Plan for Major Project in the Revitalization
(P EEIR

EMTE) ). It emphasizes the acceleration of the

and Development of Traditional Chinese Medicine (
MERBATRZ
construction of the Chinese medicine service system, and the
implementation of policies such as inclinations in medical insurance
payments and incorporation into hospital assessments, further
strengthening support for the development of the traditional
Chinese medicine industry through enhancements in the policy
and institutional framework. The issuance of the aforementioned
policies contributes to expanding industry capacity from the
demand side, promoting exchanges of traditional Chinese medicine
culture both domestically and internationally, and facilitating the
internationalization of traditional Chinese medicine products.
With the increasing strength of policy support, more capital and
technology will be attracted into the field of Chinese medicine,
driving the development of the Chinese medicine industry chain
towards higher quality and standards. With the introduction of
various supportive policies, there emerges a strategic opportunity
for the development of high-quality innovative traditional Chinese
medicine. Additionally, the annual increase in research and
development expenditures by Chinese medicine enterprises and
the continuous growth in the number of new products also serve
as significant drivers for the development of the Chinese medicine
enterprises.

Since 2022, the domestic pharmaceutical retail sector has witnessed
which
has facilitated an organic connection among pharmaceutical

a growing trend in the expansion of “"DTP pharmacies,”

manufacturers, pharmacies, hospitals, medical insurance, doctors,
and patients, giving rise to a new drug distribution model. "DTP”
is an abbreviation for “Direct to Patient”. DTP pharmacy essentially
refers to pharmacies that specialize in selling high-value drugs
for certain specific and major diseases, characterized by their
professionalism, privacy, higher drug prices, and stringent storage
requirements. Some industry professionals also suggest defining
it as “Specialty Pharmacy”. The implementation of this pharmacy
model will bring about new mechanisms for exploration within the

domestic healthcare reform.

14 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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In summary, despite facing some challenges in the past year, the
pharmaceutical industry in China has generally maintained a growth
momentum. New business models have continued to emerge, and
public awareness of self-care has been steadily increasing after the
Epidemic. Additionally, the government'’s support for the industry
has been consistently strengthened, providing a solid foundation
for the industry’s future development.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Under the leadership of Mr. Chu Chuanfu, the chairman (the
“Chairman”) of the Board, Mr. Jin Dongtao, the former chairman of
the Board and with the efforts of all employees, the Group anchors
in and focuses on the pharmaceutical healthcare field, and has
been actively promoting the development of traditional physical
retail chain stores and distribution network while facing more
intensive competition. Meanwhile, after taking into the account
the impact of the Epidemic and industry development trends, the
Group also endeavored to explore new business model.

Resulting from relaxation of epidemic prevention and control,
public demand for medicine consumption rose for a time which
drove the relevant domestic industries began to recover. The
employees of the Group's retail chain stores stand fast on their
posts to provide medicine sales services to local people, actively
organize the supply of goods and equip people with urgently
needed anti-epidemic medicines and equipment. In some areas,
telephone ordering for home delivery of medicine and/or mobile
internet reservation for products had been carried out in order
to maintain business continuity and form a complementary online
and offline operation model.

The Golden Rules (& £)

The Golden Rules, an operation philosophy with strategic vision, is
put forward by Mr. Jin Dongtao, the former chairman of the Board
and executive Director, of which “E£" is embodied as “1+1=1,
1+1=11,1+1=101, 1+1=E, 1+1=H". The Golden Rules advocates
“Team-work” for multilateral

cooperation spirit, “Platform”

cooperation, "Empathy” at multi-level and multi-dimension,
“Sharing” win-win cooperation strategy and “Partnership” of

seeking common development.
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Chain Retail Business

During the Year, in order to minimise the impact on performance
caused by the Epidemic, the Group held various promotion
activities so as to enhancing the Group's presence in the regions
and competitiveness of chain retail business. Some stores of the
Group were designated by the government as procurement and
distribution units for anti-epidemic suppliers amid the Epidemic,
to effectively contribute to the fight the Epidemic in the region
by exploiting the advantages of the Group. In the meantime, the
Group has strengthened its O20 platform, increased the online
orders and formed an online and offline interactive operation
system. At the end of the Year, the Group had a total of 251 chain
stores (2022: 395 stores). The Group's retail business is still suffering
from the continuous downturn of regional real economy within the
northeastern region of the PRC and the impact of Epidemic. The
Group recorded sales revenue for retail business of RMB365.3
million for the Year (2022: RMB433.7 million), representing a year-
on-year decrease of 15.8%.
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Nationwide Distribution Business

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had approximately 1,656 distributors
and five large-scale distribution logistics centers. The Group made
appropriate promotion in its distribution system, continued to
optimise screening and maintaining of high-quality customers.
However, in this circumstance, the Group's distribution business
recorded sales revenue of RMB931.7 million (2022: RMB839.9
million), representing a year-on-year increase of 10.9%.

Direct-supply and Sales Model

The Group's direct-supply model effectively addressed the issue of
traditional heavily overlapped sales process, as well as simplified
the supply chain to improve sales efficiency and profitability and
provided a higher profit margin from the high-margin products
of the Group. Meanwhile, the marketing model advanced to
accord with the “Two Invoices System” carried out by the Chinese
government so as to reduce the effect of the policy change of
the Group. During the Year, the Group’s management took all
necessary actions to safeguard the direct supply of branded
products, and its direct-supply model of these branded products
covered the provinces in China.

Branded Products Operation

The Group continued to maintain the operational pattern of
the original branded products and adjusted the brand structure
according to actual operational requirements to eliminate certain
inappropriate products and add new products, so as to maintain
the competitiveness of the original branded products, whilst
increase the presence of new branded products. During the Year, a
net decrease of 139 branded products was recorded. Hence, there
were 564 branded products in operation at the end of the Year.

Intelligent Warehouse Construction

The Group has set up five large-scale logistics distribution centers
in Shijiazhuang, Shenyang, Changchun, Harbin and Jiamusi
respectively, and has established a high-quality distribution system
across the whole country covering the northeastern region. During
the Year, continuously leveraging on Warehouse Management
Software System, an intelligent sorting software system, the
Group's labor productivity had been improved. At the same
time, the Group has improved the working environment, the work
feelings of employees and customers have been improved, which
helps the Group's image upgrade, and lays a solid foundation for
planning of the industrial upgrading and intelligent transformation
of the logistics park.
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Brand Image Promotion.

With traditional advantages in continuous brand promotion
and marketing, the Group strengthened its presence and
competitiveness, and mitigated the further decline in operating
performance. During the Year, promotional and marketing
activities had been launched for product brands and enterprise
brands by continuously leveraging on the internet, WeChat and
live platform. In addition, the Group has participated in the public
charity. Especially during the outbreak of the Epidemic, it carried
out activities of promoting health information for free as a way to
enhance the reputation of the Company and fulfill its corporate
social responsibilities.

Institute School Training

According to the characteristics of new era, new economy, new
technology and new retail, the Group continued to optimize
the training activities of the institute and made best use of the
business institute on the Group's business development, talent
nurturing and public welfare promotion. Moreover, the Group
took the advantage of its lead in establishing business institute in
the industry, strengthened its cohesion as well as enhanced and
transformed the mode of thinking of employees in response to the
transformation and upgrade of the Company’s business. During
the Year, 18 online video internal trainings in total had been held
by the Company due to the Epidemic.

Membership Service

During the Year, the Group had provided follow-up services and
promotion benefits for approximately 1.58 million offline members,
and provide online health knowledge, product knowledge and
other dissemination services, enhancing the sense of affiliation
and positivity of members while boosting their loyalty, and thus
promoting a healthy image of the Company. Meanwhile, the Group
had provided social value-added services in various aspects such
as the supply of public toilets, cold shelters, lost children service
centres and epidemic prevention station for courier; and continued
to launch the public welfare activities, such as “Love China”, with
a view to building up its positive corporate image.
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Industry Alliance

During the Year, the Company had proactively participated in
the alliance activities. The Chairman and vice chairman, Mr.
Jin Dongkun had attended on behalf of the Group the tours
and forums organised by the alliance to seize the theme of era
development, keep abreast of the industry information, promote
development of branded products, strengthen the Company’s
interaction, exchange with industry alliance and constantly enhance
the Group's influence. Among them, Mr. Jin Dongtao, the former
chairman, won the “Special Contribution Award” of the China
Pharmaceutical Resources Association; In 2022, Mr. Chu Chuanfu,
the Chairman, won the “China Pharmaceutical Retail Outstanding
Person Award” by the West Lake Forum. Meanwhile, leveraging
on the China’s national strategic guidance of “Healthy China ({#52
)", “Beautiful China (EEH E)”, “Belt and Road (—#—)",
“Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area (&858 A&
[%)" and “Hainan Free Trade Port (BB B E 575)",
gathered industry experience and focused on technological

the Company

innovation to seek further transformation and upgrade of the
Group's business.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of RMB1,297.0 million for the Year
(2022: RMB1,273.6 million). Loss attributable to owners of the
Company was RMB105.4 million for the Year (2022: RMB187.6
million). Loss per share for the Year was RMB18.07 cents (2022:
RMB42.66 cents). The decrease in loss attributable to owners of
the Company was mainly due to the continuous improvement of
operating efficiency through implementing measures to tighten
cost control over various operating expenses in order to enhance
its profitability and to improve cash flow from its operations in
future. During the Year, the Group closed a number of loss-making
retail stores to minimise operating loss.

Revenue

During the Year, the Group recorded revenue of RMB1,297.0 million
(2022: RMB1,273.6 million). With the adaption of the Epidemic and
changes in the Epidemic prevention policy during the Year, the
customer flow of the stores gradually increased. Besides, the
release of the epidemic-restricted products like the treatment of
fever, cold, pharyngitis, antibiotics, etc., had driven the revenue
rebounded quickly. The increase in revenue was mainly due to a
net effect of (a) an increase from the distributions network through
pharmaceutical retails, hospitals and clinics; and (b) a decrease in
retails segments due to the decrease in retail pharmacies stores.
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Analysis of revenue by business segment

Revenue (RMB million)
Year ended 30 June

TR BB &) 7 # il 2k W

Percentage (%) of revenue
Year ended 30 June

ki# (AR¥EER) R EE 2t (%)
BEAA=THLEE BEAA=THLEE
2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change
ZBIZF T -F £ —®-=f ¥ f g
Retails TE 365.3 433.7 -15.8% 28.2 34.1 -5.9pp
EER-
Distributions ok 931.7 839.9 +10.9% 71.8 65.9 +5.9pp
R
1,297.0 1,273.6 100.0 100.0
Retail Business Segment FEXHTE

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 251 (2022: 395) retail pharmacies
in total, of which 166 (2022: 310) located in Heilongjiang, 84 (2022:
84) in Liaoning and 1 (2022: 1) self-operated retail pharmacy in
Hong Kong.

Distribution Business Segment

The Group adopted a prudent approach in running the distribution
business and took appropriate actions to mitigate credit risks by
strengthening the credit management of sales and minimising
trade receivables in order to lower the risk of bad debts.

During the Year, the Group had a nationwide distribution network
covering approximately 1,656 active customers (2022: 1,750), among
which, approximately 1,082 pharmaceutical retailers, hospitals and
clinics (2022: 1,050) and approximately 574 distributors (2022: 700).

Gross profit

Gross profit of the Group for the Year was RMB213.8 million (2022:
RMB204.2 million). Overall gross margin increase from 16.0% to
16.5%.
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Analysis of gross profit by business segment

Gross profit (RMB million)
Year ended 30 June

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DT

BB B &7 B9 EFIE T

Gross margin (%)
Year ended 30 June

EFE (ARBBER) ERE%)
BEAAZTHLFE HEXRAZTHLFE
2023 2022 Change 2023 2022 Change
—BC=F B S o —BC=F “ToCF &
Retails TE 99.3 100.0 0.7% 27.2 231 +4.1pp
EERE
Distributions X 1145 104.2 +9.9% 123 12.4 0.1pp
FERE
213.8 204.2
Selling and marketing expenses HERZHEX

Selling and marketing expenses for the Year was RMB245.2 million
(2022: RMB322.4 million) and accounted for 18.9% (2022: 25.3%)
of the Group's revenue. The decrease in selling and marketing
expenses was mainly due to the decrease in employee benefit
expenses and rental expenses.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses for the Year was RMB57.9 million (2022:
RMB58.0 million) and accounted for 4.5% (2022: 4.6%) of the
Group's revenue. The decrease in administrative expenses was
mainly due to the decrease in employee benefit expenses.

Finance income — net

Net finance income for the Year was RMB7.3 million (2022: RMB2.3
million). The increase in net finance income was mainly due to the
increase in exchange gains.

Income tax credit

Income tax credit for the Year was RMB6.0 million (2022: Nil). The
increase in income tax credit was mainly due to deferred tax assets

was recognised in the Year. The effective income tax rate for the
Year was 5.3% (2022: Nil).

RNEE HEREHAIABARK252
BET(ZZTE - —F: ARB32N4IEE
T0) B ARBEREN18.9% (ZE ==
253%) - HEREHASIRLETEANRE
THEAMAIRASERRDITER -

TR

REE THRAXB/BARKES7TBET(Z
To—F: AR®58088T)  hAEHE
W MA5% (ZE =4 : 4.6%) ° TR
XRPEERHNESRMFASIBD T ©

BB — B

AEE  BBRAFELSAREIIBET
—E-F AR®23B8T) c KK
AFERIEINTSE R AR 5 KR INPAER -

FREHESR

REENAEHER/ARB6OBET(Z
T__FE)  ENERLAETEHR
AEEHABRLEFAEHEENN - AFEE
B SHRERSI%(ZE_ZF : &) -

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWE D

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Company's treasury function formulated financial risk
management procedures, which are also subject to periodic review
by the senior management of the Company.

This treasury function operates as a centralized service for
managing financial risks, including interest rate and foreign
exchange rate risks, reallocating surplus financial resources within
the Group, procuring cost-efficient funding and targeting yield
enhancement opportunities. The treasury function regularly and
closely monitors its overall cash and debt positions, proactively
reviews its funding costs and maturity profiles to facilitate timely

refinancing, if appropriate.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group's unpledged cash and cash
equivalents were RMB43.0 million in aggregate (2022: RMB57.8
million), and the Group’s net current liabilities were RMB31.1
million (2022: net current assets of RMB23.6 million).

During the Year, net cash flows used in operating activities
amounted to RMB18.2 million (2022: RMB42.4 million). The
decrease in cash flows used in operating activities was mainly
attributable to the decrease in the Group's working capital.

During the Year, the Group had capital expenditure of RMB1.0
million (2022: RMBO.1 million).

Having considered the cash flow from operating activities and
existing financial gearing, the management believes that the
Group would replenish liquidity in a timely basis to fund its day-
to-day operations, capital expenditures and prospective business
development projects. The Board will continuously and closely
monitor the Group's liquidity position and financial performance
and implement measures to improve the Group's cash flows.

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, with most of its transactions
denominated and settled in Renminbi. The Group’s currency risk
is insignificant and mainly arises from certain bank deposits that
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
As at 30 June 2023, the Group had cash and bank balances of
RMB43.0 million, of which the equivalent of RMB1.4 million was
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars.
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The Group did not use financial instruments for financial hedging
purpose during the Year.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

On 4 April 2023 the Company allotted and issued a total of
111,258,272 new shares of the Company (the “Share(s)"”) to four
subscribers (the “Subscription”), who are independent third parties,
under general mandate at the subscription price of HKDO0.12 per
Share. The new Shares issued represent approximately 20% of the
total issued Shares as enlarged by such new Shares. Net proceeds
of approximately HKD13.1 million were raised.

For details of the Subscription, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 24 March 2023. As at 30 June 2023, 667,549,632
ordinary Shares of US$0.01 were issued by the Company. Details
of the movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a borrowing from an associate
carrying an interest rate of 3% per annum in the sum of RMB40.0
million (2022: a borrowing from an associate carrying an interest
rate of 3% per annum in the sum of RMB40.0 million).

The gearing ratio of the Group as at 30 June 2023, calculated as
net debt divided by sum of total equity and net debt, was N/A
(2022: N/A).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had no significant contingent
liabilities (2022: Nil).

As at 30 June 2023, the notes payables of RMB37.2 million (2022:
RMB29.6 million was secured by restricted cash of RMB39.8 million
(2022: RMB30.5 million) and the notes payables of RMB8.6 million
(2022: Nil) was secured by the buildings of the Group with carrying
amount of RMB27.3 million (2022: Nil).
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HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 2,555 (2022: 3,396) full-time
employees with total employee benefit expenses amounted to
RMB183.8 million for the Year (2022: RMB245.5 million). Employees
are paid according to their positions, performance, experience and
prevailing market practices, and are provided with management
and professional training. The Group has implemented a number
of initiatives to enhance the productivity of its employees. In
particular, the Group conducts periodic performance reviews on
most of the employees, and their compensation is tied to their
performance. Further, the Group’s compensation structure is
designed to incentivize its employees to perform well by linking
a portion of their compensation to their performance and the
overall performance of the Group. The performance-based
compensation partly depends on the employee’s job function and
seniority. Employees in Hong Kong are provided with retirement
benefits under the Mandatory Provident Fund scheme, as well as
life insurance and medical insurance. Employees in the PRC are
provided with basic social insurance and housing fund in compliance
with the requirements of the laws of China. Meanwhile, the Group
endeavours to provide its employees with a safe workplace and
structured training programs.

FUTURE PLAN

Following the leadership of the new chairman of the Board, namely
Mr. Chu Chuanfu in strategic plan and continuously adopting the
Golden Rules as its guidelines, the management of the Group will
adapt to the new situation, concentrate on universal health, focus
on the pharmaceutical industry, and deeply cultivate the industry
chain. On the basis of stabilizing and optimising the existing retail
chain network and distribution system, it will further explore the
structural transformation and digital upgrading of the “supply-
side"” reform with focus on the development of the following areas:

Firstly, “Specialization+" strategy is adopted to strengthen the
service professionalism and improve the Company’'s operation
quality. Taking licensed pharmacists as the core and leveraging
on the advantages of the business institute, the Group aims to
train employees of the new era, and improve the level of pharmacy
services for the public from the aspects of corporate culture,
pharmaceutical knowledge, service skills, new marketing methods,
or introducing famous doctors, as a way to win customers and
develop markets with professionalism, and to shape professional
brands in retail chain pharmacies and distribution field.
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Secondly, “Platform+" strategy is adopted to expand the value-
added service items of stores to meet the growing demand of
consumers. With the change in living environment, people pay
more attention to health, resulting in increasing demand for
prevention and treatment. In particular, the Epidemic outbreak
has further reminded the public of the importance of health care
and immunity. The Group will adopt new technological methods
according to the new situation, such as introducing Al intelligent
diagnostic medical equipment, or introducing resources in the
field of universal health in the form of partners, to enhance the
service capabilities of terminal stores and with alert marketing
model, implement franchise store promotion model as to adapt
to the market needs in the new situation.

Thirdly, "Internet+" strategy is adopted to strengthen the linking
capability of internet to physical stores, and promote online and
offline connectivity and integration. According to the development
trend of technology and the internet, the Group will make full
use of the new situation of the popularization of mobile internet
terminals, including development of applets, use of short videos
and live commerce, moments promotion, group development
and bonding members, to develop a network for physical stores,
explore a new marketing ecosystem integrating “new business,
new retail, and new technology”, and build a dynamic and leading
competitiveness.

Therefore, by leveraging the network layout advantages of
traditional industries and grafting the new economic model,
introducing to partnership model, the Group will make efforts to
facilitate the optimization and digital transformation of the Group's
operation structure, and make plans for a new development cycle
with the wing of new engine for the Company, so as to maintain the
Group as one of the industrial leaders in terms of the construction
of industrial chain ecosystem and operation channel innovation.

EVENTS AFTER THE YEAR

No important event has occurred after 30 June 2023 and up to
date of this annual report, being the end of the financial year
under review, which would affect the Group.
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B HEREARE

With reference to its own experience, the Company primarily
adopts the principles and basis of Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”)
as its standards, with an aim to establish a sound environmental,
social and governance structure.

The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and retails
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. The Group employs the Direct-supply Model
in the sales and promotion of its high-margin products including
licensed products and the products with exclusive distribution
rights. The Group employs Original Equipment Manufacturers
(OEM) and does not directly participate in the production process,
therefore, there is no emission of waste gas and greenhouse gas,
water and land pollution and the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste, etc. in respect to production process. This report
elaborates the Group's performance in fulfilling its corporate social
responsibility arisen from operations in the mainland China and
Hong Kong of the PRC during the Year.

The Group understands that corporate actions are not only
critical to the future of the business, but also need to respond
to global collective concerns and be consistent with sustainable
development goals. We implement more ambitious measures
to address the impact on the climate and enhance overall
sustainability practices, including setting environmental goals.
Responsibility and transparency will drive us to achieve our goals
and environmental, social and governance (ESG) vision.

The Group is committed to creating values for stakeholders and
the community by a responsible mode of operation, and its major
objectives are to maintain the sustainable development of the
following factors: (I) environmental aspect; (/) working environment;
(Il) operational management; and (IV) community participation/
public welfare.
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Stakeholders
BE

Issues of concern

BEEE

Communication channels

BERE

Government and market regulators

B KRS REHE

Compliance operation

BREE

Tax payment

IR

Promote regional economic
development and employment

HBHELBEERIME

On-site inspections and checks

EHRERRE

Work reports preparation and
submission for approval

B IRRZ THEREEE 4L

Annual, interim reports and other
published information

FIR - PHREREMDTIEER

Shareholders and investors

BRRIEEE

Return on investment

B B

Information disclosure and
transparency

A HERERE

Protect of shareholders’ interests

PRIBACR 2

Annual general meeting and

other shareholder meetings
BRFBFAEREMBERAE
Annual, interim reports and

other published information
Fif - PHWmEREMD TIEEH
The Company's website
PN
The Company's contact information

RAEEEETT

Employees

’E

Career development opportunities

ES 4
Health and safety

Training and incentive scheme
R R AT &)
Health guidelines

REELZ R 22155
Peer/industry associations e Experience sharing and e Industry alliance
EEYESES 4 co-operations TR
Ko ZREE ¢ Industry conference and seminars
TEREGZRMATE
Suppliers/partners e Long-term partnership e Tendering process
R, AIERHE REBHBAR BIZBIE
e Honest co-operation e Regular meeting
BEHATE EHeHE
e Fair and open e Strategic cooperation
DS UNG| RIS IE
e Risk reduction e Synergetic development
B (KL Fe IEEE: 5
Customers e Safe and high-quality products e Customer service hotline
BP ZEhEemE 2 Em BRI £ AR
e Business ethics e After-sales service
[HESEL ERRS
e Member activities
gEEH
Public and communities e Social responsibilities e Various charity projects
NERAE HEEME EHAREEER
e Community involvement e Concern on environmental impact
ftm e BRI E

The public welfare brand
“Love China” of the Group
AEE [BEOPE ] WRHEME
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ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECT

The Group only sells and markets our licensed products
under our Direct-supply Model. The Group believes that our
Direct-supply Model enables us to streamline our distribution
and supply chain by eliminating or reducing intermediaries
and enhance distribution efficiency and profitability, as
well as reducing environmental emissions in sale process.
The Group does not directly participate in manufacturing
drugs, and there is no productive resource consumption for
the Group. The Group actively responds to environmental
issues and is committed to reducing the impact of business
on the environment in its day-to-day operations through a
series of policies and measures. The following are the main
policies and measures of the Group for the implementation
of environmental protection.

Reduce Emission

In respect of drug storage, the Group abides by Good
Supplying Practice (“GSP") as required by competent authority
of China, the primary productive consumption is limited to the
use of electricity. In terms of transportation, the Group mainly
relies on third party transportation agencies in the process
of purchase. Under the conditions permitting, the Group will
give priority to cooperation with local suppliers to reduce
the energy consumption of the transportation process. Only
ordinary office work and storage and delivery of goods will
involve usage and consumption of resources of the Group
with a small portion of use of its own vehicles.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2022/23

BIRAH

AEBENEHRENHE R EERER
MEM - AREREEHRERNAIBEEH
BRek A5 o IR ED - b D s Rt e
# - REDHEMERBNES - KD
HEBRELMNREHNY - AEET
SEEREESER  TFELEEEER
HiE - RERSRERIRKERE - BB
E—RINBRMERERELEPH
NMDEBHRBNTE - LT RAE
B S TIRIRA E ZERMIEHE ©

D B

By I ASEERTEE
EREMNEREEEEEERSR)
(IGSP]) - TBELMNERERNE

BER BB E - AEBESNERRE
ERERBERF=TERHE - AKEHE
GRAFFRIT  SE@LERERMHER
B WD ERIBRAEERIER - K
SENERERERN—ROBR A
BRLEEREEEMHKEXEY -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B - a8 RERHE

The pollutant emission generated by use of vehicles of the K5 B B 8 T EE A )T R
Group J
Emission indicators
(emission/revenue RMB million)
HHEEE
(BRE WBEAREHET)
For the year
Emission During ended 30 June
Reporting items Emission types during the Year the Year 2022
o —cE
HBEBHE BHYER rEEHNE KEE SA=ZTHLEFE
Vehicle travelling E#7T8  Nitrogen oxides (NOx) A2t #(NOx) 556.8 kg T35 0.419 0.584
Vehicle travelling #7758  Particulate matter FERLY) 48,076.4 pcs i 36 50
Automotive fuel EH KL Sulphur oxides (SOx) BiE{k#1(SOx) 10kg T3 0.001 0.001
Automotive fuel EEMAEL  Carbon dioxide (CO,) ZH/LHZ(CO,) 158,166.4 kg T3 119.2 167.3
Reduction of Greenhouse Gas Emission WARERBEEN

e  Reduction of business trips

The Group understands that long travelling for business
trips will increase energy consumption and lead to an
increase in greenhouse gas emissions. Consequently,
the Group actively reduces the number of business
trips and alternatively uses other effective means of
communication by teleconference or video conference
to replace meetings and trainings which need long
travelling.

e  Promotion of Environmental Protection Education to
Stakeholders
At present, the Group engages various manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by the Group.
The Group is committed to promoting the importance of
energy-saving and emission reduction to its manufacturers
and, therefore, the requirements on the manufacturers
should comply with national environmental protection
regulations and to use environmental friendly material
on packaging to the greatest extent. Among which, the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification.
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The Group raises employees’ awareness of environmental
protection through induction training and slogan.
Moreover, training procedures are formulated to
incorporate the concept of environmental protection into
the employee’s annual training program, which ensures
effective implementation of the relevant energy-saving
and emission reduction measures.

Resource Usage

Save electricity and water

The Group actively advocates the concept of “green
office” and implements a series of measures to save
energy in the office, including cultivating the energy-
saving awareness of employees and encouraging them to
save electricity and water voluntarily such as turning off
the power immediately after use and setting a reasonable
temperature of air conditioner, and reduce wastage.

Save paper

In daily operation, the Group actively promotes the
electronic use of documents, uses computer archives
instead of paper documents, and implements paperless
office as much as possible to reduce the use of paper
office supplies. The Company encourages shareholders
to support environmental protection by receiving the
corporate communication in electronic form of the
Company in the future. Meanwhile, the Group requires
employees to use double-sided printing and recycle used
paper that has been used on one side.
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REEEIRAFEIR - AIEREZAA
B RDRE -

REAT AR

AEEE BT EEDEBEEXM
BT ERERFEREEREX
- BEBTEACRD R
DEERARARAOER - AR
BB EZWEMA B RARE
Az M B AR AR S FF IR IR AR E o
R SE2KETHRAEHES
BN $EE AR AR E K BIRE
o

EEEEMERERERBRMERE
o ORBIERKREENR

The management has regularly reviewed resource use policies
and usage, and does not find violations of waste.
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The resources usage on operation of the Group

E REPORT
o REAEE

AR E L ER R ERE TR

Resources usage amount indicators
(Usage amount/revenue RMB million)

EREAERER
(FHE WBEAR¥HEET)

For the year ended
Resources usage Usage amount during the Year During the Year 30 June 2022
e ——
BRER rEEFERE TEE ASA=THIEFE
Electricity & 897,485 degree [E 676.2 669.1
Petrol #Af 67,020 litre AF+ 50.5 70.9
Water 7K 4,095 m? 375K 3.1 5.1

The Environment and Natural Resources BERRRER

The Company acknowledges that climate change and
resource shortages pose a major threat to human survival
and development. As an enterprise relying on the raw
material supply chain, the Company is fully aware of the
need to understand and manage the impact of these risks
on operations.

The Company supports the transition to a low-carbon
economy. The Company is working hard to understand and
reduce our environmental impact and carbon footprint,
which means cutting down the demand for energy and water
resources, reducing waste and improving operations.

The Company formulated series of policies for energy and
water conservation, which offer more specific advice and
measures on management to employees.
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Measure

BiEERE

Measure details

BlRRAR

Green office
HEHAE

Encouraging paperless office for electronic documentation
SEEACRA - MREFXE

Setting air conditioners to keep the temperature at 25T
REEFREREX25E

Turning off unused equipment or lighting system

e KRB ERNRERRARS

Green operation
HedE

For the non-hazardous solid waste, such as domestic waste and waste
packaging, etc., the Group will deliver them to Health Authority
for handling to prevent environmental pollution upon collection

AEEHESBREERNEEDH S - OINEENRREEREYS  HXXH
BIAEAPIRIE - B LIRS RIRIR

Some unqualified products found in product test and the obsolete drugs
produced during the storage are destroyed under the supervision of
the quality department

HERBATER TR MRTEREEANBRERME - EE2FIN
BB TR IHER

Promoting environmental protection
to manufacturers and green purchase

MSLERHEFIRR MAR IR

Complying with environmental protection laws and regulations as well as
the environmental protection standards of the Group

BREREERER RAEERBRER T ORLE

Choosing local suppliers at priority and manufacturing licensed brand
products based on design and packaging requirements prescribed
by the Group when meeting the Company’s requirements

EMNaARRERIERT - BEZEAMHER MIZRAEBFTRANRTRE
KERGUEREREER

Providing environmental protection
training to employees
A 8 TIRHERFRIE

Providing environmental protection training for new joiners

Bg R AR B TIRHRERE

Actively reducing the number of business trips and encouraging employees
to use teleconferences or video conferences instead of meetings which
need long travelling

BN EBERAE  RME LA RBAS IR ZMAREN R EEH

Encouraging employees to reduce the use of vehicles

BEE TR ERAER

Warehouse Construction BfER

The Group builds a logistics warehouse to analyze information AEBZRYMRAR  BRBERKERS
through modern system management, and realize the EREONTEM - BRYIROFEAL - A
generalizable, controllable, intelligent and informative Zt - B2k BRb - —FTHIESE
logistics, on the one hand, to improve the turnover rate and EHEEXRLERE - S—FHEEREY
accuracy of warehouse; on the other hand, to reduce logistics MR R FHE R R - R FRREY
cost and improve operation efficiency, so as to reduce RIBEKNET - IRE0ENE - BR
environmental pressure as a whole, improve corporate profits FEENHEEE - SLEWRRE B
and realize more abundant social values. These infrastructure, Bk EERTEeRAERHEEA
management experience and expertise will be fully opened R - BRE S ERM - FREMIRAR -

to partners, enabling partners to reduce logistics costs.
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(1) WORKING ENVIRONMENT (2) THIRB

Employee and Labor Standards EERS T A

As of 30 June 2023, the Group had 2,555 employees, of which RZZE_=FA=+H x&£8H

99.7% located in mainland China. 2,555% 8T » FrEERAME T99.7%6 R

R A o

The Group is in strict compliance with local employment REBRZBRIMERERIOER -

laws and regulations, including but not limited to Chapter BIEETNRREB AN E57ZREFEIF

57 Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong, and Labor Law of BIDRSHPEARLFE LS E) « (R E

the PRC, Labor Contract Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on ARZEFMBLEERE)  (PEARK

Protection of Minors, Regulations on Prohibiting Use of Child MBIARKFAREE) (BEILFERET

Labor (State Council Order No. 364) and Special Provisions on HED) (BIEBT < 536457 ) - (LB T4

Labor Protection of Females (State Council Order No. 619): REEFRIEE) (EBRSE6195)

=

1 labor wages, overtime pay and related benefits in 1 BIITE - IHEREBERENIK
compliance with the requirement of local minimum wage; BEMREIEXN

2 holiday andlegal holiday in compliance with the provisions 2 BHNREERFRIAHBERERR
of the state; E

3 equal treatment to every employee, without influence of 3 FEHFS—HLEI FTEET
employee’s nationality, race, nationality, gender, religion, WEK Bk BE£ - 45 R
age, sexual orientation, political parties, marital status 2 FE - MM BURIKR
and other social identity on employment, payment, WA ER S Fn s 8 H
promotion, etc; and B 8 BA%F: K&

4 implementation of integrated computation man-hour in 4 BEZEENERETHEEHETL
compliance with the requirements of labor law. R T{EH] o
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The working hours applied to the staff of the Group are in
compliance with the relevant requirements of the employment
laws and regulations. The Group's all businesses are prohibited
from employing child labor or forced labor. The Group has
complied with relevant laws and regulations of prevention of
child and compulsory labor. We perform strict examination
in the process of recruitment to avoid hiring child labor in
any workplace. Furthermore, we will hold regular meeting
with management of all departments to review whether there
exists forced labor and also understand the situation from
the employees. Any detected employment of child labor or
forced labor will be dealt with seriously, such as stopping the
work of child labor, criticism and reduction of wages or bonus
of the person in charge of the recruitment, as the case may
be, with respect to related department and even dismissal

in severe cases.

The Group has established and implemented a set of human
resources management policies and procedures in place with
the aim to provide ideal working environment to its staff.
Further, the Group's compensation structure is designed to
incentivize its employees to perform well by linking a portion
of their compensation to their performance and the overall
performance of the Group. The Group has adopted a share
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose
of enhancing cohesion and maintaining competitiveness.
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Total number of employees by gender, category and age

IR - 1B B IR K Fle il &) 77 i

group BHEE
Age group Number at Number at
Gender Category (years old) 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
R-Z-=#F W-ZT——
ANA=+H ~A=+AH
14 51 pEad) FiRAa R (57) AE N
Female Management 50 or above
gogid BEEAR 503k A £
50 46 44
40-49 61 85
30-39 22 33
18-29 8 9
General staff 50 or above
—RET 505k A £
50 226 228
40-49 834 1,072
30-39 720 1,038
18-29 180 336
Male Management 50 or above
E=l i EIBAR 508 A
50 41 43
40-49 32 46
30-39 22 23
18-29 10 10
General staff 50 or above
—MET 508k A
50 46 40
40-49 174 197
30-39 122 175
18-29 1" 17
Total
e 2,555 3,396
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Employee turnover rate by gender, category and age group

IR - 1B BRI R F e 5 &) 77 I8

BRAKLEE
Employee
turnover rate for
Employee the year ended
Age group turnover rate 30 June 2022
Gender Category (years old) for the Year (%) (%)
HE—T——F
rEE ANA=1TAL
4 5 fEid] FidR (5) RMKLEE%) FEMKLE%)
Female Management 50 or above
M BEAB 503k A £
50 0.0 0.0
40-49 28.2 10.1
30-39 33.3 51.7
18-29 111 20.0
General staff 50 or above
—MRET 508k A
50 0.9 22.6
40-49 22.2 36.0
30-39 30.6 60.3
18-29 46.4 79.0
Male Management 50 or above
Bt EEAB 503k A
50 4.7 0.0
40-49 30.4 24.8
30-39 4.3 80.5
18-29 0.0 0.0
General staff 50 or above
—pRET 508k A £
50 0.0 7.2
40-49 11.7 17.2
30-39 30.3 65.4
18-29 35.3 108.1
24.8 48.8
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Health and Safety

The Group establishes management policies and procedures
for human resources, formulates system of occupational health
and safety and takes various steps, aiming to provide the
employees with an ideal and safe working environment. For
this purpose, the Group also persists in putting resources on
improving occupational safety and environmental protection
awareness as well as employee development. Our Code
of Business Conduct, available in the staff handbook,
communicates to our employees the Group’s emphasis on
ethical business conduct. The Code of Business Conduct
applies to all employees and covers areas including, among
other things, health, safety and financial integrity, etc.

Working Environment

The Group assesses safety of working environment. The Group
implements relevant national regulations on occupational
safety and social insurance and formulates corresponding
operating rules to manage and control the health and safety
hazards posed to the employees, and also formulates relevant
contingency and precautionary measures. For example, in
business premises and offices, the Group provides relevant
staff with necessary labor protection resources, white gowns
for salesperson and the necessary education on computer
operation and water and electricity safety. Moreover, the
Group regularly monitors the compliance status including fire-
fighting equipment and regular cleaning of the air conditioning
system and replacement of relevant components to ensure
good in-door air quality for protection of employees’ health.
The Group should report and supervise rectification in event
of non-compliant situation. In terms of labor insurance, the
Group provides social insurance for employees, including
employment injury insurance. In terms of commercial
insurance, Directors and senior management are insured of
liability insurance.
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Work-Life Balance

The Group is not just concerned with the occupational health
and safety of the employees; it is also concerned with the
psychological well-being and need of private life of the
employees. Hence, the Group devises various categories
of leaves relating to an employee’s family life, and makes
provision for early leave, flexible vacation, etc. to align
with the roles of an employee in his/her family. In addition,
the Group will arrange a variety of activities to ease the
employees’ pressure and enrich employees’ life outside of
work, such as arrangement of festival celebration activities,
sport competitions, etc.

During the Year, no work-related death or injury occurred with
respect to any employees within the Group.

Development and Training

The Group has implemented a number of initiatives to
enhance the productivity of our employees. Among which,
Jintian Institute is an internal training institution first set up in
the industry, and subsequently introduced to China Business
School Education Group Limited, which established in Hong
Kong and is also our training institution.
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Jintian Institute (also named as “Jintian School”)

Jintian Institute is an in-house training and development
centre, providing systematic and comprehensive training to
our employees as well as our important distribution customers
periodically. These training courses focus on the promotion
of employee’s sales skills and deepening the understanding
of enterprise culture of the Group. Jintian Institute provides
certain training programmes and courses covering various
aspects of business operations of the Group, including but not
limited to, medical and nutrition knowledge, store operations
and procedures, sales and marketing techniques, customer
interaction and service skills. Jintian Institute also provides
training to our management team in areas such as business
process and planning, leadership development, effective
communication and management skills. Another key function
of the Jintian Institute is to organise events and seminars to
promote corporate values of the Group: goal-orientation,
teamwork and collectivism. In the meanwhile, the Group
also provides continuous training for Directors and senior
management on relevant laws and regulatory update as well
as business matters related to the Group, to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills.

These trainings include seminars and workshop on leadership
development, corporate governance practices as well as
regulatory development and requirements. Through these
training programmes, our employees are able to master
standard operating procedures of the Group, communicate
effectively with customers and acquire a better understanding
of customers’ preferences. Jintian Institute also helps us to
build an experienced, loyal and focused workforce.

During the Year, the Group provided 18 sessions of training to
employees through Jintian Institute with up to 646 participants,
with an aim to make active efforts for improving staff quality
and management performance, and adapt to the new norm
of the economic development.
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Details for employees receiving training from Jintian Institute

EEZR X X SBbigiliE ik

Participants during

Participants the year ended

Category during the Year 30 June 2022
HE-_T—-—

NAZTRHIEEE
LYl AEEZIIANR HINAR
Senior Management Personnel &R EIEA B 10 7
Middle Management Personnel F#REIE A B 96 27
Salespersons &% A B 540 219
Total &&f 646 253

Encouragement for External Learning

While conducting internal training actively, the Group
also encourages its employees to participate in exams for
external higher education and professional qualification. By
sharing the resource of the Jintian Institute, we organize
employees to participate in the exams of licensed pharmacists,
undergraduate and postgraduate etc., encourage employees
to promote themselves from different aspects, and improve
business skills and comprehensive quality, etc.

Peer/Industry Associations

China Medical Pharmaceutical Material Association (7 B &8 %
Y& #&) was established in 1989, which was a national, non-
profit making social entities Class | corporate organization
approved to be registered by the Ministry of Civil Affairs
of the PRC (FBIR EZB). Business supervisory unit is State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission
of The State Council. The former Chairman, Mr. Jin Dongtao
is vice chairman of the China Medical Pharmaceutical
Material Association. The Group's senior management and
employees participate in the training and offline activities of
the association on an irregular basis.
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(111) OPERATIONAL MANAGEMENT

Supply Chain Management

In order to enhance operation and management, the Group
works on simplifying the supply chain management; as well
as diversifying supplier channels to reduce purchase cost and
building a structure that combines upstream and downstream
through mergers and acquisitions. Out of all the Group's
suppliers, 366 are manufacturers and 603 are distributors. For
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, 27.0% and 27.8%
products were purchased directly from the manufacturers
respectively.

Product Quality and Safety

For the responsibility in product sales, the Group pays
attention to the quality management, complaint handling
and customer privacy protection.

At present, the Group engages several manufacturers
of pharmaceutical products and health care products
to manufacture our licensed products according to the
design and packing requirements specified by us. All the
manufacturers of the licensed products have obtained all
necessary licenses, permits and certification, including Good
Manufacturing Practice Certification. The Group also requires
suppliers to meet the national Good Manufacturing Practice.
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The Group strictly implemented the national GSP in the storage
and transportation of products, assigned special personnel to
supervise temperature and humidity and established effective
period warning mechanism for the purpose of strengthening
quality control. The Group strengthened the maintenance and
protection of intellectual property rights. In the procurement
procedures, we strictly follow the requirements of GSP and
require suppliers to avoid infringement of intellectual property
rights of third parties; otherwise, the liability for tort shall be
borne by the relevant supplier. The Group also strengthened
quality controls, promptly notify the supplier of any breakage
or other fault of products found during acceptance check and
require relevant supplier or transportation operator to make
compensation after distinguishing their respective liabilities.
The Group strengthened the management of product
circulation, in case quality issues with products were found, the
Group will take down from shelves and recall those products
in time according to the notice of competent authority and
notify the supplier to make compensation as agreed. In
addition, we strictly protect the privacy of consumer, all of
the members and consumers data will be under computer
encryption process. The Group also requires allied unit of
different industry (if any) to protect consumer privacy. In case
of adverse drug reaction, the Group will report to competent
authority of the industry upon receipt of any feedback from
customers.

Anti-corruption

The Group is committed to promoting ethical business
practices and full compliance with the law wherever we do
business. There are strict internal guidelines within the Group
which prohibit the employees’ involvement in illegal activities,
such as bribery, extortion, money laundering and fraud. The
Group often participates in the training plans provided through
Jintian Institute, which allows our employees to possess rich
experiences in many aspects of Direct-supply Model, such
as medical product manufacturing, purchasing and quality
control, pharmacy operation and marketing.
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The Group has put in place a “whistle-blowing” policy and
system for our employees to report suspected criminal acts
including corruption, money laundering and fraud. During
the Year, there is no corruption case reported, or legal case
regarding corrupt practices or money laundering brought
against the Group.

(IV) COMMUNITY PARTICIPATION/PUBLIC WELFARE

In order to increase the participation in social activities, the
Group endeavors to launch more activities for community
members and promote the development of public welfare
brand “Love China”. At the same time, the Group strives to
strengthen corporate governance and integrate its corporate
development with public welfare philosophy.

The Group is committed to creating sustainable development
value in economic, social and environmental aspects to fulfil
its corporate social responsibility and achieve long-term
sustainable growth of shareholder value. The management
of the Group reviews the policy implementation, monitors
and measures the progress from time to time to ensure its
stated goals achieved in an effective manner.

In order to expand membership base, we propagandize
membership programme through a variety of marketing
campaigns and also plans to strengthen the analysis of
members’ consumption patterns and preferences so as to
optimize the retail marketing strategy. At the same time,
we continue to increase the number of online members
through smart platforms such as applets. We will continue
to provide members with diversified incremental services, for
example, free drug delivery, and free consultation provided
to community through the Business Institute, free testing
provided to community residents by medical team, etc., and
constantly improve the service level.
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Member Activities

During the Year, the branches of the Group intensified
member activities, including ongoing member discounts and
festival activities, provision of cold shelters in winter, provision
of shelter and other support for the lost child as well as
other social value-added services, which further improved the
cohesion of the members and their willingness to consume.
As of 30 June 2023, we had approximately 1.58 million offline
members, the average consumption of members reached
RMB95 and the Group held 72 sessions of membership
activities in total.

Love China Public Welfare Activities (/0 B A 2555 Bh)

Aixin Chuanbo (Beijing) Wenhua Fazhan Zhongxin* (B /[M%
FEEER) X LB R L) was established in 2011 for welfare
activities “Love + Health”, which was the nationwide fitness
and Love program under the name of “Love” and composed
of a series of commonweal undertakings, such as “Nationwide
Fitness Programme” of body building exercise, “Support and
Assist Students and Teachers Programme” caring for the
next generation, and “Programme of Army Wife Employment
Base” aim at supporting national defense, all of which were
designed to pass on China’s five thousand years of culture,
carry forward the spirit of love Party and patriotism, advocate
healthy philosophy of charity and spread healthy culture of
caring others. Love China activities are committed to building
the platform for the interaction and communication among
government, media, enterprises and charities, through which
we develop public welfare undertaking, converge love,
promote physical and mental health in the society and forge
Love China and Love World. The public welfare brand “Love
China” constitutes the best platform for the Group to fulfill
its social responsibility.

During the Year, the Group made some medication donations.

In conclusion, the Group has been always adhered to the
environmental protection concept of environment caring
and sustainable development; while the management
strengthening corporate governance to achieve the best
operating practices with the combination of governance and
efficiency, actively assuming community responsibilities and
building the public welfare brand “Love China” as the best
platform for fulfillment of social responsibilities.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Board has pleasure in presenting the Report of the Directors
and the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and
the Group is principally engaged in the distribution and retail
of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the northeastern
region of the PRC. Analysis of the principal activities of the Group
during the Year is set out in Note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income on pages 111 to 112 of this
annual report.

KEY FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the Year
are set out in the sections of “Financial Summary” and “Financial
Highlights” of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS

During the Year, the Group has maintained a good relationship
with its stakeholders, including employees, customers, suppliers,
banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group will continue to
ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship
with each of its key stakeholders.

PRINCIPAL RISK AND UNCERTAINTIES THE GROUP FACING

The principal risk and uncertainties the Group facing are set out in
the sections of “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements

of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend
for the Year (2022: Nil).
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The declaration, form, frequency and amount of any dividend
payout of the Company must be in accordance with relevant laws,
rules and regulations and subject to the articles of association of
the Company (the “Articles of Association”). Provided there are
distributable profits and without affecting the operations of the
Group, the Company may consider declaring and paying dividends
to the Shareholders. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take
into account, including but not limited to: (i) the general financial
condition of the Group; (ii) working capital and debt level of the
Group; (iii) future cash requirements and availability for business
operations, business strategies and future development needs; (iv)
any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be imposed by
the Group's lenders; (v) the general market conditions; and (vi) any
other factors that the Board deems appropriate. The payment of
the dividend by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the Articles
of Association.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The business review and outlook of the Group for the Year is set
out in the sections of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

Under the Subscription, the Company allotted and issued an
aggregate of 111,258,272 Shares with aggregate nominal value
of US$1,112,583 at the subscription price of HKD0.12 per Share
(net subscription price per Share: approximately HKDO0.118) to a
total of four subscribers, namely Li Jiaxu, Chen Jing, Sun Shanlu
and Hu Jing, all are independent third-parties, for the purpose
of raising general working capital of the Group. As at the date of
entering into the relevant subscription agreements (i.e. 24 March
2023), the price per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange was
HKDO0.121. A net proceeds of approximately HKD13.1 million was
raised under the Subscription which has been fully utilised as
general working capital of the Group.

The Group anchors in and focuses on the pharmaceutical
healthcare field, and has been actively promoting the development
of traditional physical retail chain stores and distribution networks
while facing more intensive competition. In the future, the
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Company will continue to launch online publicity and marketing
on the mobile Internet, comprehensive promotion by Internet
celebrities, online pharmacies and cooperation with third-party
online service organizations in some areas, providing basic support
for the Company's strategic transformation. In light of the above,
the intended use of the proceeds raised under the Subscription
would mainly focus on the following aspects:

The Company intends to apply such net proceeds for general
working capital for the Group, including but not limited to,
(i) daily operation of physical retail chain stores; (ii) inventory

replenishment; and (iii) e-commerce sales.

As at 30 June 2023, the net proceeds raised under the Subscription
was utilised for the following purpose:

Net proceeds
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Net proceeds used during Net proceeds the unutilized
Use of proceeds available the Year unused proceeds
FERKRER
FEEER REAFE FriSsIER
FrERERR RS RIEE FrissIEEaE RIEFHE HERRER
The Subscription
I
General working capital:
—EES
(i) procure inventory in relation to the purchase of 11.1 HKD million ~ 11.1 HKD million - N/A
pharmaceutical and healthcare products (including BEAT AEET A
influenza A viruses prevention) for daily operations
() FERE SPRESERRREER (BEEHFR
MERS) WERREEE
(i) pay off rental expenses for physical retail chain 1.0 HKD million 1.0 HKD million - N/A
stores BEBT BEET TEA
(i) XNERTEEHMENHEEMAX
(iii) carry out live commerce 1.0 HKD million 1.0 HKD million - N/A
BEET BEET i
(i) FREEHE
Total 2% 13.1 HKD million  13.1 HKD million - N/A
BEBT BEBT A

During the Year, the proceeds were fully utilised and used in line

with the previously disclosed plan.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

One of the fundamental tasks of the senior management of the
Group is leading the Group to protect the environment. The Group,
as a corporate citizen, fulfills social responsibility, strengthens
corporate governance, promotes healthy and orderly development
of the Group, and further creates economic value and social
benefits for clients, upstream suppliers, downstream distributors,
Shareholders, potential investors, management, employees,
communities and even the environment and other stakeholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

As far as the Board is aware, the Group has complied in material
respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Group.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company will be
held on Tuesday, 12 December 2023 (the “2023 AGM").

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 7 December 2023, to Tuesday, 12 December 2023,
both days inclusive, in order to determine the identity of the
Shareholders who are entitled to attend the 2023 AGM. All transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates and transfer forms
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong before 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
6 December 2023.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages 263 to
264 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, the purchase from the Group's five largest
suppliers contributed 7.1% of the total cost of sales and the sale
to the Group's five largest customers contributed 12.1% of the

total revenue.

Save as disclosed hereinafter, none of the Directors or any of
their respective close associates or, so far as the Directors were
aware, any Shareholder who owned 5% of the number of issued
shares of the Company as at 30 June 2023, had any interest in
any of our five largest suppliers or customers for the years ended
30 June 2023 and 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the Year are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the Year are set out on page 113 and in Note
36(b) to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
Companies Law of the Cayman Island, amounted to approximately
RMB259.2 million (2022: RMB358.9 million).
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year up to the date of this annual report

were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operation Officer)
(Appointed as chairman on 12 December 2022)

Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman)

Mr. Zhao Zehua

Mr. Jin Dongtao
(Resigned as chairman and executive Director on
12 December 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie
Mr. Zou Haiyan

In accordance with Article 16.2 of the Article of Association, any
director appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only
until the next following general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible for re-election at that meeting; and in accordance with
Article 16.18 of the Articles of Association, at every annual general
meeting of the Company ("AGM"), one-third of the Directors for
the time being (or, if their number is not three or a multiple of
three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that every Director
(including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. Chu Chuanfu (“Mr. Chu"”), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing ("Mr. Cheng”) and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie (“Mr. Chiang”)
shall retire by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves
for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Group are set out on pages 87 to 94 of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules from each of the
independent non-executive Directors and the Company considers
such Directors are independent.

Mr. Cheng and Ms. Chiang have been serving the Company
for nine year. In determining whether Mr. Cheng and Ms.
Chiang are still independent, the nomination committee of the
Board (the “Nomination Committee”) has also considered, in
addition to the annual confirmation, whether Mr. Cheng and
Ms. Chiang (i) has involved in the management of the Group,
which is executive in nature; (i) has involved in other business
of any of the connected persons or the controlling shareholders
(if any); and (iii) is financially independent on the Group and
its connected persons. Having made all reasonable enquiries
by the Company, and as confirmed by each of Mr. Cheng and
Ms. Chiang, each of them has not involved in the executive
management of the Group or other business of the connected
persons of the Company. Besides, save that each of them is
entitled to a director’s fee for his/her office as an INED, each
of them is not financially dependent on the Group or any
of its connected persons. As a result, and after taking into
consideration each of Mr. Cheng and Ms. Chiang has always
provided his/her valuable advice to the Group with a view to
protecting the interest of the Company and the Shareholders as
a whole, the Nomination Committee is of the view that each of
them is still independent.

DIRECTORS’
APPOINTMENT

SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS OF

As at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors has service contract or
letter of appointment which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no contract of
significance between the Company or its holding company or any
of its subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries for the Year.
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During the Year, none of the Company or any of its subsidiaries
has entered into any contract of significance for the provision of
services by any controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Group's business to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was
a party or were parties and in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) was
set up for reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and structure
for all remuneration of the Directors and senior management
of the Group, having regard to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance of the Directors and senior management
and comparable market practices.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE INDIVIDUALS WITH
HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and five highest
paid individuals are set out in Note 35 and Note 27(a) to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emolument
during the Year.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

During the Year, save as disclosed in the interim report of the
Company for the six mouths ended 31 December 2022, there was
no change in information of the Directors which is required to be
disclosed pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO")) (i) which were required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (i) which were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered into the register maintained
by the Company, or (iii) which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules

were as follows:

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

EERBSTHRAERER®D - HEK
IREEETHNESZR KR

R-ZB-=FA=1H EEZRAQFR
BITHA BEARR R SE B EE(E
EREFEE R EHEPERD)E
XVER) BB £~ FERAR D M B HERE P A ()
RIRE R ERGIFXVEDFH7 M8 B A
HMEARNRAE LB e D kR (BRER
R R EROIN A BIEGREFR R
BRAENEDRSLAR)  HNVREBEEFEHE
GBI EIS2GEAR AR B FENECMERL
BViE s MoK B - SRR £ T AR BB 8+
B Z( EMBTAEFETESFIHNE
PR ([RESFR ) BHE AR R LB
FrEviEss FORB IO -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number and
class of Shares/

Name of Director Nature of Interest underlying Shares (Note 6)
g el 1) BAFR
EEME fEREME HERER B (HEs)
Chu Chuanfu Beneficial owner 7,430,201 1.11%
(Long Position)
= EmfBA (FE)
Interest of a controlled corporation 90,701,495 13.59%
(Long Position)
PR EEE R (#FE)
Zhao Zehua Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 2) 723,400 0.11%
(Long Position)
R EnlEB AT 1R2) (#FE)
Jin Dongkun Beneficial owner (Notes 1T & 3) 580,000 0.09%
(Long Position)
SRE BEnla AHF1R3) (1 &)
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Approximate

Number and percentage of
class of Shares/ shareholding
Name of Director Nature of Interest underlying Shares (Note 6)
B 13, HHEA R 17 BAFR
EEHE ERME HAERER Bt (fats)
Cheng Sheung Hing Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 4) 50,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
GEERE BEnBEEAMF1R4) (FE)
Chiang Su Hui Susie Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 4) 50,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
IRE EmlEE AN(Mit1k4) (4FE)
Zou Haiyan Beneficial owner (Notes 1 & 5) 50,000 0.01%
(Long Position)
a0 BEunBEBEAMFIRS) (aFE)
Notes: Kzt
1) In September 2017, the Company granted a total of 20,000,000 share options (the “Share 1) R= tENA ARARBERNBEERKZ /\%(H

Options 2017") to 20 eligible participants which include 3 executive Directors, 1 former
executive Director and an associate (as defined under Rule 17.06A of the Listing Rules)
of a former executive Director. All the Share Options 2017 were accepted by the
grantees under the rules of the Share Option Scheme.

In March 2019, the Company granted a total of 30,000,000 share options (the “Share
Options 2019") to 50 eligible participants which include é Directors, 1 former Director
and an associate (as defined under Rule 17.06A of the Listing Rules) of a former
Director. All the Share Options 2019 were accepted by the grantees under the rules of
the Share Option Scheme.

2) Mr. Zhao Zehua beneficially owned 443,400 Shares and was the grantee of 280,000
Share Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option
Scheme, 280,000 Shares will be issued upon exercise of such Share Options.

3) Mr. Jin Dongkun beneficially owned 300,000 Shares and was granted 280,000 Share
Options 2017 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
he is entitled to subscribe for 280,000 Shares upon exercise of such Share Options.

4) Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie were each granted 50,000 Share
Options 2019 under the Share Option Scheme. Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme,
each of them is entitled to subscribe for 50,000 Shares upon exercise of such Share
Options 2019.

5) Mr. Zou Haiyan beneficially owned 50,000 Shares which were exercised from the Share
Options 2019 under the Share Option Scheme.

6) As at 30 June 2023, there were 667,549,632 Shares in issue.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, none of the Directors
and the chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to
have any interest or short position in the shares, underlying shares
or debentures of the Company or its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to
be recorded in the register of the Company required to be kept
under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

54 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2022/23

¢@?§3u§ﬂﬁ§$ AT EE R —(ATRITES
B —fIBER A - E%ﬁimiﬁﬁ‘J%WOéA\m)m#\?ﬁ.‘ﬁ
20,000,000f7 B fE ([ =B —tFHWIRE]) - FE T —
t@ﬁﬁﬂﬂéE*E?F@%Hﬂ&.ﬁr?‘lﬁﬁ‘l?%%?“/\&"m

NEZ-NEF=A  ARFECA0EABRSEE (KR
BRI ESE UM EER A EFN—UBEA
i%iim%ﬁﬁ‘l%WOéAﬂm)mij't?*u”:BOOOOOOOf B A%
BI=2-hFBKRE] MBE_FT-NFERECR
R IR R ARAE S -

2) IR S B AP 443,4000% B 4 - W 1E AR IR AR AE
BT8R 1 #9280,00010 —F — - FREIRIEARRA o RIF
FERL BT S - 280,0000% A& 17 15 AT (R AB AR MRS 3517 -

3) @%Eﬁi?ﬁ%ﬁm&owﬁﬁﬁ%%&%*E%%E%%%ﬁ%ﬂ
X 1 #9280,0001) = F — CF FEAGE R RIR A o RIBIBA
WBEHEI b MR O AR SR 280, 0008 AR 9 -

4) Eﬁﬁfﬁii&iiﬁﬁiﬂﬁE*Efﬂgﬁﬂgﬁzlﬁéﬁﬂé

50,00017 NERBRE - RIBBRME S - WER
BRENITR =T — N B AER R 50,0008 827

5) BB EEE A F50,00008 %17 - THIRBRBAER S -
TEZZE-NFEBRERSMRIS -

6) @:2:2%‘*&% =1A - ARBBTIRNEE H667,549,632

B £ XTI EE %9\\’5“_7_ FRA=T
B SEBEEERARARSTRABRER
NCIEESIEE: /fl(m%ia 75 A B (5B
SEXVER WD ~ MR AEEETESR
AR SR BN AR RREE 75 E S &)
FEI2MFFENBELCHME QEE’\JEH%/\QM
B SRERES ﬁ‘JfE THEARR
RATEE S SORE



SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’'s existing Share Option Scheme was approved
for adoption pursuant to a written resolution of the then sole
shareholder passed on 18 November 2013 and amended on
20 December 2018 for the purpose of attracting skilled and
experienced personnel, to incentivize them to remain with
the Group and to motivate them to contribute for the future
development and expansion of the Group by providing them with
the opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company, as well
as for such other purposes as the Board may approve from time
to time. The Share Option Scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years until 17 November 2023.

The refreshed maximum number of shares that can be allotted
and issued upon the exercise of share options which may be
granted by the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
is 38,631,344 being 10% of the total number of issued Shares
as at the date of passing of the resolution approving the said
refreshment at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 10 December 2020. Together with the total of 22,470,000
outstanding share options granted in September 2017 and in
March 2019, representing approximately 5.82% of the total number
of issued Shares, the Company will be allowed to allot and issue a
maximum of 61,101,344 Shares (representing approximately 9.15%
of the issued shares as at the date of this annual report), upon
the exercise of share option which may be/have been granted by
the Company under the Share Option Scheme.

The Company granted a total of 30,000,000 share option (the
“Share Options 2019") to 50 eligible participants which include
7 Directors and an associate (as defined in the Listing Rules) of an
executive Director on 4 March 2019 exercisable from 4 April 2019
to 3 April 2029. 275,300,000 options under the Share Options 2019
have been exercised, remaining 24,700,000 options outstanding.
Rule 17.03(5) of the Listing Rules requires that the exercise period
of option must not be more than 10 years from the date of the
grant instead of the commencement date of the exercise period.
The resolution approving the shortening of exercise period (from
3 April 2029 to 3 March 2029) was passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2020, such that the
term of the Share Options 2019 complies with the Listing Rules.
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Besides, in order to encourage long-term commitment to the
Company and to align the interests of Directors and certain
employees with the Company's development, the resolution
approving the extension of exercise period (from 11 October
2020 to 11 September 2027) was passed at the annual general
meeting of the Company held on 10 December 2020, such that
the term of the Share Options 2017 aligns with that of the Share
Options 2019.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, all principal terms of
the Share Option Scheme remain unchanged and are set out in
Appendix V to the prospectus of the Company dated 2 December
2013.

Particulars of Share Options outstanding under the Share Option
Scheme at the beginning and at the end of the Year and Share
Options granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled under the Share
Option Scheme during the Year are as follows:

AN - AREEENETREHAAEEL
REVERL - AR 18 5 1O ) B AC 22 m) ) 3
EE R_T_TF+-_ATHARNK
RAFKRg L - Lﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁfﬁ:ﬁftﬁ
BRENTERIHAA T _TF+A+
—El?éfgftihﬂ-f— HHRZREE

BB BE—_T-LFERENFHRE—T
—NEBEERR -

BRAFRAWMEEI - BRETEIZAEE
RIEREFIE  YHRARFEMAS-F
—=F+-_A-BZHBREEMEAA -

R R FF RAR IR BB A AT 8 3 RTT e RO B
RN AFEREBRESSIRN - 17
% KRBT HOBRAEFITIT

Number of Share Options*
FRERE"
Lapsed/
Closing price Granted  Exercised  cancelled
per share  Exercise price Qutstanding during during during Outstanding
Grantees Date of grant (Note 1) per option  Exercise period asat1/7/2002  theYear  theYear  the Year asat 30/6/2023
MEEE  WoBCZF
SRRGUTE  SHEREZ gt MEEE  BRW/ ~A=1H
ARA RARH (Wit1) iR fEHm tA-REATE REFERH Bfif Fid TR
HKD HKD
T T
Director
-]
Jin Dongtao (resigned on 12/9/2017 157 1648 12110/2017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
12 December 2022)
8% (R2F22fF  ZF-tFAATCA - HFHATIRE
tZAt-Rgf) “EEAAT-R
Jin Dongkun 121912017 157 1.648 1211072017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 = = = 280,000
23R “E-EAATCR “E-LETATCRE
“ECEAAT-R
Zhao Zehua 12912017 157 1.648 1211072017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
HEE “E-tFAATCR EHETATORE
_7_t¢hﬂ$ B
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Number of Share Options*

RhRE#A"
Lapsed/
Closing price Granted  Exercised  cancelled
per share  Exercise price Qutstanding during during during Outstanding
Grantees Date of grant (Note 1) per option  Exercise period asat1/7/2022  theYear  theYear  theYear asat 30/6/2023
i =t
SRRHKTE  SHBREZ b2 WEEE  B&RY/ ~A=tA
ARA RHAH (1) ke k88 tA-BEATE REFERH Bfife il WA
HKD HKD
AT AT
Cheng Sheung Hing ~~ 4/3/2019 083 0.74 4412019 - 3/3/2029 50,000 - - - 50,000
ger “B-hEZARA “B-hWENANRZE
“E-NEZAZR
Chiang Su Hui Susie ~ 4/3/2019 083 0.74 41412019 - 3/3/2029 50,000 - - - 50,000
TZE “Z-NEZAMA “E-NEMAMAE
“E-NEZAZR
Continuous contract ~~ 12/9/2017 157 1648 12/10/2017 - 11/9/2027 18,880,000 - - - 18,880,000
employees
REANEER “B-tFAATCR “E-tETRAT-RES
E_HEAAT-R
4132019 083 0.74 4412019 - 3/3/2029 2,350,000 - - - 2,350,000
“B-NEZARA “E-NENANARE
ZE-NEZAZR
Others 12912007 157 1648 12102017 - 11/9/2027 280,000 - - - 280,000
i ZEHEAATIA Z2-tETATZRE
“ECLEAAT-R
4132019 083 0.74 41412019 - 3/3/2029 20,000 - - - 20,000
“2-NE=ARA “ENENANRE
ZECNEZRZR
Total 22,470,000 - - - 22,470,000
&5t
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The numbers of options, the closing price per Share and the
exercise price per option have been retrospectively adjusted for
the share consolidation on 14 December 2020.

The expiring dates of exercise periods of share options have been
amended and approved at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 10 December 2020.

Notes:

1) The closing price per Share refers to the closing price of the Share as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date immediately before the date
on which the Share Options were granted.

The number of Shares has been adjusted as a result of the Share Consolidation.

SHARE AWARD PLAN

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share Award
Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the Share Award Plan
are to recognize the contributions by eligible persons to the
Group and provide them with incentives in order to retain them
for continual operation and development of the Group and to
attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group.

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Plan shall be valid and effective for a term
of 10 years commencing on 23 April 2014. With a view to saving
costs, it was resolved by the Board to terminate the Share Award
Plan with effect from 21 December 2020. Since the termination of
the Share Award Plan, the Company has not adopted any share
award plan.

The Share Award Plan shall be subject to the administration of
the Board or the administration committee or the trustee of the
Share Award Plan in accordance with its terms. The Board or
the Remuneration Committee may select any eligible person for
participation in the Share Award Plan and determine the number
of awarded shares to be awarded to the selected person(s), subject
to any condition(s).

The Company has initially paid the trustee up to HKD50 million
to enable the Share Award Plan to operate. The Company may
at its discretion make further arrangements to fund the trustee
for acquisition of further shares. Subject to the instruction of the
Company, the trustee can use the money paid to it to buy shares
in advance in respect of which the Company can make awards
under the Share Award Plan.
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The Board shall not make any further award of shares under the
Share Award Plan which will result in the nominal value of the
shares awarded exceeding 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at 23 April 2014. The maximum number of shares
which may be awarded to a selected person under the Share
Award Plan in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. Based on
the 2,000,000,000 shares in issue as at 23 April 2014, the maximum
number of awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would
be 200,000,000 shares. As retrospectively adjusted for the share
consolidation on 14 December 2020, the maximum number of
awarded shares under the Share Award Plan would be 20,000,000.

An aggregate of 1,699,300 shares has been granted and vested
without consideration to an aggregate of 13 grantees under the
Share Award Plan since its inception. As at 30 June 2023, the
trustee of the Share Award Plan did not hold any shares under the
Share Award Plan, and no share has been granted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

On 24 March 2023, the Company entered into four subscription
agreements with four subscribers for the subscription of an
aggregate of 111,258,272 new Shares at the subscription price of
HKDO.12 per share.

For details of the above subscription agreements, please refer to
the announcement of the Company dated 24 March 2023.

Save for the above subscription agreements, no equity-linked
agreement was entered by the Company or existed during the
Year.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of shares or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or
were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, or their respective spouse or children under 18 years of
age, to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, to the best knowledge of the Directors, the
following persons (not being a Director or chief executive of
the Company) had interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

EEWEROEERNER

B T AERAIEWBEEI  RAFEEMAE
& - BEER DR T ENEFHARES
QMEE@@Z*%B&E’U%? B BB

NA D KEEE MER - WEIFEITEE
2 FHER + AR R] Sk EAE KB Q] IR

IR ASEFREEEENRE
AWM 18R F XN AT EMEABRES
A ERER o

TERRARGRABRG OESR
wA

MEBEEEM RZE-_=FA=+AH"
LAT/\i(I@Eﬁ%E}ZZ’KQﬂEEﬁE{)\E)
RSB G P B REBESFEATR
B EEXVEB B2 K357 B RSB M A R &) B Bt

R E BARA R BIREE 5B E 5P
FEBFFENELMECHERIAR

Number and Approximate

class of Shares/ percentage of

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest underlying Shares shareholding®
13 AEE R 7
wE/ BB B Rt B ERER BOKERBES O
Lee Funglun Beneficial owner (Note 1) 24,240,518 3.63%
(Long Position)
FUp EmmEaAN (Mi1) (5FE)
Asia Health Century Beneficial owner (Note 2) 90,701,495 13.59%
International Inc. (Long Position)
BalEBAAN (Hi2) (FE)
Notes: iirsa
1) As previously confirmed by Mr. Lee Funglun, the 24,240,518 Shares held by him was bought 1) pﬁ‘zﬁuﬁgﬁ&;%i??ﬁuﬁ’ﬁ& * ELPHS A §924,240,5180%
from Zhongrong International Alternative Asset Management Limited on 26 February el RZF— 7'L£F A= Jr/\Elg%ﬁq:‘wﬁ@!wD*ﬁ
2019. No further disclosure of interest has been filed by him thereafter despite that his éq/z”:@ﬁ PRAE] - BEMELDRERIENS% - Hig

interest in the Company falls below 5%.

2) Asia Health Century International Inc. is wholly-owned by Global Health Century
International Group Ltd. which is in turn wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Chuanfu, the chairman
of the Board and an executive Director.

3) As at 30 June 2023, there were 667,549,632 Shares in issue.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2023, the Directors were not
aware of any persons (who were not Directors or chief executive
of the Company) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or which would be required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed

securities.

SUBSCRIPTION OF NEW SHARES UNDER GENERAL MANDATE

On 4 April 2023, the Company allotted and issued a total of
111,258,272 new Shares to four subscribers, who are independent
third parties, under general mandate at the subscription price
HKDO.12 per Share i.e. the Subscription. The newly issued Shares
represent approximately 20.0% of the total issued shares of the
Company as enlarged by the newly issued Shares. Net proceeds of
approximately HKD13.1 million were raised under the Subscription.

For details of the Subscription, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 24 March 2023. As at 30 June 2023, the
Company had a total of 667,549,632 shares in issue.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles
of Association or the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands where the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing Shareholders.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

Each of the controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the Company
of his/her/its compliance with the non-competition undertakings
provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition (the
"Deed of Non-Competition”).
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Pursuant to the Deed of Non-Competition, the independent non-
executive Directors are responsible for reviewing and considering
whether exercising any option and/or pre-emptive right (where
applicable), as well as entitled to conduct annual review of
implementation of the Deed of Non-Competition on behalf of
the Company. The controlling Shareholders have confirmed in
writing to the Company of their compliance with the Deed of
Non- Competition for disclosure in this annual report for the
Year. During the Year, the independent non-executive Directors
have also reviewed the implementation of the Deed of Non-
Competition, and confirmed that the controlling Shareholders
have fully abided by the Deed of Non- Competition without any
breach of the Deed of Non-Competition.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or their
respective associates has engaged in or has any interest in any
business which competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related parties transactions disclosed in Note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements, there were no contract of
significance to which the Company, its holding companies and
any of its subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Directors confirm that the Group had not entered into any
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions for
the Year which are required to be disclosed in this annual report
pursuant to the Listing Rules. A summary of significant related
party transactions, which do not constitute connected transactions,
made during the Year is disclosed in Note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Company confirms that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Year, the Group made some medication donations.

During the Year, the Group continued to perform its social
responsibility by constantly organizing innovative caring projects,
such as Love China Charity Award Ceremony, Charity In Action,
Love China Medical Support, Love China Education Aid Program
and Love China Square Dance, so as to enhance its recognition
and reputation through charity activities.

SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or claim of
material importance is known to the Directors to be pending or
threatened against the Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, each Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company
against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by him as a
Director in defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in
which judgment is given in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover for the
Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate activities.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Zou Haiyan (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to examine, review and monitor the financial data
and financial reporting procedure of the Group, and overseeing
the Group's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems. The Audit Committee had reviewed the
audited annual results of the Group for the Year.
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CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code contained in the Listing
Rules. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
the Directors have confirmed that they had complied with such
code of conduct throughout the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has complied with all applicable code provisions
under the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the "Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) throughout the Year, except for deviation
from code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will
continue to review and enhance its corporate governance practices
to ensure compliance with the CG Code.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not be
performed by the same individual. During the Year, despite that
the responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company vested in Mr. Chu Chuanfu (the chairman of the
Board, the chief executive officer and the chief operation officer),
all major decisions are made in consultation with the Board. The
Board considers that there is sufficient balance of power and the
current corporate arrangement maintains a strong management
position of the Company.

Save for the above, the Company had complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the Year and,
where appropriate, the applicable recommended best practices
of the CG Code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance Report on
pages 66 to 86 of this annual report.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company's
total issued share capital, the prescribed minimum percentage
of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted
under the Listing Rules, are held by the public at all times as of
the date of this report.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2023 AGM to re-appoint
Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”), Certified Public Accountants, as
the auditor of the Company.

SHARE ISSUED

Details of the Company’s shares issued during the Year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and Note
20 to the consolidated financial statements.

DEBENTURES ISSUED

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had issued any of the Company's listed securities.

On behalf of the Board

Chu Chuanfu
Chairman

Hong Kong
27 September 2023
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DEEARE

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
in the annual report of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards
of corporate governance to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability.
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code and
complied with all applicable code provisions under the CG Code
throughout the Year, except for deviation from code provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code. The Company will continue to review and
enhance its corporate governance practices to ensure compliance
with the CG Code.

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business
and performance. The Board has delegated the authority
and responsibility for day-to-day management and operation
of the Group to the senior management of the Group. To
oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, the Board
has established three Board committees, including the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (together, the "Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in
their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability insurance to
indemnify the Directors for their liabilities arising out of corporate
activities. The insurance coverage will be reviewed on an annual
basis.
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Board Composition

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors, namely
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Chief
operation officer), Mr. Jin Dongkun (Vice chairman) and Mr. Zhao
Zehua, and three independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing, Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie and Mr. Zou
Haiyan. The biographies of the Directors are set out under the
section headed "Directors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.

For the Year, the Board at all times met the requirements of the
Rules 3.10(1), 3.10A and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
Directors with at least one independent non-executive Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise and the number of
independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive Director of his/her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence guidelines as
set out in the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management” of this annual report, none of the Directors has
any personal relationship (including financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationship), with any other Director and
the chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors,
have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient
and effective functioning. Independent non-executive Directors
are invited to serve on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee.

As regards the CG Code provision requiring directors to disclose
the number and nature of offices held in public companies or
organisations and other significant commitments as well as the
identities of the public companies or organisations and the time
involved, Directors have agreed to disclose such commitments (if
any) to the Company in a timely manner.
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Induction and Continuous Professional Development

Each newly appointed Director is provided with necessary induction
training and information to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as
well as his/her responsibilities under relevant statues, laws, rules
and regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars
to provide Directors with updates on latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory
requirements from time to time. The Directors are also provided
with regular updates on the Company's performance, position
and prospects to enable the Board as a whole and each Director
to discharge their duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
During the Year, all Directors participated in various continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The Company’s external lawyers had facilitated directors’
training by the provision of presentations, briefings and materials
for the Directors primarily relating to the roles, functions and
duties of a director of a listed company. All the Directors have
received such training.

The Company maintains records of training attended by the
Directors. The training attended by the Directors during the Year
is as follows:

ABRBSEERRE

FERMTENESORIEHCZH AR
REF - BREHARQFNEENEBIUAR
HRBRER &0 - RAIRGHI THEE
BEERENER - NABINERLHEER
T AT AESREARE ETRAINARE
AR REERENRNER REFTH
RHER c EENEHERHARARFR
B MARASNERER  UEESEE
BLEEFETHRE -

ARRIBBEZT2EBEERER - UEE
I B EFHARB SRR - NFE - 28E
FLHERBRETIXER  UBRELEHRE
FOMB LI - RABHINERMAES
RETBEMLETRRESHB - Bt
BERRL - BHREME BARESE
Jl - 2RERHEXBULIAET -

ARRRFEZZINFINLE - AFEE
E2EIERMOT

Internal training

S
Executive Directors HiITES
Mr. Jin Dongkun TRERE v
Mr. Zhao Zehua HOEE S v/
Mr. Chu Chuanfu TNNE F 4 v/
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Resigned on 12 December 2022) & @E4E (RZFZ—F+ = A+ =HFF) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing B v
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRERL v
Mr. Zou Haiyan WEIEE v
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company has complied with the code provisions as set out
in the CG Code throughout the Year except for a deviation from
code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Under code provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive officer should be separated and should not
be performed by the same individual. During the Year, despite
the responsibilities of the chairman and the chief executive officer
of the Company vested in Mr. Chu Chuanfu, all major decisions
were made in consultation with the Board. The Board considers
that there is sufficient balance of power and the current corporate
arrangement maintains a strong management position of the
Company.

Save as the deviation from the code provision C.2.1 of the CG
Code, in the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied
with all code provisions as set out in the CG Code during the
Year and, where appropriate, the applicable recommended best
practices of the CG Code.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
and any new Director appointed to fill a causal vacancy shall
submit himself/herself for election by Shareholders at the first
general meeting of the Company after his/her appointment and
new Director appointed as an addition to the Board shall submit
himself/herself for re-election by Shareholders at the next general
meeting of the Company after his/her appointment.

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and
removal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the Board
composition and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment or re-election of Directors and succession planning
for Directors.
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The Company has renewed the service contracts or letters of
appointments (as the case may be) with each of the Directors.
All Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) are
appointed without a specific term; however all Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) are subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years and are subject to re-
election in accordance with the Articles of Association.

Board Meetings

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of not less than fourteen days are given for all
regular Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity
to attend and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.
For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable notice
is generally given. The agenda and accompanying Board papers
are dispatched to the Directors or the Board committee members
at least three days before the meetings to ensure that they have
sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately prepared for
the meetings. When Directors or the Board committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters
to be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views
known to the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings
are kept by the company secretary with copies circulated to all
Directors for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail the matters considered by the Board
and the Board committees and the decisions reached, including
any concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting are sent to the Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the date on which
the meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open
for inspection by Directors.
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For the Year, Board meetings and general meeting were heldand ZAFE ' ERTHNEESSRARERS -
the attendance of the individual Directors at these meetings is set JEEBHLFEZELHNBRABENTEK
out in the table below:
Attended/Eligible to attend
Directors 4= EHERE A ERE
Board Meetings General Meeting
EXEER BRRXE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Chairman) N xrE ()
(Appointed as Chairman on (R=ZZF=—=—F+=-H+=H
12 December 2022) BZERTRE) 4/4 1”1
Mr. Jin Dongkun eRELE 4/4 11
Mr. Zhao Zehua HEE S 4/4 11
Mr. Dongtao (Resigned on ERBEE (RZFE_—F
12 December 2022) +=A+=HEF) 2/4 N/A
Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EREEFE S A 4/4 171
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie P Y 4/4 11
Mr. Zou Haiyan 2 EA 4/4 11

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Specific
enquiries has been made with all the Directors and each of the
Directors has confirmed that he/she has complied with the Model
Code throughout the Year.

During the Year, the Company had also adopted its own code of
conduct regarding employees’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the standard set out in the Model Code for
the compliance by its relevant employees who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company in
respect of their dealings in the Company's securities.
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Delegation by the Board

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, risk management and internal
control systems, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant financial and operational matters.
Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional
advice in performing their duties at the Company’s expense and
are encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s
senior management independently.

The daily management, administration and operation of the
Group are delegated to the senior management. The delegated
functions and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the
Board. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions entered into by the senior management.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board recognizes that corporate governance should be the
collective responsibility of Directors and they are responsible
for the corporate governance duties. The Audit Committee will
develop and review the policies and procedures on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board. The
aforesaid duties include:

(a) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

(c) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors;

(d) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the

Board and report to the Board on matters;

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report; and

(f) to review and monitor the Company's compliance with the
Company’s whistleblowing policy.
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During the Year, the Company has updated the compliance
manuals on notifiable transactions and inside information in
accordance with the Listing Rules as guideline for its employees
to report unpublished inside information to the Company to ensure
consistent and timely disclosure and fulfillment of the Company's
continuous disclosure obligations.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Chu Chuanfu (executive Director), Mr. Cheng Sheung
Hing (independent non-executive Director) and Ms. Chiang Su
Hui Susie (independent non-executive Director), the majority of
them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Chu Chuanfu
serves as the chairman.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include the
following:

e To review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) required of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes;

e Toidentify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors;

e  To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or
re-appointment of and succession planning for Directors; and

e To assess the independence of independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee will assess the candidate or incumbent
on criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit
time and effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be
put to the Board for decision. The written terms of reference are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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During the Year, 1 meeting of the Nomination Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Nomination Committee
members is set out in the table below:

B RREEeCRTIREH 24
CEMEFEEEEN TR

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors = BHERE W ERE
Mr. Chu Chuanfu IS4 1/1
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EEE A 1/1
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRFZ+ 1/1

During the meeting, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of independent non-executive Directors, considered
the re-election of the retiring Directors and reviewed the time
commitment required from the independent non-executive
Directors. The Nomination Committee has also reviewed the board
diversity policy to ensure its effectiveness and is of the view that
the board diversity policy is appropriate and of the further view
the composition of the Board is appropriate and complied with

the diversity policy.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy and summary
of the board diversity policy is set out below:

The Nomination Committee is authorised to formulate nomination
policy for the Board’s consideration and implement the nomination
procedures and the process and criteria adopted to select and
recommend candidates for directorship. The objectives of the
Board diversity policy are to ensure the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives which are
appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business. It
also sets out that all Board members will be appointed based on
merit basis with due consideration to the Board diversity. While
selecting candidates for directorship, the committee has taken
into account of a range of diversity perspectives, including but
not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
experience and qualification, skills and knowledge. Currently,
the Board consists of 6 members having expertise in various
aspects of professional knowledge and experience which include
the familiarity with its business model, finance, accounting, taxation
management and compliance, etc. For details, please refer to the
section headed "Directors and Senior Management” in this report
for brief biographies of the Directors.
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In reviewing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
shall give adequate consideration to the Board diversity policy.
The committee believes that the current composition of the
Board is balanced and diversified with the high-calibre members
from different cultural backgrounds and possessing professional
expertise of various industries, which indicates that the diversity
policy has been well implemented. The main responsibilities
of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure, size
and composition (including the age, gender, skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board at least once a year and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
implement the Company's corporate strategy, and identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and select or
make recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships, the appointment or re-appointment
and succession planning for the Directors. The committee is also
responsible for assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

In terms of workforce of the Group, as at 30 June 2023, the
Group has 2,555 full-time employees (including the Board
and senior management). Among which, there were 458 male
employees and 2,097 female employees. The Company aims to
further enhance its diversity in workforce by introducing more
staff with different sex and age (subject to job nature) and
expects to perform a further review of its diversity in workforce
by 30 June 2024.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee currently comprises three members,
namely Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing (independent non-executive
Director), Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie (independent non-executive
Director) and Mr. Jin Dongkun (executive Director), the majority
of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Cheng
Sheung Hing serves as the chairman.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include
making recommendations on and approving the remuneration
policy and structure and remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing transparent
procedures for formulating such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no Director or any of his/her close associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions. It also makes recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors. The written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company.

During the Year, 1 meeting of the Remuneration Committee was
held and the attendance record of the Remuneration Committee
members is set out in the table below:

FHREENEIZREERASIITESR
B ARETEA B R B R K A 1 A K A
SRHEEEER - Wl RLIE - HFME
BENBBEMHIR]A BB KSR RE
BRI  UERMEEFEHHENER
BBEAGSERE ARG FE - A B
BREZE[MARRRRRBIARTIZED K
BRLETE - FHEESNHIFERTEEH
MrAEEeREEEER - BRSEBESR
BB P S AN R B AT ER] -

Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors BE= BHERE W ERE
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BREE A S A 11
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBRT 1/
Mr. Jin Dongkun BREEE 1/1

During the meeting, the Remuneration Committee discussed
and reviewed the remuneration policy for Directors and senior
management of the Company, and made recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management, including adjustment on the
remuneration of some senior management for the Year. The
Board has adopted the recommendation from the Remuneration
Committee and resolved to approve the aforesaid adjustment.

No option under the Share Option Scheme had been recommended
by the Remuneration Committee during the Year.

The remuneration of one former senior management of the

Company, Mr. Ge Junming, falls within the band from RMBO
million to RMB1.0 million for the Year.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three members, namely
Mr. Zou Haiyan, Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing and Ms. Chiang Su Hui
Susie, all of them are independent non-executive Directors. Mr.
Zou Haiyan serves as the chairman.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

e  To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items raised by the Company’s
staff responsible for the accounting and financial reporting
function, compliance officer or auditors before submission to
the Board;

e To review the relationship with the external auditor by
reference to the work performed by the auditor, its fees and
terms of engagement, and make recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of
external auditor;

e To review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company'’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems and associated procedures, including the
adequacy of the resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting
and financial reporting function; and

e To review the Group's financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems.

During the Year, 2 meetings of the Audit Committee were held
and the attendance record of the Audit Committee members is
set out in the table below:

EERRE
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Attended/Eligible to attend

Directors BE EHERE W HERE
Mr. Zou Haiyan ;e E 2/2
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing EREERE LA 2/2
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRBL LT 2/2
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During the meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the financial
reporting system, compliance procedures, risk management and
internal control systems (including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function) and
processes and the re-appointment of the external auditor. The
Board had accepted the recommendation given by the Audit
Committee on the selection and re-appointment of external
auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the financial year as well as
the audit report prepared by the auditor relating to accounting
issues and major findings in course of audit. There are proper
arrangements for employees, in confidence, to raise concerns
about possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control
and risk management and other matters. The written terms of
reference are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING
IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the Year which give a true and fair view
of the affairs of the Company and the Group and of the Group's
results and cash flows.

The senior management has provided to the Board such
explanation and information as are necessary to enable the Board
to carry out an informed assessment of the Company’s financial
statements, which are put to the Board for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement by the independent auditor of the Company
regarding its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 95 to 108 of this annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS
Goals and objectives

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board
to maintain an adequate risk management and internal control
systems to safeguard the Shareholders’ investments and the
Company's assets, and review the effectiveness of such systems
on an ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control
systems are designed for managing risks rather than eliminating
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities
(with relevant authorities) of risk management and internal controls
to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee, on behalf of
the Board, oversees management in the design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and management has provided a confirmation to the
Audit Committee and the Board on the effectiveness of these
systems for the Year.

Main features of the risk management and internal control systems

The Group's risk governance structure and the main responsibilities
of each level of the structure are summarised below:

Board

e Determine the business strategies and objectives of the
Group, and evaluate and determine the nature and extent
of risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic
objectives;

e Ensure that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems;
and

e Oversee management in design, implementation and
monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems.
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Audit Committee

Assist the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk

management and internal control systems;

Oversee the Group's risk management and internal control
systems on an ongoing basis;

Review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems at least annually, and such
review should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control;

Ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions,
as well as those relating to ESG performance and reporting;
and

Consider major findings on risk management and internal
control matters, and report and make recommendations to
the Board.

Management

80

Review the risk management and internal control policy
and measures and submit them for the Audit Committee’s

approval;

Design, implement and maintain appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control systems;

Identify, evaluate and manage the risk that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

Monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks in day-to-
day operations;

Give prompt responses to and follow up the findings on
risk management and internal control matters raised by the
internal audit department; and

Provide confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on

the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.
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Internal Audit Department
e Review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control systems; and

* Report to the Audit Committee the findings of the review
and make recommendations to the Board and management
to improve the material systems deficiencies or control
weaknesses identified.

Supervisor and Staff
e Consider how to conduct their responsibilities in light of
effectiveness of internal control; and

e Discuss with management for strengthening internal control.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant risks

The processes used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks (include, amongst others, material risks relating to ESG) by
the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e Develop risk management plan; and

e Identify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assess the risks identified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e Consider the impact on the business and the likelihood of
their occurrence.

Risk Response
e  Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment; and

e Determine the risk management strategies, contingency plans
and internal control processes to prevent, avoid and mitigate
the risks.
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Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e  Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensure that appropriate internal control processes are in
place;

e  Revise the risk management strategies, contingency plans and
internal control processes in case of any significant change
of environment; and

e Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.

The Board continuously oversees the risk management and internal
control systems, ensure that a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems has been conducted
annually for the reporting period and the period cover all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.

During the Year, the Board, through the Audit Committee, reviewed
all risk management functions and material internal controls,
including financial, operational and compliance control. Based
on its management experience, the Group further strengthened
the establishment of internal audit system, outlined the internal
control functions and enhanced risk management. The Group also
formulated the “Guide on Internal Control and Risk Management
—Hong Kong Branch” ( {RBFER1E & &R & 32 FH(FEE 2 &F)) ) to
continuously enhance the level of risk management and internal
controls. The Board therefore considered that the risk management
and internal control systems are effective and adequate during the
Year. In addition, it has also reviewed and has satisfied with the
adequacy of resources, staff qualification and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Group's accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions.

Internal Audit Function

The Group's internal audit function is performed by the Group's
internal audit department, which reports directly to the Audit
Committee. The Group's internal audit department plays a major
role in the assessment of the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group and reports directly to
the Audit Committee on a regular basis.
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The internal audit department conducts internal audit reviews on
material controls and compliance with policies and procedures
of the Group at both operational and corporate level. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are identified
and communicated with operations management to address any
issues, non-compliance or deficiencies identified. The internal audit
department monitors the implementation of its recommendations
by the operations management and reports the outcome to the
Audit Committee.

Handling and dissemination of inside information

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information
in accordance with the Listing Rules and the SFO, the Group
has taken various procedures and measures, including arousing
the awareness to preserve confidentiality of inside information
with the Group, sending blackout period and securities dealing
restrictions notification to the relevant directors and employees
regularly, disseminating information to specified persons on a
need-to-know basis and regarding closely to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and
Futures Commission in June 2012.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Mazars is the independent auditor of the Company. During the
Year, the professional fees paid or payable to Mazars for services
rendered are set out below:
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Bt ENER

RMB’000

ARBFT

Audit services BT RIS 1,828
Non-audit services for interim report IEE RS — B 480
Total a5t 2,308

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ge Junming, the sole company secretary of the Company,
is responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that the Board policy and procedures, and
the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
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During the Year, Mr. Ge Junming has undertaken not less than
15 hours of relevant professional training in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. Ge Junming has resigned from being the company secretary
of the Company with effect from 28 September 2023. Following
the resignation of Mr. Je Ge Junming, Ms. Hui Kit Ying has
been appointed as the company secretary of the Company with
effect from 28 September 2023. For the biography of Ms. Hui
Kit Ying, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 28 September 2023.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective disclosure of information, which will enable Shareholders
and investors to make the informed investment decisions.

AGM(s) provide opportunity for Shareholders to communicate
directly with the Directors. The Chairman, the chairmen of the
Board Committees will attend AGM to answer Shareholders’
questions. The external auditor will also attend AGM to answer
questions about the conduct of the audit, the preparation and
content of the auditor’s report, the accounting policies and auditor
independence.

To promote effective communication, the Company adopts a
shareholders’ communication policy which aims at establishing a
two-way relationship and communication between the Company
and Shareholders and maintains a website at www.uhighl.com,
where the up-to-date information on the Company's business
operations and developments, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public

access.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at Shareholders’
meetings, including the election of individual Directors.
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All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward proposals

Under the Articles of Association, any two or more Shareholders
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth (1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries
the right of voting at general meeting, and any one Shareholder
which is a recognized clearing house (or its nominee(s)) holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth
(1/10) of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the
right of voting at general meeting, can require an extraordinary
general meeting ("EGM") to be called and put forward proposals
at the meeting. The procedures for Shareholders to convene and
put forward proposals at an EGM are stated as follows:

(1) The requisitionist(s) should sign a written request stating
the objects of the meeting to be convened, and deposit the
same at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong situated at Room 2404, 24th Floor, World-Wide
House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong for
the attention of the company secretary.

(2) Where, within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Directors do not proceed to convene an EGM,
the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the general meeting in the same manner, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board, provided that
any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to
the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.
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Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders who intend to put forward their enquiries about
the Company to the Board could send their enquiries to the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room
2404, 24th Floor, World-Wide House, 19 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong or to email address: ir@uhi-group.com.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

On 20 October 2022, the Board proposed to amend the Company'’s
memorandum of association and articles of association (the “M&A")
to (i) conform the Existing M&A to the Core Shareholder Protection
Standards set out in Appendix 3 to the Listing Rules; (ii) reflect
certain updates in relation to the Listing Rules and the applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands; and (iii) make other consequential and
housekeeping improvements. Details of the amendments are set
out in the circular of the Company date 20 October 2022 to the
Shareholders.

The amended and restated M&A were adopted by a special
resolution passed at the AGM held on 12 December 2022. An up-
to-date version of the amended and restated M&A is available on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

Saved as disclosed above, no other changes were made to the
constitutional documents of the Company for the Year.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESkeREERE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. CHU Chuanfu (#1JIIE), aged 53, is the chief operation officer
of the Group and has been appointed as an executive Director
and the chief executive officer, with effect from 1 August 2021.
He joined the Group in 1999.

Other experience:

e 1993 -2005: Qigihar Second Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (575 15
M E R EFR N ) with the last position held as Department
Head of Administration

e 2006 - 2010: Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical
Distribution Co., Ltd. (RETESRELBELHBRAQA)
a wholly-owned sub5|d|ary of the Company, with the last
position held as Deputy General Manager of the Administration
Department

Education:

e 1993: graduated from the Harbin University of Civil Engineering
and Architecture* ("B /B ZE TFE2Pt), China with a major

in coal chemical engineering

e  2013: graduated from Scandinavian Art and Business Institute,
Finland through distance learning with a Master of Business
Administration

Mr. Chu has not held any directorships in any other publicly listed
companies over the past three years.
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Mr. JIN Dongkun (£RE), aged 50, was appointed as the vice
chairman of the Board and an executive Director on 12 March
2012. He is one of the co-founders of the Group and has served
as business manager, general manager and vice president of
the Group since June 1998. He is responsible for overseeing the
Group's external affairs and relationships.

Mr. Jin Dongkun has over 24 years of experience in the
pharmaceutical distribution industry and in marketing.

Other experience:

e 2010 - September 2014: vice chairman of the Heilongjiang
Alliance of Pharmaceutical Retailers (58T 22/5 5 83)

e November 2014 - present: vice chairman of the China Medical
Pharmaceutical Material Association (47 B 22 Z47)°& &)

Education:

e December 1994: graduated from Harbin Engineering University
(M FR/E T2 K2 with a major in Electric Technology

e July2013: obtained a Master's degree in Business Management
in a programme run by the Scandinavian Art and Business
Institute

Mr. Jin Dongkun is qualified as a practising pharmacist and a senior

economist in China. He has not held any directorships in any other
publicly listed companies over the past three years.
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Mr. ZHAO Zehua (#E%), aged 55, was appointed as the general
manager of finance of the Group in October 2011 and was
appointed as an executive Director on 16 June 2015. He joined the
Group in January 2005 as financial controller and was promoted to
his current position in October 2011. He is responsible for financial
control and management. He has over 34 years of experience
in financial management, with particular expertise in financial
accounting, treasury and internal control.

Other experience:

e August 1989 — May 2001: head of finance at Hebei Chengde
Tianyuan Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (At & A BKRIREXFR
RA)

e June 2001 — December 2004: manager of finance and deputy
general manager of Hebei Chengde Tianyuan Pharmaceutical

Co., Ltd. (LB ARBRREX AR A F)

e January 2003 - December 2004: manager of finance and
deputy general manager of Chengde Pharmaceutical Group
Liuhe Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (R{EZE#£ EE NS REFR S
ERa)

Education:

e July 1992: graduated from Hebei Radio and Television
University (AI1LEEERKZE) with a major in Finance and
Accounting

Mr. Zhao is a qualified accountant in China. He has not held any
directorships in any other publicly listed companies over the past
three years.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHENG Sheung Hing (BF# ), aged 75, was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013.
Mr. Cheng is a senior economist of People’s Bank of China with
many years of experience in foreign exchange management and
management of pharmaceutical companies and listed companies.

Other experience:

e 1982 - 1985: in charge of the foreign affairs of Beijing
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. Jt R E %42\ 7)) and stores for
new drugs and specific drugs

e 1986 — 1995: deputy administrative officer of Non-trade
Department and Inspection Department of the State
Administration of Foreign Exchange (Bl /MEEE )

Directorships:

e 1995 - 2002: assistant to the general manager and assistant
to board chairman of Wing On Travel (Holdings) Limited (3K
LHRFEGERR) B R A F]), a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 01189)

e 2003 - 2005: assistant to board chairman of Heng Fai
Enterprises Limited (EE{bZ X B R A 7)) (now known as ZH
International Holdings Ltd. IE1BBIFRIEAR B R A R), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
00185)

e 2005 - 2013: independent non-executive director of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (BBt & ERIZR AR A
A]) (formerly known as China Outdoor Media Group Limited
FEIFIMEREEE BB R /AF]), a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00254)
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Education: HEES

—hANZF: ZXARLELRKEES

e 1982: graduated from the formerly known as School of

Economics of Peking University (1t 7487 E2FT) (now known Bt (School of Economics Peking
as Capital University of Economics and Business & #P4% % & University) (IR R B HEBEEH KE
S RZ) with a major in Trading Economics Capital University of Economics and

Business) " BB SR BEEE T2
Save as disclosed above, Mr. Cheng has not held any directorships B EXFTiEEEIN - RIBE=ZFRN » BLE

in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years. W REEEAE 0 LR B AT = EB
ﬁ o
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENREREEE

Ms. CHIANG Su Hui Susie (L&), aged 76, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 18 November 2013. Ms.
Chiang has over 31 years of experience in governmental affairs,
treasury and cross-straits relations.

Other experience:

e December 1991 — March 1994:
Government Information Office of the Executive Yuan of
Taiwan (B E7THIT#HEB)

the representative of

e March 1994 — December 2004: in charge of the Taiwanese
Kwang-hwa Information and Culture Centre (& /& ZEHE X

e

e April 2002: established the C S Forum (&)L#18) and the C S
Corp. Consultancy Limited (/LB AR 2 7)) in Hong Kong
with a goal of promoting cross-straits economic and trade
communications

Current positions:

e member of the Hong Kong-Taiwan Cultural Co-operation
Committee of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region

EEFRBABGXILAERES)

e chairwoman of the C S Culture Foundation (/L X/t mE
&)

e chairwoman of the C S Corp. Consultancy Limited (&)LE&fH
BRAT)

e chairwoman of the C S Finance & Investment Company

Limited (BT & B B EBEHR AT

e honourary chairwoman of the Taiwan Business Association
(Hong Kong) Limited (B8 A E TEHE)

Education:

e July 1969: graduated from the Taiwan National Chung Hsing
University (& /2B K E2) with a major in laws

Ms. Chiang has not held any directorships in any other publicly
listed companies over the past three years.
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Mr. ZOU Haiyan (#0#8#), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 20 July 2017. Mr. Zou has
over 36 years of experience in the financial services industry. He
has been a training instructor and guest lecturer of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants Hong Kong, International
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Hong Kong, Hong
Kong Chinese Accountants Association, continuing education of
Shanghai University of Finance and Economics Institute, Hainan
Local Taxation Bureau, Huangshan Local Taxation Bureau, Qingdao
Provincial SAT Office and Shenzhen Municipal SAT Office; and an
associate professor of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

Other experience:

e July 2001 — November 2003: certified public accountant of
Guangdong Kangyuan Certified Public Accountants (&% &
TR RN =TSP

e December 2003 — August 2009: chief partner of Guangdong
Gaowick Certified Public Accountants (B % = i3 & 5T AT E 75 FM)

e March 2001 — August 2018: managing director of China Tax
and Business Consultants Company Limited (1 BI%: 75575
BEEAR AR

overlapping of business)

) (the company ceased business due to the

Current positions:

* managing director of Kaowick Listing and Financial Services

Company Limited (i TRt & RTE B R A A

e partner of Shenzhen Guangshen Certified Public Accountants

(RYNE RS FHED S A

e independent non-executive director of Shenzhen Asia
Electricity Co., Ltd., a company listed on National Equities
Exchange and Quotations in China (RYIZEME HRDER A
al)

e independent non-executive director and members of the
audit committee of Anchorstone Holdings Limited (EAER
HBRAF]), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock

Exchange (stock code: 01592)
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RECTORS AND
EERERE

Education:

e July 1985: graduated from Guangdong Provincial Finance
School in Taxation (BR%& M HKER)

e January 2015: graduated from University of Electronic Science
and Technology in Human Resources Management (B F 1%

KE)

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Zou has not held any directorships
in any other publicly listed companies over the past three years.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B2 AR S

mazdars

To the members of
Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Universal
Health International Group Holding Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the "Group”) set out on pages 109
to 262, which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 30
June 2023, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2023, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ("IFRSs”) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance.

MAazARrs CPA LIMITED

r 8 08 B (0t ) o 5 A B0
42nd Floor, Central Plaza,

18 Harbour Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
A AT 1858 Th BRI 42 M

Tel & ifi: (852) 2909 5555

FaxfH EL: (852) 2810 0032

Email & %:info@mazars.hk
Website# 1k :www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards
on Auditing (“ISAs”) issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “IESBA Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of mostsignificance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements for the current year. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Key Audit Matter

HARETSEE

Assessment of the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

Refer to notes 2.2 and 4(h) to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had reported a net loss of RMB106,115,000 for the
year ended 30 June 2023 and, as at that date, the Group had net
current liabilities of RMB31,053,000. Note 2.2 to the consolidated
financial statements explains how the directors have formed
a judgement that the going concern basis is appropriate in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Management evaluated the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern based upon an assessment of the Group's cash position,
a cash flow forecast, and its availability to obtain financing
facilities. This required the exercise of significant management
judgement, particularly in forecasting the Group's future revenue,
gross profit, operating expenses and capital expenditure and
in assessing the Group's ability to renew the existing and other
financing facilities. Based on their assessment, the management
concluded that there are no material uncertainties related to
events or conditions which, individually or collectively, may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going

concern.

We identified the assessment of the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern as a key audit matter because the assessment
is dependent upon certain management assumptions and
judgements, in particular in relation to future revenue and the
ability of the Group to obtain external financing, which may be
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EMNEFSUNMEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key

procedures:

(a)

98

We evaluated the key assumptions in the cash flow forecasts
(including future revenue, gross profit, operating expenses
and capital expenditure) with reference to historical sales
information, current performance, internal management
plans, market condition and other external available
information;

We assessed the availability of banking and other loan
facilities and arrangements by inspecting underlying
documentation, which included facility agreements signed
before and after the reporting period, and assessing the
impact of any covenants and other restrictive terms therein;

We assessed the Group's ability to renew or refinance
existing banking and other financing facilities upon maturity
by performing a retrospective review of past renewal or
roll-over history of banking and other loan facilities in prior

years;

We assessed the sensitivities of the key assumptions adopted
by management in the going concern assessment and
considering whether management has incorporated any
bias in the selection of such assumption, and assessing the
impact on the conclusion of the going concern assessment;
and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in

respect of the going concern assumption with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting standard.
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Key Audit Matter

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B ZEE RS

BEETEE

Impairment assessment of a logistics building included in
property, plant and equipment — Distribution segment

Refer to notes 4(b) and 7 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had a logistics building included
in the property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of
RMB174,753,000 located in Jiamusi, the People’'s Republic of
China (the “"PRC").

During the year, the Group had utilised certain areas of the
logistics building as warehouse for its distribution business and
continued to seek out its opportunities to develop the logistics
business. In view of the current low usage rate as warehousing
for the distribution segment, management considered that there
were indicators of impairment of the logistics building existed at
30 June 2023 and performed an impairment assessment thereon.

Management performed an impairment assessment of the
logistic building with reference to a valuation performed by an
independent and qualified professional valuer (the “Valuer”) by
using the fair value less cost of disposal model and compared the
carrying amount of the logistics building to determine the amount
of impairment which should be recognised for the year. For the
determination of the fair value less costs of disposal, management
used the depreciated replacement cost method that reflects the
cost to a market participant to construct assets of comparable
utility and age, adjusted for obsolescence. Based on the results
of the impairment assessment, management concluded that the
recoverable amount of the logistics building was higher than its

carrying amount and no impairment was required.

We identified this matter as a key audit matter because of the
significance of the use of judgements and estimates in assessing
the impairment of this significant asset. These key estimates
include the estimated useful life and replacement costs adopted
in the depreciated replacement cost calculations.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EMNEFSUNMEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key

procedures:

(a)

100

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

We evaluated the appropriateness of the methodology used
and the reasonableness of the key assumptions applied in
the depreciated replacement cost calculations such as the
estimated useful life and replacement costs by referencing
to available market data;

We tested mathematical accuracy of the depreciated
replacement cost calculations used by the management
and the Valuer to determine the recoverable amounts of
the logistics buildings; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

HARETSEE

Impairment assessment of investment in an associate

Refer to notes 4(c) and 11 to the consolidated financial statements

As at 30 June 2023, the Group held 43.78% equity interests in an
associate, Jilin Jintian Universal Health Capsule Limited (“Jilin
Jintian”), with a carrying amount of RMB56,134,000.

The business performance of Jilin Jintian was not good as
expected for the year ended 30 June 2023. At the end of the
reporting period, the management, with an assistance of the
Valuer, carried out a review of the recoverable amount of the
investment in an associate. The recoverable amount, being the
higher of value-in-use (“VIU") and fair value less costs of disposal,
has been determined by the Group’s management with reference
to the discounted cash flow model. Based on the results of the
impairment assessment, the management concluded that an
impairment loss of RMB10,433,000 on investment in an associate
was charged to profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2023.

In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant judgement
and assumptions are required to estimate the VIU based on
the forecasted cash flows of Jilin Jintian and the discount rate
applied. We therefore identified the impairment assessment as
a key audit matter.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EMNEFSUNMEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key

procedures:

(a)

102

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer;

We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the management to estimate the
recoverable amount of the investment in an associate;

We comparedthe cash flow projections usedin VIU calculations
to the financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period,;

We compared the future growth rates beyond the five-year
period used by management against the long-term average
growth rate for the businesses in which the associate operate
based on the available data from the market;

We evaluated the achievability of budgeted gross margins
based on Jilin Jiantian's past and current performance, the
management'’s business strategy and the expected market
development;

We evaluated the reasonableness of the key parameters
used by management in calculating the discount rate based

on our understanding of the business and industry; and

We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure in
respect of the impairment assessment.
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Key Audit Matter

RREITER

Valuation of biological assets

Refer to notes 4(a) and 13 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had a forest land use right which is located in Tonghua
City, Jilin Province in the PRC and the wild ginsengs planted in
this forest land. The forest land use right and wild ginsengs are
accounted for as land use right and biological assets respectively.
The wild ginsengs are measured at fair value less costs to sell.

As at 30 June 2023, management estimated the fair value of
wild ginsengs which was revalued at RMB98,496,000 based on a
valuation prepared by the Valuer which took into consideration
of factors related to the ginsengs as advised by ginsengs experts
who were employed by the Valuer. A gain on change in fair value
of RMB335,000 was credited to profit or loss for the year ended
30 June 2023.

We have identified the valuation of the biological assets as a key
audit matter considering the significance of the balance and the
extent of management’s judgments and estimates used for the
assessment of fair value of biological assets. The most significant
assumptions and valuation parameters used in the valuation
include the estimated quantities, grade and the related market
prices of biological assets applied.
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

EMNEFSUNMEERRETSE

In addressing this matter, we had performed the following key
procedures:

(@) We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the Valuer and the ginsengs experts;

(b) We assessed the appropriateness of the valuation
methodologies used by the Valuer and management to
estimate the fair value of the biological assets;

(c) We engaged our own ginsengs expert to carry out physical
inspection of the wild ginsengs forest and assist us in
reviewing the reasonableness of the key assumptions and
unobservable inputs applied to the valuation model; and

(d) We considered the adequacy of the Group's disclosure

in respect of the fair value measurement of the biological
assets.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information in
the 2022/23 annual report of the Company but does notinclude the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information, and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements
of the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an auditin accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B HEN RS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we {EEEZZ B2 ERBMEIEF « F T B
determine those matters that were of most significance in the “EEHAHAEHMBERENBIRAE
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current 2 - EMEKBEERETEE - ROEXEED
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe ¥REFRMMBELEIR @ RIEEEERTAFT
these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation ARAFEBEELEE  HEZHFE RHIBER
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely T - FARAGBFEHERMFEFBEBEEE
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be #EXKAEBEERBBEENLARFZ © B
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences RETEERESFHBERZEHE -

of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited FERR(EB)ETMEXMERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEDTED
Hong Kong, 27 September 2023 BE —_E_=FNAAZ-++tH

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent AR B I ZHEMBENERITEEESA -
auditor’s report is:

Law Lai Ting ERE

Practising Certificate number: P07322 HEBERS - P07322
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

SHEEEER

At 30 June 2023
RZZE-_=F,"A=1+H

2023 2022
—E-=H —E-F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
s AR FT ARBT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE REE 206,684 222,392
Right-of-use assets FREEE 5,406 4,952
Intangible assets BV AE - S
Investment in an associate BN FIRE 11 56,134 87,526
Equity instruments designated BEREBEAABETA
as at fair value through other HitsraWamngm T A
comprehensive income 12 13,381 12,056
Biological assets LB E 13 98,496 98,161
Deferred income tax assets BRIEFTISTREE 14 5,990 =
Total non-current assets FREEERLE 386,091 425,087
Current assets REEE
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H b R GRIE 16 103,169 128,918
Income tax recoverable I Y B FT 15 2,640 5,815
Inventories =8 17 164,128 190,973
Restricted cash SR HIR S 18 39,841 30,488
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 19 42,995 57,795
Total current assets REEERE 352,773 413,989
Total assets EEHAE 738,864 839,076
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Equity attributable to owners of QT HEE AELER
the Company
Share capital &N 20 43,587 35,943
Reserves = 21 1,743,801 1,739,451
Accumulated losses Rt E1E (1,472,660) (1,367,263)
314,728 408,131
Non-controlling interests FEE R - 579
Total equity ERBH 314,728 408,710
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

BHEERER

At 30 June 2023
R-E-_=FA=+H

2023 2022
—EC=F —EF-=
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Kt AR¥FT ARBTFr
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings =N 24 40,000 40,000
Lease liabilities HEAE 8 310 =
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHERE 40,310 40,000
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMEMNFE 23 383,517 390,366
Lease liabilities HEEE 8 309 =
Total current liabilities BB EARE 383,826 390,366
Total liabilities E B85 424,136 430,366
Total equity and liabilities ERRABEAE 738,864 839,076

FITER202EMKMI s AZEA MY ERE
TR D EIE—E 5 o

The notes on pages 117 to 262 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

HNFI9E202E MR F A HUBRERRN
“EC=FAATEHERESSHAERE
BT UHTINEFRARE

These consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 262 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 September 2023 and signed on its behalf by

Chu Chuanfu Zhao Zehua
DINE HHEE
Director Director
BF BF
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CONSOLIDATED S
SHtEEREE

Year ended 30 June 2023
HE-Z = A=1+HLEFE

2023 2022

—EC=E —T--F

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

Mz AREFTT ARETFT

Revenue g 5 1,297,036 1,273,572
Cost of sales HERAK 26 (1,083,190) (1,069,410)
Gross profit ERE 213,846 204,162
Selling and marketing expenses HE R EHAX 26 (245,245) (322,346)
Administrative expenses THAX 26 (57,872) (58,005)
Impairment loss on investment in an associate BENTRREREER 11, 26 (10,433) (21,988)
Other income HAb A 25 2,931 7,270
Other (losses) gains — net H A (B8 ) e — 8 25 (1,986) 1,788
Change in fair value of biological assets EMBELIREBEED 13 335 409
Operating loss REEE (98,424) (188,710)
Finance income BRI 28 8,788 3,642
Finance costs B AR 28 (1,510) (1,320)
Finance income — net B A — 358 28 7,278 2,322
Share of post-tax results of an associate DIRE N EIRT B EE 11 (20,959) (1,625)
(20,959) (1,625)

Loss before income tax BRATEHAIER (112,105) (188,013)
Income tax credit FEHiER 29 5,990 -
Loss for the year FEEFE (106,115) (188,013)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e alaER

Year ended 30 June 2023

BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

2023 2022
—EC=E —T-_F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bz AREFT ARETFT
Other comprehensive income: Hitr & W
[tem that will not be reclassified to profit or loss: ~ T E@EHHEEIEmaEH -
Fair value changes in equity instruments designated  IEE AIEA R BEF AR
as at fair value through other comprehensive FANRNERIAZ
income AREBEEEE 12 370 2,499
[tems that are or may be reclassified to profit or B #¥sLAJEERF1E BRI EFT 54
loss in subsequent periods: ZEmAEA -
Release of other reserves upon deregistration of — FESHHI/E 2 78 5 B E b R
subsidiaries - 379
Currency translation differences SETEER 53 (1,965)
53 (1,586)
Total other comprehensive income for the year FEHMGEEWEHE 423 913
Total comprehensive loss for the year EEGRABEASE (105,692) (187,100)
Loss attributable to: THEFELES !
— Owners of the Company S YNCIE 2 DN (105,397) (187,647)
- Non-controlling interests — IR (718) (366)
(106,115) (188,013)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to: THEFEGGREERARE
— Owners of the Company —AREHEA (104,974) (186,734)
- Non-controlling interests — IR (718) (366)
(105,692) (187,100)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the FEAXQTEFAREERER
Company for the year (RMB cents) (AR¥S)
- Basic and diluted —EARREE 30 (18.07) (42.66)

The notes on pages 117 to 262 are an integral part of these F117E2602EMMEAZSA MY FERE
consolidated financial statements. TR DB —FD o
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CONSOLIDATED STA
SOERSER

Year ended 30 June 2023

BE-_ZT-_=FA=1+HItFE

Attrbutable to owners of the Company

FATREARE
Fair vaue ~ Share-based Non-
Share Share  Capital ~ Stafutory ~ reserve (o~ compensation ~ Other  Accumulated controlling ~~ Totdl
aptd  premum  reseves  resenes  recyingl  resenes  resenves losses — Totdl interests equty
MEERE
Bh BfHEE  BARE  :ERE  (FUER) ROEMGE AMBE  ZER & AORER  RRuR
RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBO00  RMB'00 RMB1000 RMBO00  RMBT000 RMBO00  RMB00  RMB'000  RMB'000
IRETT ARERTR ARETR O ARETR ARMFT ARRTT ARRTT ABRTT ARETT ABRTT BRI
(note20) (rote21(3) (note 21b) (note21ic)  (rote 21(d)  (note 21(e)) (note 21(f)
&) (W) WEoe) ) B (KEe) (KE)
Balance at 1 July 2022 RISZZEER-AhER B3 186100 (154447) 64,149 (12432) 2366 (6355 (1307263 408131 59 40870
Comprehensive loss RAEE
Lossfor the year F5Ee - - - - - - (105397) (105397 [18) (1081
Other comprehensive income EhEANE
tem that willnot e recbssifed to proft orloss: ki B
Fairvlue changes i equity nstruments designated BT AR LA BESTARREAYE
as atfir value trough oher comprehienshe ncome— FBRTA 74 BEEY
frote 1) (i) - - - - in - - 3 n
tems tht are or mey be rechssfed to PRI ER AR
proftor loss in subsequent periods A
Currency ranslation diferences jeiezs - - - - - - 5 - 5 5
Totalother comprehensive income L EE - - - - 3 - 5 - n i
Totel comprehensie ncome oss Gala(ER 48 - - - - n - B (0530 (s 18 (105692
Transction with owners n thei capacty s owners — EEBA(NEREASHHR5
Changes n ownershp interests fEEERR
Deregistaton of & subsicary TH-fNELT - - - - - - - f 1
Disposal ofsubsicries HENBAE - - - - - - 13 13
- - - - - - 139 1%
Contrbutions and ditributions FERAE
Issue of subscrption shares in April 2023 RERCZEMARGERG
net of expenses frofe ) R 1644 390 - - - - -1 11,51
Tot transacton with owners n SREAVIEREASD )N
their capacty as onners RahE 7044 390 - - - - -1 157
Balance at 30 June 2023 H-BZZERR=TRNER 3587 1830097 (15447 e4N49 (12,062) 036 6302 (1472660 314728 34728
AREEBREEZRERAE FEHRE2022/23 13



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

BOHERZBIR

Year ended 30 June 2023

(E_E=FRNAZTRHIEFE
Attrioutable to owners of the Company
KLOTEE AR
Fairvalue  Share-based Non-
Share Share Captl ~ Statutory ~ reserve (non-  compensation Other Accumulated controling ~~ Total
captl premum  resenes  resenes  recycling) feserves  reserves losses  Total  nterests  equity
_ - - DAREER \ - ] ‘ ‘
Re RGEE  EREE  iERE (TUER) ROEMBE  ERER  EhER B FORER EniE
B0 RBOD RMBOWD RMBOWD B0 B0 RMBO)  RMBUOW)  RMBUOD  RMBUOOD  RMBUMD
N R AR \RET AR AR ARETT AREE AR AR ARETT
fote )  frote2f) ot 2)  fote 20 fhote 20te)  fhote 20) frote 211)
(g () ) (Eow) R ) ()
Balance at 1 July 2021 REZ-ErA-BigE 833 181738 (154.447) 04149 (14.931) 036 (@769 (1,179616) 574972 U5 515917
Comprehensive loss GaER
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - - - (1878 (187.64) (366)  (188,013)
Other comprehensive income (loss)
tem that will not be reclassified to
Fair value changes in equity instruments
designated as at fair value through
offer comprehensive income
fnote 1) - - - - 249 - - - -2
tems that are or may be reclssifed to
pmﬁfor/assmsubseguentgef/bdsx Il
Release of other reserve upon de- HAHBATR ﬁé]ﬁﬁﬁm
registration of subsiciaries - - - - - - 3 - 3 - 3
Currency translaton differences erEEE S 5 5 5 = = (1.965) - 1969 - 1989
Total other comprehensive income (loss)  Eft5ANE (&) 48 e = = - 249 - (1,586) - 913 - 913
Total comprehensive income (loss] GRUE(BRIEE s s . . 2499 = (1588) (18767 (186734 (38)  (187,100)
Transaction with owners
in their capacity as owners
Contributions and distributions
Issue of subscription shares in November
2001, net of expenses frote 2)) 4931 3468 - - - - - - 839 - 839
Issue of subscription shares in June 2022, \‘?:%ﬂ 3l
t of expenses (note 2) 0 IBER (W) 8,179 5315 5 5 = S S . - 114
Total transaction with owners intheir ~ EEEA(MEREASH)H
capacity as owners 548 11110 8783 5 5 = 5 5 - 198 - 1989
Balance at 30 June 2022 WoBZZERAZTAN
o] B3 1826170 (154 447) 64,149 (1243) 2,36 (6,355 (1367263 408,131 519 408,710
The notes on pages 117 to 262 are an integral part of these F117E22EMMEAZSAMHIBRE

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED
SHRERER

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ T = A=1+HILEE

2023 2022
—EC-=E —EF-—
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mtat ARETFT ARBEFIT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REED
Cash used in operations CEFTAIR S 32(a) (21,016) (42,584)
Interest paid BEFIE (70) (276)
Bank charges paid BERTER (240) (146)
Income tax refunded EIREMMEMN 3,175 584
Net cash used in operating activities && EE T AR ESTE (18,151) (42,422)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Change in restricted cash ZRHIHEEH) (9.353) 4,236
Interest received LR 925 2,064
Proceeds from disposal of property, — HE¥Z - BE LR EFSHIE
plant and equipment - 2,240
Net cash inflow from disposal of HERBARMFRERAFE
subsidiaries 470 1,842
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BEREE
equipment (61) (101)
Dividend received BRE - 807
Net cash (used in) from investing BMEEH (A ELERSEE
activities (8,019) 11,088
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

EHEESRER

Year ended 30 June 2023
(E_E=FRNAZTRHIEFE

2023 2022
—EC-=F =S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MiEt ARETFT AREFIT
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEED
Repayments of lease liabilities BEEEaE 32(b) (301) (3,930
Inception of borrowings FIZE R 32(b) - 40,000
Net proceeds from issuance of BITRBERD PRSI FEE
subscription shares 20 11,571 19,893
Net cash from financing activities BETHELRESFE 11,270 55,963
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReERBSEBYWORD )L INFRE
cash equivalents (14,900) 24,629
Cash and cash equivalents at HWEBRVIzREeRREEEY
beginning of the reporting period 57,795 33,091
Effect of foreign exchange rate INESRER B E) 2 B
changes 100 75
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FHEHRZEEREESZEY
the reporting period 19 42,995 57,795

The notes on pages 117 to 262 are an integral part of these HF117E262EMMFEAZSAHMBKBRE
consolidated financial statements. TR B —FH o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
G R E

Year ended 30 June 2023
HEZZT-=F A=THILEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the distribution and retail of drugs,
healthcare products and other pharmaceutical products in

the northeastern region of the People’'s Republic of China
(the "PRC").

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 12
March 2012, as an exempted company with limited liabilities
under the Companies Law (2013 Revision) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of the Company's registered office is PO
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 12 December 2013.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Renminbi (“RMB’000"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to both periods
presented, unless otherwise stated.

—REHR
REREREEBRZERERARATEA
A MEMBAR(SERIAEE]) T
2HEREARKANBE([HE])RIHE
EEY REEMMEMEEERD
DIHNTEER o

AARIRZZE—=—F=A+-HIREHA
SEHBERAVA(ZT—=FEIREH
EREAMKIREREBRAR - K
N EIFEMEE A APO Box 309,
Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman Islands °

AKABBRIR - E—=F+_HA+_-H
ERBBARSMERAT([BRAT])
FERET

SRR BREAEIN  ZFAHMHHRERTD
AARETET(TARETFTZS -
TERETHRME

REZEAHVBRAMEANIES
ATERRENTX - BRARERBAIN - UF
BREMEZHERNERER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

18

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable IFRSs, International Accounting Standards
(“IASs") and Interpretations issued by International
Accounting Standards Board and the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. These consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for equity instruments designated as at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVOCI") and biological
assets which are measured at fair value as explained in
the accounting policies set out below.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 4.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group

These consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on a basis consistent with
the accounting policies adopted in the 2022
consolidated financial statements except for the
adoption of the following new/revised IFRSs
that are relevant to the Group and effective
from the current year:

Amendments to IAS 16: Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments clarify the accounting
requirements for proceeds received by an entity
from selling items produced while testing an
item of property, plant or equipment before
it is used for its intended purpose. An entity
recognises the proceeds from selling any such
items, and the cost of those items, in profit
or loss and measures the cost of those items
applying the measurement requirements of IAS
2.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

2. FEEHBEBEE

2.1 REEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023

BHE—Z_=

FANA=THLESFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

120 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

(continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)
Amendments to IAS 37: Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract

The amendments clarify that for the purpose
of assessing whether a contract is onerous
under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling
that contract (for example, direct labour and
materials) and an allocation of other costs that
relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example,
an allocation of the depreciation charge for an
item of property, plant and equipment used in
fulfilling the contract).

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 mEEEE
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 210 BETHENEE RBE(E)
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) ZEBERABFETRAZ

Group (continued)
Amendments to IFRS 3: Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update a reference in IFRS
3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in 2018. The amendments also
add to IFRS 3 an exception to its requirement for
an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for some
types of liabilities and contingent liabilities, an
entity applying IFRS 3 should instead refer to
IAS 37. The exception has been added to avoid
an unintended consequence of updating the
reference.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.

1EET 2R ()

BB 51 75 4R & PE Rl 2 35
(BETA): JEBBERAER
A BRI R T BIERES
B ELERNFIRAL =
T — J\5F B4 ) BE 75
EMSERMEL - &
FAER] IR £ BIBR B 75
=R E35 P IE R
— BB EFEBR
T ERGAIRARR
ERXEERXEBRS
BREEXBE - %O
SMRTE - BN E T HRE
mMBERKBRE E
B ¥ 75 R 5 E A
IMHERE - B2 EER
G EERIFEI75E - R
FISMER » I RBRE
¥ 5| A & 2R B MR
B

RMZSETLEHS
M BRERERTME

S48
-2

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23 121



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

122 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

(continued)
(a) New and amended standards adopted by the

Group (continued)
Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle

IFRS 1: Subsidiary as a First-time Adopter

This amendment simplifies the application of
IFRS 1 for a subsidiary that becomes a first-time
adopter of IFRSs later than its parent —i.e. if a
subsidiary adopts IFRSs later than its parent and
applies IFRS 1.D16(a), then a subsidiary may elect
to measure cumulative translation differences
for all foreign operations at amounts included
in the consolidated financial statements of the
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition
to IFRSs.

IFRS 9: Fees in the "“10 per cent” Test for
Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

This amendment clarifies that - for the
purpose of performing the “10 per cent test”
for derecognition of financial liabilities — in
determining those fees paid net of fees received,
a borrower includes only fees paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf.
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2. FEEHBEBEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 2.1 RBEEE)
210 B REROEE MIE(E)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

(a) New and amended standards adopted by the (a) ZEBERABFETRAZ
Group (continued) 1EETER ()

Annual Improvements Project — 2018-2020 Cycle

(continued)

IFRS 16: Lease Incentives

The amendment removes the illustration of
payments from the lessor relating to leasehold
improvements. As currently drafted, Example 13
is not clear as to why such payments are not a
lease incentive.

IAS 41: Taxation in Fair Value Measurements

This amendment removes the requirement to
exclude cash flows for taxation when measuring
fair value, thereby aligning the fair value
measurement requirements in IAS 41 with those
in IFRS 13.

The adoption of the amendments does not
have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI IR R M

Year ended 30 June 2023

HE-B-=FAASTAILFRE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

124

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

(b) New and amended standards issued but not

yet adopted by the Group

A number of new and amended standards
are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023, and have not been
applied in preparing these consolidated
financial statements. The Group will apply
the new and amended standards when they
become effective. The Group is in the process of
making an assessment of the impact of the new
and amended standards and does not expect
that the adoption of these new and amended
standards will result in any material impact on
the consolidated financial statements of the
Group.
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POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

Year ended 30 June 2023
=FNA=THIEFE

Bz—T—

2.1 RREEE)
211 BEFBENEE RKE(F)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)

(b) New and amended standards issued but not
yet adopted by the Group (continued)

(b) E #7118 7 5 B jof K £
A B9 5T R AEAS AT £ R
(&)

Effective for annual
years beginning
on or after

R BHR 2 &
BRI FELN

Amendments to IAS 1

Bl & s RS9 (BRT &)
Amendments to IAS 8

B & 5T RS 85% (IBAT &)
Amendments to IAS 12

REtERIE125R(BRTA)

IFRS 17
Bl B B A5 R S AR BB 175
Amendments to IFRS 17

BIRR B T MRS RSB 78R (8RT &)

Amendments to IAS 1

BIFR & s RS 5R (BRI AR)
Amendments to IAS 1

BIFR & 5t ERISE 5% (18R] A)
Amendments to IFRS 16
BB B 75 ¥ 5 2R BN 28 1 65% (18 AT AR)
Amendments to IAS 21

R &R ZE215% (85T A)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and
IAS 28

BIRR B 75 R 55 22 B 551058 (B FT K )
N R e RIS 285k (85T A)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 1 January 2023

SETBOREE —E-=F—Af—H
Definition of Accounting Estimates 1 January 2023
BEHEETER —=%—H—H

Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a single
Transaction

1 January 2023

;Ei%éimﬁéﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ —E-=%—HF—H
I8

Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
ls3=x —E-=%—HF—H

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9
— Comparative Information

B BRE LSRR ARM SRS T
ERIEIRM VB ER - LERER

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

1 January 2023
—=%—H—H

1 January 2024

BESEARDIEIFRE “ZE-WFE—-HA—H
Non-current Liabilities with Covenants 1 January 2024
(Rl B ik =Y —E-mFE-A—H
Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback 1 January 2024
EREMZSTHEHERE —FE_mFE-A—H

The Effects of Changes in Foreign
Exchange Rates

SMIBTE R BB B

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture

REFEEHRBE AR K
EhERHE

1 January 2025

—E-_hF—H—H

To be determined
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

126

2.2 Going concern

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group
recorded a loss of approximately RMB106,115,000 (2022:
RMB188,013,000), which was primarily attributable to
the challenges experienced in the retail market within
the northeastern region of the PRC and the impact on
performance caused by the COVID-19 epidemic. In
addition, the Group recorded net cash outflow from
operations of RMB18,151,000 during the Year and the
Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
RMB31,053,000 as at 30 June 2023.

The management of the Company has reviewed the
current performance and cash flow forecast prepared
by the management as part of their assessment of the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, and after
carefully considering the matters described below, the
directors have a reasonable expectation that the Group
is able to continue as a going concern for at least the
next twelve months from the end of the reporting period
and to meet its obligations, as and when they fall due,
having regard to the followings:
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30 June 2023
BE_Z_=FXA=+tRLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEerBEMEE
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Going concern (continued) 2.2 BERE(E)

(a) The Group continues to negotiate for external (@) AKEFEIINELFEEST
financing, including but not limited to, obtain further B BREETRAERGHE
loan facilities, renew or refinance the loan facilities — S EFRE EXREE
upon maturity and various from of capital fund HREEIEAMERSTESE
raising. During the year, the Company successfully B RKFE  ARARIRE—
raised net proceeds of RMB11,571,000 through the MR EEITIR - AT
issuance of new shares under the General Mandate, EEMBHEBEFERARK
which were used as working capital for the Group. As 11,571,0007T - A{EAREEH
at 30 June 2023, the Group had available unutilised EBES RIEZ=ZFRN
banking facility of RMB50,000,000; R=+H8 A&EEAEFHAM

ABANRITREA/SARK
50,000,0007T :

(b) The Group continues to improve efficiency by b) AEEFHBEBNBTERLE
implementing measures to tighten cost control over FXEmKRNEZERERE
various operating expenses in order to enhance MR IRA MR - Aigos B
its profitability and to improve cash flow from its BRI RS BEELEM
operations in future. During the year ended 30 June FHREeERE-BE_T_=
2023, the Group has closed a number of loss making FERNA=ZTHIEFE K&
retail stores to minimize operating cash outflows. EEAFSESEESEEH
The management believes that these measures will NERERELLEHESMRE -
result in improvement in operating profitability and ERERRZERBRNE
the resulting cash flows; and KEFBERALEENSR

A= .
FLE P54

(c) The Group is actively exploring the opportunity of © AEEFEGRZBBALE
obtaining additional source of cash inflows from HABAE /1REBISEIN
sales of its owned assets/investments. REMAKRAEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Going concern (continued)

Consequently, the management of the Company have
concluded that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that there are no material uncertainties related
to events or conditions which, individually or collectively,
may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to

continues as a going concern.

Should the going concern assumption be inappropriate,
adjustments may have to be made to write down the
values of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide
for any further liabilities that might arise, and to reclassify
non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effects
of these adjustments have not been reflected in the

consolidated financial statements.

2.3 Subsidiaries
2.3.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)
(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in
a business combination are measured initially at
their fair values at the acquisition date.

The Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-
acquisition basis. Non-controlling interests in
the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate
share of the entity’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are measured at either fair value or
the present ownership interests’ proportionate
share in the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are
measured at their acquisition date fair value,
unless another measurement basis is required
by IFRSs.

30 June 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

130 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

(a) Business combinations (continued)

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is re-measured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such re-measurement are recognised in
profit or loss or other comprehensive income
as appropriate.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that
is an asset or liability is recognised in profit or
loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEerHBEHMEE
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Subsidiaries (continued) 2.3 MBAR(E)
2.3.1 Consolidation (continued) 231 BHERE (&)
(a) Business combinations (continued) (a) EBEH(E)

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interests recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in profit or loss.

Intra-group transactions, balances and
unrealised gains on transactions between group
companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries would have been adjusted to
conform with the Group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.3.1 Consolidation (continued)

132

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

(c)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do notresultin loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners in their capacity as owners.
The difference between fair value of any
consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to
its fair value at the date when control is lost, with
the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. The fair value is the initial carrying
amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of
that entity are accounted for as if the Group
had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.3.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at
cost less impairment. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying
amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's
net assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

134

2.4 Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of 20% or more but less
than 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor's share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group's investment in an associate include goodwill
identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the
ownership interest in an associate, any excess of the cost
of the associate over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
represents goodwill which is included in the investment
in an associate.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Associates (continued)

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in profit or loss, and its share of post-
acquisition movements in other comprehensive income
is recognised in other comprehensive income with a
corresponding adjustment to the carrying amount of
the investment. When the Group's share of losses in an
associate equal or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the excess of
the carrying value of the associate over its recoverable
amount and recognises the amount to “impairment loss
on investment in an associate” in profit or loss. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised to the
extent that the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Associates (continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and its
associate are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investor's interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates

are recognised in profit or loss.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors that makes

strategic decisions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial information of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
Group’s consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at period-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in profit or loss.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVPL") are recognised
in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.

AEREEBREBZERERAR FEHE2022/23

2. FEEHBEBEE

2.6 HNEBRE

(a)

ek 255
AEEZEENMBEERAM
JIRBHUAZEREEER
FMENIELERFENER
AAE(THEEE]) - A%HE
MAEHMBRERAAREZ
5 ARBERARBININEE
5% -

R 5 M KR

SNERHEARHE BXIA
BEHMIERMHMEEANR
TEXBERNEER - &
BZERHEEMINE K S
REBARAINESENE
KEENABRBKREXRR
HELANINERSREBIBE
B RER -

FEBESREERARMD]
WARREBEFERHE

SAER(UAAREETE
BESBF AR DER)
MBREZENERER SR
nEERESEIRN—ED

137
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

138

(c)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group's

entities (none of which has the currency of a

hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional

currency different from the presentation currency are

translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

income and expenses for each consolidated
statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the

acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets

and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated

at the closing rate. Currency translation differences

arising are recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment 2.7 Y- BERRE

Property, plant and equipment comprise mainly motor
vehicles, furniture and office equipment and leasehold
improvement are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use. Construction in progress
is recognised at the percentage completion of contract
cost.

Construction in progress (“CIP") represents buildings,
plant and machinery under construction or pending
installation and is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses (if any). Cost includes the costs of
construction and acquisition and capitalised borrowing
costs. No provision for depreciation is made on CIP
until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use. When the assets concerned
are available for use, the costs are transferred to the
respective categories of property, plant and equipment
and depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated
below.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment other
than CIP is calculated using the straight-line method to
write down their cost less accumulated impairment to
their residual values over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

are as follows:

Buildings
Motor vehicles
Furniture and office equipment

Leasehold improvements

and estimated useful life

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting

period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amounts.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and

are recognised in profit or loss.

2.8 Land use rights

Land use rights are up-front payments to acquire long-
term interest in land accounted for as right-of-use assets

since 1 July 2019.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Intangible assets

(a)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries
represents the excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identified net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units (“CGUs"), or
groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest level within the entity at which
the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment tests are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value
of the CGUs containing the goodwill is compared
to the recoverable amount, which is the higher of
VIU and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense
and is not subsequently reversed.

Computer software licenses

Acquired computer software licenses are capitalised
on the basis of the costs incurred to acquire the
specific software. These costs are amortised over
their estimated useful lives of 5 to 7 years.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

142

2.10

2.11

Biological assets

Biological assets are the wild ginsengs that are measured
at fair value less cost to sell, see note 13 below for further
information on determining the fair value.

Costs to sell include the incremental selling costs,
including the labour costs to collect and process the
wild ginsengs when harvested, the estimated costs of
transportation to the market, etc.

The wild ginsengs are accounted for as biological assets
until the point of harvest. Harvested wild ginsengs are
transferred to inventory at fair value less costs to sell
when harvested.

Changes in fair value of biological assets are recognised
in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or
intangible assets that are not ready to use are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation or amortisation
are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset'’s fair value less costs of disposal and
VIU. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (CGUs). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments

(a)

Financial assets

Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments and on a trade date
basis.

A financial asset is derecognised when and only
when (i) the Group's contractual rights to future
cash flows from the financial asset expire; or (ii) the
Group transfers the financial asset and either (a) it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the financial asset, or (b) it neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset but it
does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial assets (except for trade receivables without
a significant financing component) are initially
recognised at their fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not carried at FVPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial assets. Such trade receivables are initially
measured at their transaction price.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (continued)

144

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Financial assets (continued)

Recognition and derecognition (continued)

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as
(i) measured at amortised cost; (ii) debt instruments
measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“Mandatory FVOCI"); (iii) equity instruments
designated as at FVOCI ("Designated FVOCI"); or
(iv) measured at FVPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the Group's business model
for managing the financial assets and the financial
asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial
recognition unless the Group changes its business
model for managing them, in which case all affected
financial assets are reclassified on the first day of the
first annual reporting period following the change
in the business model.

Derivatives embedded in a hybrid contract in which
a host is an asset within the scope of IFRS 9 are not
separated from the host. Instead, the entire hybrid
contract is assessed for classification.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement
Financial assets measured at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it
meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVPL:

(i) it is held within a business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and

(i) its contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses arising
from impairment, derecognition or through the
amortisation process are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost
include trade and other receivables, restricted cash
and cash and cash equivalents.

AEREEBREBZERERAR FEHE2022/23

2. FEEHBEBEE

212 €I B (&

(a)

ERMEEE)
7T
R EH A B2 A E

EEREERKNTE UK
- BA|IBEARAEE
SAERAHEHF ABE - Al
ZERE R KA E

() “EMEEHR—ESHE
BBERA TR EE R
BRREREMNEHE
AMEAE - &

(i) ZEBMEEMNE KKK
REERMELERX
NARERREERESH
EMEESRE -

BBERATHENEREE
HigERBERFEAFE
I AT BE I BRBLE - B E - &
I FERR S S B AR P E A Y
W MBS B E B R -

AEEZBHEKNAAENS
MEEBRESINEMBEK
R XRHREAREE
MRS EEY -

145



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023

?

:l:—?—

—FANA=THLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (continued)

146

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Financial assets (continued)
Classification and measurement (continued)
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI

Upon initial recognition, the Group may make an
irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of investment in equity instruments
that is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which IFRS 3 applies in
other comprehensive income. The classification is
determined on an instruments-by-instruments basis.

These equity investments are subsequently measured
at fair value and are not subject to impairment.
Dividends are recognised in profit or loss unless
the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of
the cost of the investment. Other gains or losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income and shall
not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss is
transferred directly to retained profits.

The Group’s equity instruments designated as
at FVOCI are further detailed in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Financial instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial liabilities

Recognition and derecognition

Financial liabilities are recognised when and only
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

A financial liability is derecognised when and only
when the liability is extinguished, that is, when
the obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at their
fair value plus, in the case of financial liabilities not
carried at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial liabilities.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and
other payables and borrowings. All financial liabilities,
except for financial liabilities at FVPL, are recognised
initially at their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method, unless the effect of discounting would be
insignificant, in which case they are stated at cost.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount reported in the consolidated balance sheet
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the

counterparty.

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit
losses ("ECL") on financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost to which the impairment requirements
apply in accordance with IFRS 9. At each reporting date,
the Group measures a loss allowance for a financial asset
at an amount equal to the lifetime ECL if the credit risk
on that financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset
has not increased significantly since initial recognition,
the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial

asset at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEerHBEHMEE
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

214 sRMEERHMIERRE(E)

(continued)

Measurement of ECL

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses
(i.e. the present value of all cash shortfalls) over the
expected life of the financial instruments.

For financial assets, a credit loss is the present value of
the difference between the contractual cash flows that
are due to an entity under the contract and the cash
flows that the entity expects to receive.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instruments while 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from

default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following one or more
shared credit risk characteristics:

()  past due information

(i) nature of instruments

(ili) nature of collateral

(iv) industry of debtors

(v) geographical location of debtors

(vi) external credit risk ratings
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)
Measurement of ECL (continued)

Loss allowance is remeasured at each reporting date to
reflect changes in the financial instruments’ credit risk and
loss since initial recognition. The resulting changes in the
loss allowance are recognised as an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the financial instruments, except
in the case of Mandatory FVOCI, the loss allowance
is recognised in other comprehensive income and

accumulated in fair value (recycling).

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an
event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that the
Group may not receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full if the financial instruments that meets

any of the following criteria.

(i) information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by

the Group); or

(i) there is a breach of financial covenants by the

counterparty.

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a more

lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)

Assessment of significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the creditrisk on afinancial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instruments as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instruments as at
the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. In particular,
the following information is taken into account in the
assessment:

e the debtor's failure to make payments of principal
or interest on the due dates;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instruments’ external or internal credit
rating (if available);

e anactual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; and

e actual or expected changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have or
may have a significant adverse effect on the debtor’s
ability to meet its obligation to the Group.

30 June 2023
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

(continued)

Assessment of significantincrease in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than

30 days past due.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Group assumes that
the credit risk on financial instruments has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial
instruments are determined to have low credit risk at

the reporting date.

Low credit risk

A financial instrument is determined to have low credit

risk if:

(i) it has a low risk of default;

(i) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;

and

(i) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to

fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.

Other receivables, cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash are considered to be low credit risk when
they have a low risk of default and the counter party
has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow

obligations in the near term (note 3.1(b)).
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Year ended 30 June 2023
BEZZT_=F HA=1tHLFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets and other items

214 sRMEERHMIERRE(E)

(continued)

Simplified approach of ECL

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL. The Group recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting
date that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit-impaired financial

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower.

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event.

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a
concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise
consider.

(d) itis becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(f)  the purchase or origination of a financial asset at a
deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
—ZE=FXAZ=ZtHLFE

BHZE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

154

2.14

2.15

2.16

Impairment of financial assets and other items
(continued)

Write-off

The Group writes off a financial asset when the Group has
no reasonable expectations of recovering the contractual
cash flows on a financial asset in its entirety or a portion
thereof. The Group has a policy of writing off the gross
carrying amount when the financial asset is 1 year past
due based on historical experience of recoveries of similar
assets. The Group expects no significant recovery from
the amount written off. However, financial assets that are
written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's procedures for recovery of amounts
due, taking into account legal advice if appropriate. Any
subsequent recovery made is recognised in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost method. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
applicable variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented
as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially
at transaction price or fair value as appropriate and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

2.19

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash at bank and on hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance
sheet date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs (continued)

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended

use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings prior to their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs

eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.

2.20 Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the

effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case
the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Group's entities operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected
to be paid to the tax authorities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

158

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, the deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Deferred income tax (continued)

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liability is provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of
the reversal of the temporary difference is controlled
by the Group and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Generally, the Group is unable to control the reversal
of the temporary difference in respect of associates
and joint ventures. Only when there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the
foreseeable future, deferred tax liability in relation
to taxable temporary differences is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on
deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements only to the extent that it is probable
the temporary difference will reverse in the future
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits

160

(a)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Pension obligations

The PRC based full-time employees of the Group are
covered by various government-sponsored pension
plans under which the employees are entitled to a
monthly pension based on certain formulae. Certain
government agencies are responsible for the pension
liability to these retired employees. The Group
contributes on a monthly basis to these pension
plans. Under these plans, the Group has no legal
or constructive obligations for retirement benefits
beyond the contributions made. The assets of these
plans are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. Contributions
to these plans are expensed as incurred.

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme") under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XESHBEMEE)
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Housing benefits

In accordance with the PRC housing reform
regulations, the Group is required to make
contributions to the government-sponsored housing
fund of the specified salary amount of its full-
time Chinese employees. At the same time, the
employees are required to make a contribution equal
to the Group’s contributions out of their salaries.
The employees are entitled to claim the entire
sum of the fund under certain specified withdrawal
circumstances. The assets of the housing benefits
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to
the housing benefits are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates anumber of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans under which the entity
receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (options and shares) of the
Company. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of options or
shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options or shares granted:

e including any market performance conditions;
e excluding the impact of any service and non-

market performance vesting conditions; and

e including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

162

(c)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance vesting
conditions are included in assumptions about the
number of options or shares that are expected
to vest. The total expense is recognised over the
vesting period, which is the period over which all of
the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and
therefore the grant date fair value is estimated for
the purposes of recognising the expense during
the period between service commencement period
and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options or
shares that are expected to vest based on the service
and non-market performance vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original
estimates, if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as
an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings,
with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity accounts.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(c)

Share-based payments (continued)

Share option scheme

The Group operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) (note 22(a)).

When the options are granted to identified
participants, the fair value of the option is recognised
as an expense over the vesting period. When the
options are exercised, the Company issues new
shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium. When
the options are cancelled, it is treated as if it had
vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense
not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-
vesting conditions within the control of either the
Group or the employee are not met. When the
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are
still not exercised at the expiry date, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to accumulated losses.

Share award plan
The Company adopted a share award plan (“Share
Award Plan”) (note 22(b)).

When the shares of the Company are purchased
by the Share Award Plan from the market, the
consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs, is presented as “shares held for
Share Award Plan” and deducted from total equity.

When shares are granted to identified participants,
the fair value of the shares awarded based on the
market value of the Company’s shares on the date
of grant is charged as employee expenses to profit
or loss of the Group.
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Year ended 30 June 2023
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities

164

2.23.1 Provisions

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Provisions for environmental restoration,
restructuring costs and legal claims are recognised
when: the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events; it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated. Restructuring provisions comprise lease
termination penalties and employee termination
payments. Provisions are not recognised for future

operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations,
the likelihood that an outflow will be required in
settlement is determined by considering the class
of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised
even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in
the provision due to passage of time is recognised
as interest expense.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.23 Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)
2232 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that
arises from past events and whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is
disclosed in the Group's consolidated financial
statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will
then be recognised as a provision.

2.24 Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15

Nature of goods or services
The nature of the goods or services provided by the
Group is as follows:

(a) Sales of goods - distribution
The Group sells a range of drugs and other
pharmaceutical products to distributors through its
distribution network.

(b) Sales of goods - retail
The Group operates a chain of retail pharmacies for
selling drugs and other pharmaceutical products to
customers. Retail sales are usually settled in cash or
by credit card.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

166

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Identification of performance obligations

At contract inception, the Group assesses the goods
or services promised in a contract with a customer and
identifies as a performance obligation each promise to
transfer to the customer either:

(a) agood or service (or a bundle of goods or services)
that is distinct; or

(b) a series of distinct goods or services that are
substantially the same and that have the same
pattern of transfer to the customer.

A good or service that is promised to a customer is
distinct if both of the following criteria are met:

(@) the customer can benefit from the good or service
either on its own or together with other resources
that are readily available to the customer (i.e. the
good or service is capable of being distinct); and

(b) the Group’s promise to transfer the good or service
to the customer is separately identifiable from other
promises in the contract (i.e. the promise to transfer
the good or service is distinct within the context of
the contract).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEerHBEHMEE
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

224 WERTERR (4

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when (or as) the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised
good or service (i.e. an asset) to a customer. An asset
is transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control
of that asset.

The Group transfers control of a good or service over
time and, therefore, satisfies a performance obligation
and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

(@) the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

(b) the Group's performance creates or enhances
an asset (for example, work in progress) that
the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

168

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If a performance obligation is not satisfied over time, the
Group satisfies the performance obligation at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the promised
asset. In determining when the transfer of control occurs,
the Group considers the concept of control and such
indicators as legal title, physical possession, right to
payment, significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset, and customer acceptance.

Sale of prescribed drugs, non-prescribed drugs, healthcare
and other pharmaceutical products are recognised at a
point in time at which the customer obtains the control
of the promised asset, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and
the title is passed.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Transaction price: significant financing components
When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer), in determining
the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
consideration for the effects of the time value of money.
The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers
in profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or
arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group's
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness
information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient
in paragraph 63 of IFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effect of the significant financing
component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

170

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers within IFRS 15
(continued)

Variable consideration: volume-based rebates

The Group gives rebates to selected distributors. The
Group estimates the volume rebates using the expected-
value method and assesses whether the estimated
variable consideration is constrained with reference
to the customer’s historical rebates entitlement and
accumulated purchases to date. Any significant estimation
variances will be analysed and taken into consideration
in the current estimation and assessment. Typically, the
estimated consideration is not constrained.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets is recognised
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost or Mandatory FVOCI that are
not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is applied
to the gross carrying amount of the assets while it is
applied to the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount net of loss allowance) in case of credit-impaired
financial assets.

Consultancy service income
Consultancy service income is recognised over time when
services are rendered.

Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets is recognised when
the Group's rights to receive dividend is established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of
the dividend can be measured reliably. Dividend income
from investments is recognised when the shareholders’
rights to receive payment have been established.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. XEerHBEHMEE
POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Leases 225 HE

The Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains,
a lease at inception of the contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration.

As lessee

The Group applies the recognition exemption to short-
term leases and low-value asset leases. Lease payments
associated with these leases are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Group has elected not to separate non-lease
components from lease components, and accounts for
each lease component and any associated non-lease
components as a single lease component.

Amounts payable by the Group that do not give rise to
a separate component are considered to be part of the
total consideration that is allocated to the separately
identified components of the contract.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of the lease.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which

comprises:

(a) the amount of the initial measurement of the lease

liability;

(b) any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;

(c) any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

(d) an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying asset,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those

costs are incurred to produce inventories.

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Depreciation is provided on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the right-of-use asset as follows:

Land use rights Over the lease term

Properties Over the lease term

The lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at the

commencement date of the contract.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

The lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise the following payments for the
right to use the underlying asset during the lease term
that are not paid at the commencement date:

(@) fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

(c) amounts expected to be payable under residual
value guarantees;

(d) exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

(e) payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option
to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicitin the lease, or where itis not readily determinable,
the incremental borrowing rate of the lessee.

Subsequently, the lease liability is measured by increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability
and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
2.25 Leases (continued)
As lessee (continued)

The lease liability is remeasured using a revised discount
rate when there are changes to the lease payments arising
from a change in the lease term or the reassessment of
whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise

a purchase option.

The lease liability is remeasured by using the original
discount rate when there is a change in the residual
value guarantee, the in-substance fixed lease payments
or the future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or a rate (other than floating interest rate). In
case of a change in future lease payments resulting from
a change in floating interest rates, the Group remeasures

the lease liability using a revised discount rate.

The Group recognises the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset. If the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is
reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the
measurement of the lease liability, the Group recognises
any remaining amount of the remeasurement in profit

or loss.

A lease modification is accounted for as a separate lease

if:

(@) the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying

assets; and

(b) the consideration for the lease increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the

circumstances of the particular contract.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.25 Leases (continued)

As lessee (continued)

When a lease modification is not accounted for as

a separate lease, at the effective date of the lease

modification,

(a)

the Group allocates the consideration in the modified
contract on the basis of relative stand-alone price as
described above.

the Group determines the lease term of the modified
contract.

the Group remeasures the lease liability by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate over the revised lease term.

for lease modifications that decrease the scope of the
lease, the Group accounts for the remeasurement of
the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full
termination of the lease and recognising any gain
or loss relating to the partial or full termination of
the lease in profit or loss.

for all other lease modifications, the Group accounts
for the remeasurement of the lease liability by
making a corresponding adjustment to the right-
of-use asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

2.

176

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.26 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders
is recognised as a liability in the Group's consolidated

financial statements when the shareholders’ right to
dividends is established.

2.27 Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(@) A person or a close member of that person’s family
is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or of the parent of the Group.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity
is a member).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.27 Related parties (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions applies: (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group. If the Group
is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers
are also related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which

itis a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
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2.

178

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.27 Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(@) that person'’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(b) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(c) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse
or domestic partner.

In the definition of a related party, an associate includes

subsidiaries of the associate and a joint venture includes
subsidiaries of the joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance. The Group regularly
monitors its exposure and currently considers not
necessary to hedge any of these financial risks.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with
transactions denominated and settled in RMB.
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial
transactions or recognised assets and liabilities are
denominated in a currency other than the entity’s
functional currency. These include mainly the equity
instruments designated as at FVOCI (note 12), cash
and bank balances (note 19) and the trade and other
receivables (note 16) denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars (“"HKD") and United States Dollars ("USD").
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
exchange exposure.

As at 30 June 2023, if RMB had strengthened/
weakened by 5% (2022: 5%) against the USD/
HKD with all other variables held constant, other
comprehensive income for the year ended 30
June 2023 would have been RMB669,000 (2022:
RMB603,000) higher/lower, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of HKD

denominated equity instruments designated as at
FVOCI.

The Group will constantly review the economic
situation and its foreign exchange risk profile, and
will consider appropriate hedging measures in the
future, as may be necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
—ZE=FXAZ=ZtHLFE

BHZE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

180

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Credit risk

The carrying amount of trade and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalent and restricted cash, which
is net of loss allowance, represents the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account the value of any collateral held or other
credit enhancements in relation to financial assets.

Trade receivables

Retail sales at the Group’s pharmacies are usually
settled in cash or by debit or credit cards. For
distribution sales, there is no concentration of credit
risk with respect to trade receivables, as the majority
of the Group's sales are settled upon delivery of
goods. The trade receivables are with credit periods
of not more than 90 days.

The Group has no significant concentrations of credit
risk. The carrying amounts of receivables included in
the consolidated balance sheet are mainly generated
by the Group's distributions segment and represent
the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to these financial assets.

Counterparty risk related to trade receivables is
limited due to the large number of customers in the
Group's customer portfolio and their diversification
throughout various business sectors as well as
geographic locations. As at 30 June 2023, the
exposure to the top 15 customers occupies 57%
(2022: 42%) of the gross trade receivables, with the
exposure to the largest customer representing 19%
(2022: 7%).
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group’s customer base consists of
a wide range of clients and the trade receivables
are categorised by common risk characteristics that
are representative of the customers’ abilities to pay
all amounts due in accordance with the contractual
terms. The Group applies a simplified approach in
calculating ECL for trade receivables and recognises
a loss allowance based on lifetime ECL at each
reporting date and has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to
the debtors and the economic environment. The
expected loss rate used in the Group's estimation on
ECL is calculated for each category based on actual
credit loss experience over the past three years and
adjusted for current and forward-looking factors to
reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historical data has
been collected, current conditions and the Group's
estimate on future economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables. The management
considered that these factors do not indicate any
significant credit risk and additional loss allowance
for provision for trade receivables as at 30 June 2023
and 2022 to be insignificant. There was no change in
the estimation techniques or significant assumptions
made during the year ended 30 June 2023.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
(BT =F A NA=THIFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BRBERZE(E)
(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EERRE)
Trade receivables (continued) ESEWE(E)
As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis RIBZ=FR_FT_C
based on recognition date of the trade receivables ANA=TH EREBFHEK
is as follows: RIEER B BPERE ST
T
2023 2022
—Egq2-= —=E=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARMFT
Up to 3 months 318 A AR 74,264 97,496
4 to 6 months AZ6(AA 5,851 124
7 to 12 months TE12{8 A - 218
80,115 97,838
As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the ageing analysis R_B_=FfR_FT__
based on past due date is as follows: ANA=1TH REHAHE
ZERER DI ¢
2023 2022
—Eg2-= —=E=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARMFT
Not past due REHA 74,264 97,496
Past due but not impaired 2 EHBERHE
Up to 3 months 3fE A LAA 5,851 124
4 to 6 months VY FPS! - 218
5,851 342
80,115 97,838
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

The trade receivables as at 30 June 2023 and 2022
that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers for whom there is
no significant financial difficulty and, based on past
experiences, the overdue amounts can be recovered.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
as at 30 June 2023 and 2022 related to a wide range
of customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

The Group does not hold any collateral over trade
receivables as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

Other receivables

The Group considers that other receivables have low
credit risk based on the debtors’ strong capacity to
meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near
term and low risk of default. No loss allowance is

recognised based on the measurement on 12-month
ECL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

184

(b)

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Credit risk (continued)

Other receivables (continued)

In estimating the ECL, the Group has taken into
account the historical actual credit loss experience
and the financial position of the counterparties,
past collection history, current creditworthiness,
adjusted for forward-looking factors that are specific
to the debtors and general economic conditions of
the industry in which the counterparties operate,
in estimating the probability of default of these
financial assets, as well as the loss upon default.
The management of the Group considers the ECL
of other receivables to be insignificant after taking
into account the financial position, credit quality
and past settlement records of the counterparties.
There was no change in the estimation techniques
or significant assumptions made during the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

Cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash

The credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and
restricted cash is limited because the counter-
parties are state-owned financial institutions, the
state-controlled financial institutions, joint-stock
commercial bank and local banks with high credit
quality and good reputation. No loss allowance is
recognised for the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
considered as adequate by management to finance
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to fulfil
its future funds requirements through cash flows
generated from operations.

Generally, there is no specific credit period granted
by the suppliers but the related trade payables are
normally expected to be settled within three months
after receipt of goods or services.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of RMB42,995,000 (2022: RMB57,795,000)
(note 19) and trade receivables of RMB80,115,000
(2022: RMB97,838,000) (note 16), that are expected to
readily generate cash inflows for managing liquidity
risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year

BHZE

i
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ended 30 June 2023
TE=FXA=THLEEFE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEE)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BRBERZE(E)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) () RENER ()

The table below analyses the Group’s financial TROMAEBRHNEHE
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on B REERBEXRBEEHN
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to AR BEE D RE
the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed BRI EAAE B o RIBPTIKEREY

in the table are contractual undiscounted cash flows. SEDEHRTRRERE °

Total

On demand contractual Total

or less than undiscounted carrying

Tyear 1Tto2vyears 2to5 years Payment amount

EHEES

REXS-FR -FERE WEZLE DEEE RESE

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  AREBTT  AREFT  AREFT  ARETT

As at 30 June 2023 RZBZ=FXA=TH

Trade and other payables BHRAMENTE 359,706 - - 359,706 359,706

Borrowings & 1,200 40,300 - 41,500 40,000

Lease liabilities HEAR 348 321 - 669 619

361,254 40,621 - 401,875 400,325

As at 30 June 2022 RZBZZ# A=+H

Trade and other payables ZHREMENTE 354,101 = = 354,101 354,101

Borrowings f&3k 1,200 1,200 40,300 42,700 40,000

355,301 1,200 40,300 396,801 394,101
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates
is mainly attributable to its restricted cash, bank
balances and borrowings.

The interest rates and maturities of the Group's
restricted cash, bank balances and borrowings are
disclosed in notes 18, 19 and 24 respectively.

The Group's income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates as the Group has no significant interest-
bearing assets and liabilities.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group's borrowings
is arranged at fixed rate. In the management’s
opinion, the Group does not have material interest
rate exposure and therefore no sensitivity analysis
is presented in this respect.

As at the end of the reporting period, if the interest
rates on restricted cash and bank balances had been
0.5% (2022: 0.5%) higher/lower than the prevailing
rate announced by People’s Bank of China, with all
other variables held constant, loss before income
tax for the year ended 30 June 2023 would have
been RMB412,000 (2022: RMB439,000) lower/higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an
optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
The Group's strategy remains consistent throughout the

period.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new

shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with peer participants in the industry, the
Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital.
Net debt is calculated as borrowings less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as total equity as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet plus net debt.
The Group aims to maintain the gearing ratio at a level

of not more than 50%.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 5

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The gearing ratios at 30 June 2023 and 2022 were as

BERERERE(E
3.2 EXREREE(EZ)
RIE-=ZFR-_FB-__FRA=

follows: THHEARBBELERNOT :
2023 2022
—ED=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
Borrowings (note 24) &R (HfaE24) 40,000 40,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents B BeERReEEY
(note 19) (Bta19) (42,995) (57,795)
Net cash b (2,995) (17,795)
Total equity HERER 314,728 408,710
Total capital VL] 311,733 390,915
Gearing ratio (Note) BRAELE(ME) N/A REA N/A i
Note: As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the Group was in net cash position and the HiiF - R-TB_=FR-_F__FA=+H
calculation of gearing ratio is therefore not meaningful. ﬁ%gggﬁﬁ#%ﬁ WA EEREE
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 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

i
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.3 Fair value estimation
(a) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

The following table presents the financial assets
and liabilities measured at fair value or required to
disclose their fair value in these consolidated financial
statements on a recurring basis at 30 June 2023 and
2022 across the three levels of the fair value hierarchy
defined in IFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement, with the
fair value measurement categorised in its entirety
based on the lowest level of input that is significant
to the entire measurement. The levels are defined
as follows:

- Level1(highestlevel): quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
that the Group can access at the measurement
date;

—  Level 2:inputs other than quoted prices included

within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

—  Level 3 (lowest level): unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited Annual Report 2022/23
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(a)

Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities

3. MBEREE(E
3.3 DMABEEMGT(E)

) EREENBEAAEBES

(continued) sT(E)
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1& $2MR #3R @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT AEEFT AREFT
As at 30 June 2023 R-B-=FxA=+A
Assets BE
Equity instruments designated as  TE AR EEA
at FVOClI (note 12) LYo Gkl do
TA(K12)
- Unlisted equity instruments —FITHRTA - - 13,381 13,381
As at 30 June 2022 RZZZZF~A=TH
Assets BE
Equity instruments designated as 187 AR A EEFTA
at FVOClI (note 12) Httir o WS
TA(KZ12)
- Unlisted equity instruments —FITHERTA - - 12,056 12,056

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 fair

value measurements and no transfers into and out

of Level 3 fair value measurements.

AEREEBREBZERERAR FEHE2022/23

BE_ZT-_=FF-_T-—
FRA=Z+THIEFE B4
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ATEEARED -
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Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBEREEE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AREEMGF(E)
(a) Fairvalue estimation of financial assets and liabilities @ eRMEERBEBEAABEMR
(continued) (&)
Financial instruments measured at fair value based BEMRAEULABETE
on Level 3 measurement: ZEMTA :
The movements of the unlisted equity instruments HE-ZE-_=F#Kk=-FT=-=
during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 are FRA=THILFE  ¥FE
shown as follows: mER TAEMESH T :
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
EEARDAEEF AHMGERENESZTIA
2023 2022
—E=-= —E-fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBETFIT
At beginning of the reporting RS )
period 12,056 9,265
Total gain recognised in other R E A AR S W R A AU =
comprehensive income 370 2,499
Exchange difference PE =R 955 292
At the end of the reporting period FAIREHIAR 13,381 12,056

Valuation techniques and significant inputs used in
Level 3 fair value measurement:

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments are
estimated by an independent and qualified
professional valuer using price-to-earnings (P/E)
multiple model. It includes assumptions that are
not supported by observable market prices or
rates. The average price-to-earnings (P/E) multiples
of comparable companies of the corresponding
industries is 19.96 times (2022: 19.21 times) and the
discount rate applied for lack of marketability is
20% (2022: 20%), which is estimated based on Black

Scholes option pricing model.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. M¥RBREE(E)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 DAEEMGE(E)
(a) Fairvalue estimation of financial assets and liabilities () sRMEERBGBEAAEBEM
(continued) (&)
Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable TEFTERBAHEBEHB
inputs Ez85
The sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable EIMARBEAEZEET
inputs for Level 3 fair value measurements are as AERG ABBHREEZ
follows: mr
Impact on fair
value and the
Sensitivity of fair value to Group's other
changes in unobservable Reasonably  comprehensive
Fair value at  Valuation inputs (assuming other possible  income for the
Description 30 June 2023 technique Unobservable inputs factors remain unchanged) range year
R=Z==Zf ERHARER
RAZTH TUBRGAREANEEHRE RETR  RAREHM
wa ZRABE  HERE TUBRBARE #8(RRABEZERTR) 2IHE SLUELKE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFR
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
BEARMEBEF AHGAUENERTA
Unlisted equity 13,381 P/E multiple  Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of +/- 20% +/-2,676
instruments comparable companies comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice
versa
FLMEETA 13381 MRXEH WELRLA THTAR  TARBRAAITORREER +- 20% +/- 2,676
DRBEES  RZMA
Discount for lack of The higher the discount +/- 5% +/- 836

marketability rate applied for lack of
marketability, the lower the
fair value and vice versa
Bz msnA SR RZTSRBETRELS A2 +/-5% +/-836
BESE  R27%
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Year ended 30 June 2023

HE-B-=FAASTAILFRE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3. MKRBREE(E)
3.3 AREEMGF(E)

(a) Fair value estimation of financial assets and liabilities (@) 2MEENBBEAAEBAEM
(continued) (&)
Sensitivity to changes in significant unobservable FETAEFTHA R
inputs (continued) EZEE(E)
Impact on fair
value and the
Sensitivity of fair value to Group's other
changes in unobservable Reasonably  comprehensive
Fair value at ~ Valuation inputs (assuming other possible  income for the
Description 30 June 2022 technique Unobservable inputs factors remain unchanged) range year
RZFZZF FRYUDAEE
~A=TA TURERARBELA BEGRE ABARE  RAKEER
fit ZPRBE  RERDE TBEENEE 29 (RREMAZEHTE) 28E HFalmcvE
RMB000 RMB000
AEREFT AREFT
Equity instruments designated as at FVOCI
REARMABEFARMGEUENERIR
Unlisted equity 12,05  P/Emultiple  Average P/E ratio of The higher average P/E ratio of +/- 20% +- 2411
instruments comparable companies comparable companies, the
higher the fair value and vice
versa
FrmERTIA TEERY  AEURAR THTEE WERBATZTOTREYES +-20% +-2,411
NrBEMS  RZIA
Discount for lack of The higher the discount +/- 5% +/- 754
marketability rate applied for lack of
marketability, the lower the
fair value and vice versa
RIUBRBMER  HEITAEBLFRRNE O dS% 4T

(b) Fair values of financial assets and liabilities carried

at amounts other than fair values

BEME  R2HA

b) EMEENE]

B2 RR(EE

BN EE T

=

TR R B

&
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Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

In the opinion of the management of the Group, no

other financial assets and liabilities of the Group are

carried at amounts materially different from their fair
values as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial period are addressed below.

(a) Estimation of biological assets
Estimates and judgements in determining the fair value
of the wild ginsengs relate to quantities, grading and
market prices.

The quantities of the wild ginsengs are estimated
based on a valuation report issued by the Valuer using
the statistical sampling method and also taking into
considerations of factors related to the wild ginsengs
as advised by ginsengs experts who employed by the
Valuer. Based on the valuation report, the samples are
selected randomly and the total quantities of the wild
ginsengs are extrapolated using a normal distribution
model with an acceptable deviation estimated by the
Valuer.

30 June 2023
BE-T_=FA=THIHFE

BEREFHEE R A

fET RAE R IB B E LR A MER
TEL BRI - BRERRIBERL TR
REMFH AR -

REBHRKEL G RRE - BRE
% BLLELNEFHAFE D ENIER
BERER - TOXGRABRAREERT
—Wﬁ%ﬁméﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
BEAFHEM G RRE

(a) EMEEMET
REEHEMNT2HNAAEE
W BESMABHE A km
BB AR R FE -

BEMNT20BEHREBMERM B
A7 b RE ARG MR ELE
BREEMZEENMNT2ERME
HNEBTEMNT2ORRETH
At REBMEERS - BATIRERE
BREAMT20EHETNERILE
Re MR B R L ER A ET R AT
fRBEETHE -

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23 195



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

196

(a)

Estimation of biological assets (continued)

The wild ginsengs grow at different grading and there
can be a considerable spread in the quality and grading
that affect the prices achieved. According to the valuation
report, an average grading is assumed for the wild
ginsengs based on the laboratory test results on the
samples selected by a certified institution in accordance
with the standards issued by China Ginsengs Products
Standardisation Technical Committee.

The quantities and the grading of the wild ginsengs
cannot be measured at exact precision. The estimates
are based on many factors that require evaluation by the
ginsengs experts interpreting the available data, as well
as the market prices and other factors. The reliability of
these estimates at any point of time depends on both the
quality and quantity of the data, the expected statistic
deviation as well as the expert judgement.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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Year ended 30 June 2023
BEZZT_=F HA=1tHLFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4. EAXS A RHUE(ZE)
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Estimated impairment of a logistics building included b) FFAVE - BMERRENYRE

in property, plant and equipment

Included in property, plant and equipment was a
logistics building located in Jiamusi, the PRC with
carrying amount of RMB174,753,000 at 30 June 2023.
The Group performs impairment assessment when there
is an indication whether property, plant and equipment
have suffered any impairment, in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in note 2.11. During the year,
the Group had utilised certain areas of the logistics
building as warehouse for its distribution business and
continued to seek out its opportunities to develop the
logistics business. In view of the current low usage rate as
warehousing for the Distribution segment, management
considered that there were indicators of impairment
of the logistics building existed at 30 June 2023 and
performed an impairment assessment thereon. The
recoverable amounts of the logistics buildings included
in property, plant and equipment have been determined
based on depreciated replacement cost (the "DRC")
approach based on a valuation performed by the Valuer.
The DRC approach requires an estimation of the new
replacement cost of the assets from which deductions
are then made to allow for physical deterioration and all
forms of obsolescence and optimisation.
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BHZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

198

(c)

Impairment of investment in an associate

The management of the Group carries out review on
impairment on the interest in an associate whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that its
carrying amount may not be recoverable by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of the VIU and fair value
less cost of disposal) with its carrying amount.

In determining whether the interest in an associate is
impaired, it requires an estimation of its recoverable
amount, which represents higher of the VIU and fair
value less cost of disposal. For the VIU calculation, it
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the operations of the investment
and from the ultimate disposal and a discount rate (that
reflects the current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the associate)
in order to calculate the present value. For the fair value
less cost of disposal, the valuation techniques applied
by the Valuer has been agreed with the management
of the Group. The management determined whether
valuation techniques and assumptions applied are
appropriate to the circumstances of the investment.
The estimation of recoverable amount of investment
included some assumptions not supported by observable
market prices or rates. Change in assumption could
affect the recoverable amount of the investment. Where
the recoverable amount of the Group's interest in an
associate is less than the carrying amount, an impairment
loss may arise.

Universal Health International Group Holding Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d)

Loss allowance for ECL

The Group’s management estimates the loss allowance
for trade and other receivables by using various
inputs and assumptions including risk of a default and
expected loss rate. The estimation involves high degree
of estimation and uncertainty which is based on the
Group's historical information, existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Where the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such difference will impact the
carrying amount of trade and other receivables.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The useful lives of property, plant and equipment are
determined by the management of the Group as further
detailed in note 2.7. This estimate is based on the
management'’s experiences in the industry. The Group
will increase or decrease the depreciation charge where
useful life is shorter or longer than previously estimated.
The estimate of useful lives of the property, plant and
equipment and the depreciation charge could change
significantly as a result of changes in the pharmaceutical
market, market trend and competition. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful life is less
than the previously estimated, or the property, plant and
equipment will be written-off or written-down to the
recoverable amount when there is an indication that the
carrying amount is not recoverable.
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BHZE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

200

(f)

Income taxes

The Group is mainly subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary
course of business. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be charged. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Discount rates for calculating lease liabilities

The Group uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rates
to discount future lease payments since interest rates
implicit in the leases are not readily determinable. In
determining the discounts rates for its leases, the Group
refers to a rate that is readily observable as the starting
point and then applies judgement and adjusts such
observable rate to determine the incremental borrowing
rate.

Going concern basis

As disclosed in note 2.2, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis. The appropriateness of the going concern basis
is assessed after taking into consideration all relevant
available information about future of the Group, including
the Group's cash position, its availability to obtain
financing facilities to finance its continuing operations and
the cash flow forecasts of the Group. Such assessment
inherently involves judgement. Actual results could differ
significantly and hence render the adoption of the going
concern basis inappropriate.
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30 June 2023
BE_T_=FAA=THLFE

REVENUE 5. Wz
The Group has recognised the following amounts relating to AEBEERBERANER TS EH B
revenue in profit or loss: &R
2023 2022
—EC=F —F==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARKEFT AREF T
Revenue from contracts with customers (a) REZEFE &AM (a) 1,297,036 1,273,572

(a) Disaggregation of revenue

(a) WE@Ez#D
For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE-Z-_Z=FXA=+HLFE

Distributions Retails Total
o Zz2€ st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR® T AR T
Major products TEEM
Prescribed drugs BR 7 B2 172,572 76,708 249,280
Non-prescribed drugs FEETT EEY) 738,077 202,851 940,928
Healthcare products R 110,473 72,491 182,964
Other pharmaceutical products Hoith B8 B 58,345 13,232 71,577
1,079,467 365,282 1,444,749
Eliminations $H3H (147,713) - (147,713)
Revenue from external customers R EIMNBE P HY 25 931,754 365,282 1,297,036
Timing of revenue recognition: IR -
Products transferred EmRE—RFE2ER
at a point in time 931,754 365,282 1,297,036
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BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W&
(a) Disaggregation of revenue (continued) (a) Wamz#z (&)

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z-__FRA=THLFE

Distributions Retails Total
b2k T8 BET
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETT ARETT

Major products TEEm
Prescribed drugs &7 BEY) 165,538 90,908 256,446
Non-prescribed drugs T EY) 709,373 239,517 948,890
Healthcare products IREE R 106,939 87,514 194,453
Other pharmaceutical products b B8 s 54,962 15,705 70,667
1,036,812 433,644 1,470,456

Eliminations K 5 (196,884) - (196,884)
Revenue from external customers R EIMNBE P HY IS 839,928 433,644 1,273,572
Timing of revenue recognition: N FERRER -
Products transferred EmRE—RFE2ER

at a point in time 839,928 433,644 1,273,572
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Board of Directors is the Group’s chief operating
decision-maker. Management has determined the operating
segments based on the information reviewed by the Board
of Directors for the purposes of allocating resources and
assessing performance.

The Group is principally engaged in the distributions and
retails of drugs and other pharmaceutical products in the
northeastern region of the PRC.

Distributions, Retails and Others are presented to the Board
of Directors to assess their performance and for making
respective business decisions which are considered to be three
segments in accordance with IFRS 8 "Operating Segment”. The
"Others” segment mainly comprises investment companies.

The Group's principal market is the northeastern region of the
PRC. The Group has a large number of customers, which are
widely dispersed within the northeastern region of the PRC,
no single customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group's
total revenues for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

Inter-segment sales are charged at cost. The revenue from
external customers and the costs, the total assets and the
total liabilities are measured in a manner consistent with that
of the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of adjusted
loss before interests, tax, depreciation and amortisation
("Adjusted EBITDA"). The measurement basis of Adjusted
EBITDA excludes the effect of share of post-tax results of
an associate, impairment loss or, if applicable its reversal on
intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, right-of-use
assets and investment in an associate.

RMEE

Year ended-'éO June 2023
BE_Z_=FA=+HILFE
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Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E)
The segment information for the year ended 30 June 2023 @j:_ —=FRA=ZTHLEFERR
and as at 30 June 2023 is as follows: ZTEC=FRNA=ZTHHSHERN
T
For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE-Z-=FXA=tHLEE
Distributions Retails Others Total
ik Z2E Hit ¥ @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FTT ARMTT ARMTTT AEMTFTT
Segment revenue il 6 1,079,467 365,282 - 1,444,749
Inter-segment revenue HEpE ks (147,713) - - (147,713)
Revenue from external customers RBIMNPEF Rl 931,754 365,282 - 1,297,036
Adjusted EBITDA AR BMITE R HA
W/Fiﬁ 39,804 (105,921) (5,639) (71,756)
Impairment loss on investment BERARENEBE
in an associate (10,433) - - (10,433)
Depreciation and amortisation HERHAH (16,235) - - (16,235)
Finance income B A 573 375 7,840 8,788
Finance costs BTEAR (1,366) (65) 79 (1,510)
Share of post-tax results of an associate AEMERARTEEE (20,959) - - (20,959)
Income tax credit FrEtiEs 5,990 - - 5,990
(Loss) Profit for the year FE(ER)EF (2,626) (105,611) 2,122 (106,115)
Additions of non-current assets FERBEENEM(TEE
(excluding financial assets and deferred SRAELEILAER
income tax assets) BE) 981 - - 981
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

6. DEWER(E)

As at 30 June 2023
RZB-=FXA=1H

Distributions Retails Others Total

ik | £ Hi %% @t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ANREFT AREFT ARETL AREFT

Total assets before eliminations B EELT 1,271,471 493,946 1,394,895 3,160,312
Inter-segment assets HBEEE (698,303) (343,885) (1,379,260) (2,421,448)
Total assets BELRH 573,168 150,061 15,635 738,864

Total liabilities before eliminations A ELR 1,126,288 876,481 2,832 2,005,601
Inter-segment liabilities HEBMEE (837,081) (742,940 (1,444) (1,581,465)
Total liabilities aEeE 289,207 133,541 1,388 424,136
Investment in an associate BENERE 56,134 - - 56,134
AREEEREEERERAR FEHRE2022/23 205



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E)
The segment information for the year ended 30 June 2022 HE_Z-_FXA=THILEFEER
and as at 30 June 2022 is as follows: CEZZFRNAZTHHSHBERD
—|t .

For the year ended 30 June 2022
BE_Z_ R A=TALEE

Distributions Retails Others Total
i TE Hib %% Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT ARBTL ARETT

Segment revenue 7 Elk 1,036,812 433,644 = 1,470,456
Inter-segment revenue o B (196,884) = = (196,884)
Revenue from external customers RBEINEPEF R 839,928 433,644 = 1,273,572
Adjusted EBITDA RREERTERBHA
I 27,949 (160,139) (8,477) (140,667)

Impairment loss on investment in an BeELARERESE

associate (21,988) = = (21,988)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH (14,858) (11,197) = (26,055)
Finance income 53N 456 403 2,783 3,642
Finance costs g N (1,024) (294) 2) (1,320)
Share of post-tax results of an associate DL D RGRRBEE (1,625) - - (1,625)
Loss for the year FEER (11,090) (171,227) (5,696) (188,013)
Additions of non-current assets ERBEENEM(TRE

(excluding financial assets) SREE) 70 31 - 101
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Year ended 30 June 2023

BEZZT_=F HA=1tHLFE
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEER(E)
As at 30 June 2022
R-E- %X A=+H
Distributions Retails Others Total
ok Z8 Hin %% @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT ARETFT AREFT
Total assets before eliminations B EELR 1,411,178 610,820 1,400,900 3,422,898
Inter-segment assets AEHEE (778,918) (422,939) (1,381,965) (2,583,822)
Total assets EERE 632,260 187,881 18,935 839,076
Total liabilities before eliminations A ELE 1,235,694 900,135 11,041 2,146,870
Inter-segment liabilities AHHERE (879,063) (827,650) (9,791) (1,716,504)
Total liabilities BfREE 356,631 72,485 1,250 430,366
Investment in an associate BENRIRE 87,526 - - 87,526

The amounts provided to the Board of Directors with respect
to total assets are measured in a manner consistent with that
of these consolidated financial statements. These assets are
allocated based on the operations of the segment and the
physical location of the assets.

Geographical information

All revenue of the Group for the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022 was derived in the PRC, the place of domicile of
the relevant group entities.

The Group's non-current assets (excluding equity instruments
designated as at FVOCI and deferred income tax assets) are
located in the PRC.

MESERMEHEERENSSE 1
RESHUBHRER —BHAXGE - %
EEERBEDBNEENEENERM
EETHR -

IR E R
AEBBE_T_=FR-_T-_FX
A=1tHLFENMREWaTREHEE
SEEERNEMETE -

AEBMERBDEE(TRIEAETEIR
@ SEESA RS NEHERT A
BEFMBHREE)NRFEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI IR R M

Year ended 30 June 2023

BHZE

7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

208

TE=EXRNAZTHIEFEE

7. MI%¥ - - BERRE

Furniture and Leasehold
Buildings ~ Motor vehicles  office equipment improvements Total
BT B RARBARE HE%E @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFTT ARETFTT ANRETFT ARETFT ANREFT
For the year ended 30 June 2022  HEZF-=#,A=1H
JI%:35;
Opening net book amount BREmFE 234,161 = 1,226 6,224 241,611
Additions #m = = 101 = 101
Disposal RE - = (236) = (236)
Disposals - disposal of a subsidiary EE—HE—HEIBAR - = (542) ) (544)
Depreciation (note 26) FE(Hi226) (13,759) - (549) (4,232) (18,540)
Write off s = - - _ _
Closing net book amount BRERFE 220,402 = = 1990 222,39
As at 30 June 2022 WZZE-—&XA=1H
Cost KA 289,499 13,654 25,592 134,948 463,693
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (69,097) (12,902) (24127) (131,203) (237,329)
Accumulated impairment ZETHE - (752) (1,465) (1,755) (3,972)
Net book amount FEFE 220,402 = = 1,990 222,392
For the year ended 30 June 2023 #Z-Z-=FxA=1H
LFE
Opening net book amount BORRFE 220,402 - - 1,990 222,392
Additions 1 - 25 36 - 61
Depreciation (note 26) wEHR2) (13,754) (4) (21) (1,990) (15,769)
Write off s - - - - -
Closing net book amount BREEEE 206,648 21 15 - 206,684
As at 30 June 2023 RZBZZFXA=1H
Cost A 289,499 13,679 25,628 130,245 459,051
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (82,851) (12,906) (24,148) (128,490) (248,395)
Accumulated impairment ZithE - (752) (1,465) (1,755) (3,972)
Net book amount ERFE 206,648 21 15 - 206,684
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7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 7. YI¥ - BERRE(Z

As at 30 June 2023, the buildings with carrying amount of RZZZ=FXA=1+H  RAEBAR
RMB27,337,000 (2022: Nil) have been pledged for notes W27,337,0000( Z B F : |8 )&
payables (note 23(b)). FEREMNERETER (HE23(b)) °
(a) Depreciation expenses have been charged to profit or (a) BEZNBHNTEERNT :
loss as follows:
2023 2022
—EC=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AR¥ETT
Administrative expenses THRAX 12,480 11,383
Selling and marketing expenses SHE K MY 3,289 7,157
15,769 18,540
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BRI IR R M

Year ended 30 June 2023

2B =EAA=THIEFE

8. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

Right-of-use assets

8. EAEEERMEEAE

EAEEE

Land use rights Properties Total
T RE L/ #@st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT ARETFT
For the year ended 30 June 2022 HE-Z-—F A=-THLEE
Opening net book amount HYERFE 5,086 7,381 12,467
Write off s _ _ _
Depreciation (note 26) FEWF26) (134) (7,381) (7,515)
Closing net book amounts HREEFE 4,952 - 4,952
As at 30 June 2022 N_FTZZF,A=TH
Cost AR 5,354 - 5,354
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (402) = (402)
Net book amount REFE 4,952 = 4,952
For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-B-_=FEXA=THLEE
Opening net book amount HEREFE 4,952 - 4,952
Addition 210 - 920 920
Depreciation (note 26) WEWF26) (134) (332) (466)
Closing net book amounts HREEEE 4,818 588 5,406
As at 30 June 2023 W-B-=f£xA=+H
Cost A 5,354 920 6,274
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (536) (332) (868)
Net book amount EEEE 4,818 588 5,406
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RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8. FRA#EERHESEE(E)
(continued)

Lease liabilities HEERE
2023 2022
—EC=F —EF- =
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARHF T AE®TT
Current portion RENER D 309 _
Non-current portion FEMENEB S 310 =
619 -
The Group's right-of-use assets in respect of land use AEERA L EREREOERE
rights and properties represent the prepaid operating lease BERURTERET W IEE—RA
payment of leasehold lands located in the PRC and leases EMEMEERERAE(ZE =
of a warehouse (2022: prepaid operating lease payment of RPBEEE T REESTEEHITE
leasehold lands located in the PRC and leases of various retail NEEMEFR) - WEAR—RA/IF
stores) respectively. Rental contracts are typically made for TR 3F)MEEMR - HE
fixed periods of 3 (2022: 3) years. Lease terms are negotiated R ERRT - EBSEUSERK
on an individual basis and contain similar terms and conditions. K gt - E R hENE(R 225 -

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
(BT =F A NA=THIFE

212

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

At 30 June 2023, the weighted average incremental borrowing
rate for the lease liabilities of the Group was 8.62% (2022:

8.61%) per annum.

The Group has recognised the following amounts for the year:

EREEEREERE(E)

HESE(E)

RZFB_=ZFRA=1H x&EH

EREMNNEFHE

BERENRE

8.62%(—FE=——14F : 8.61%) °

AEECHRATIAFESHE -

2023 2022
—E-= S
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMHF T AEEFT
Lease payments: HERE -

Short-term leases RHHEE 51,761 65,237
Expenses recognised in profit or loss A 1Bz RIER A F X 51,761 65,237
Lease payments: HERE

Interests on lease liabilities HEEAERE 70 276

Repayment of lease liabilities BRHEEAE 301 3,930

371 4,206
Total cash outflow for leases HERSMLERE 52,132 69,443

Commitments under leases

At 30 June 2023, the Group was committed to RMB19,799,000

(2022: RMB24,239,000) for short-term leases.
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30 June 2023

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

BE_T-_=FA=tHIFE

9. BLEE

Computer
Goodwill software licenses Total
ik ERBAT IR @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AREFT
(note (a))
(Hit(a)
For the year ended 30 June 2022 E T _HFX AZTHILEE
Opening net book amount BEREE - - -
Write off b _ _ _
Closing net book amount HAREEEE = = =
As at 30 June 2022 RZB-ZFXA=1H
Cost XA 437,242 39 437,281
Accumulated amortisation REEH - (39) (39)
Accumulated impairment ZiRE (437.242) = (437,242)
Net book amount REFE - - -
For the year ended 30 June 2023 BE-E-_=EXA=THILEE
Opening net book amount HREFE - - -
Write off iG] - - -
Closing net book amount HREEEE - - -
As at 30 June 2023 RZZE-=FXA=1+H
Cost % 392,195 39 392,234
Accumulated amortisation ZETEE - (39) (39)
Accumulated impairment Z:tRE (392,195) - (392,195)
Net book amount EEEE - - -
(a) Goodwill arising on the acquisitions of distribution (a) RZEBE-=FRK-_F-_—"FH=

and retail businesses in prior periods allocated to the

operating segments of Distributions and Retails were
fully impaired as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

TH BEHRKESIHERTER
BEENBEIREDHEMTELZ

REDE A BBURE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B Ot R MR

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

10. SUBSIDIARIES 10. B AT
The Company has the following principal subsidiaries as at AR ZZE=FA=THH#HEEN
30 June 2023: TEERBRAA :
Proportion of Proportion of  Proportion of ordinary
ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held ~ shares held by non-
Place/date of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of issued ~ directly held by the bythe  controlling interests
Name of subsidiaries and kind of legal entity and place of operation share capital Company (%) Group (%) (%)
ARA LY/ ADAERNE A5Ef FERERRS
KRARER REREARRRY IEXHREES BETRAHE ERRUH) ERRILA) ERRILAI%)
Hebei Jintian Yan Xiao Pharmaceutical Co,  the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Ltd.* 27 December 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
RS REEEERRAT il HEENRANEEED ARE30,0000007
CERRETCACTHE R
EREALT
Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical ~ the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other USD92,310,000 - 100% -
Distribution Co,, Ltd. * 12 Feloruary 2004 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilties company the PRC
RRIEERROEEMAARAT i BEENRAWERER NIN00ET
“TERECATIA 7E
BREHAT
Heilongjiang Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical ~ the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB1,000,000 - 100% -
Chain Co, Ltd. * 23 June 2005 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
BEI¥EREDBEERARAT e TERMRENEEER NEE1,0000007
ZEERFRACTEA Gl
EREALT
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical Co,, the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB15,000,000 - 100% -
td. * 15 July 1998 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilities company the PRC
EREERELBEBEERAT e HEEMRApEERD ARE15,0000007C
JUEEAER 08
BREAAT
Jiamusi Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical Chain -~ the PRC Retaling drugs and other RMB5,000,000 - 100% -
Co., Ltd.* 14 April 2004 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilties company the PRC
ERFARRLEREARRAT 4B TEANRAMEREE ARASUNOOT
—ZERERATIA il
EREALT
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10. SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10. B AT (&)

The Company has the following principal subsidiaries as at RRBIRZZEZ=FA=THHEAMX
30 June 2023: (continued) TEXEMBAR : (&)
Proportion of Proportion of - Proportion of ordinary
ordinary shares ~ ordinary shares held ~ shares held by non-
Place/date of incorporation  Principal activities Particulars of issued ~ directly held by the bythe  controlling interests
Name of subsidiaries and kind of legal entity and place of operation share capital Company (%) Group (%) (%)
HRA L/ ANAERRE KEEfE FERERIS
HRATEE AT ARREE SEERRENS ERARARE  EEEMAG)  EERWBN  £ERMAN
Jilin Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMBI,000,000 - 100% -
Distribution Co, Ltd. * 4 December 2007 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilties company the PRC
AiaeRRLBEEEERLT ile PEENRANESER ARH1,0000007
ERETCARA e
EREALT
Daging Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain Co,, ~ the PRC Retaling drugs and other RMB3,000,000 - 100% -
Ltd. * 6 September 2007 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilties company the PRC
ABEREVEREHARAT i FERNRENEEED ARH3,0000007
ZERLENARR i
BRERAT
Shenyang Wei Kang Drug Store Chain Co,  the PRC Retailing drugs and other RMB30,000,000 - 100% -
Ltd. * 24 Qctober 2001 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabllties company the PRC
ABERREEEERLT il TERMRENERED ARE30,000,0007
ER-FTACTEA G
ARELLT
Shenyang Weishi Pharmaceutical Co,, Ltd. *  the PRC Wholesaling drugs and other RMB5,000,000 - 100% -
27 October 2013 pharmaceutical products
Limited liabilties company the PRC
EREYRERRAT i pRENRENEEER ARH5,0000007
ZE-CETACTHA hE
BRELAT
Jiamusi Golden Sky Storage Co, Ltd * The PRC Storage RMB1,520,000 - 100% -
7 June 2016 the PRC
Limited liabilities Company
R EREREERD mE R ARE1,5200007
BB G
BRELLT
There were no material transactions with non-controlling BHE_Z-=FR-_T__FRA=1
interests during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. HIFFE SBFEERESTEERR
5 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

10.

216

SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group deregistered
a non-wholly owned subsidiary (2022: certain wholly
owned subsidiaries) namely Shuangyashan Jintian Aixin
Pharmaceutical Chain Store Co., Limited* (2022: Jilin Jintian
Aixin Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.*, Liaoning Jintian Aixin
Household Store Chain Co., Ltd.*, Jilin Jintian Aixin Renhe
Drug Store Co., Ltd.*, Shenyang Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain
Co., Ltd.*, Anshan Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain Co., Ltd.*,
Luen Fat Dispensary Limited and Health Century (Hong Kong)
Milky City Co., Limited). As a result, the Group recognised
a loss on deregistration of a subsidiary of RMB1,000 (2022:
RMB2,010,000) in the profit or loss for the Year.

In October 2022, the Group disposed of its indirectly non-wholly
owned subsidiary namely Suihua Jintian Aixin Pharmaceutical
Mall Chain Co., Ltd.* (“Suihuas”) to an independent third
party at a total cash consideration of RMB2,000,000 and
a loss on disposal of a subsidiary of RMB1,220,000 was
recognised in the profit or loss for the year ended 30 June
2023. Suihua was principally engaged in retailing drugs and
other pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

In February 2023, the Group disposed of its indirectly wholly
owned subsidiary namely Harbin Jintian Aixin Pharmacy Chain
Co., Ltd.* (“Harbin Jintian Aixin") to two independent third
parties at a total cash consideration of RMB2,000,000 and a
loss on disposal of a subsidiary of RMB712,000 was recognised
in the profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2023. Harbin
Jintian Aixin was principally engaged in retailing drugs and
other pharmaceutical products in the PRC.

* English translation for identification purposes only.
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11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

1. BEQARKRE

2023 2022

—E-=fF —E-CF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBF T

At beginning of the reporting period PR BT 87,526 111,139
Share of post-tax results DIHBRTE ¥R (20,959) (1,625)
Impairment loss REEE (10,433) (21,988)
At end of the reporting period RIBEHR 56,134 87,526

As at 30 June 2023, Jilin Jintian Universal Health Capsule
Limited (“Jilin Jintian"”) is an associate of the Group, in which
the Group owns 43.78% (2022: 43.78%) of equity interest. Jilin
Jintian is a company incorporated in the PRC and its principal
businesses comprise manufacturing, sales and research and
development of hollow capsules in the PRC.

As a private company, there is no quoted market price
available for its shares.

RZBZ=FA=+H EHhEXK
EEEBRARAA(EREZX])
RAEEBRENTE  HPAEEER
4378%( T _F :43.78% ) MR °
EMERB—RARPBEEMKILZ A
A HXZXEBKBRNPERE  HE
Mg zE LB -

tER—RMERR - HRMHALETHR
=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

11.

218

INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The business performance of Jilin Jintian was not as good as
expected during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. As at
30 June 2023 and 2022, the management, with the assistance
of the Valuer, carried out reviews of the recoverable amount of
investment in an associate. As at 30 June 2023, the recoverable
amount, being the higher of VIU and fair value less costs of
disposal, has been determined by the Group’s management
with reference to the discounted cash flow projections based
on the Jilin Jintian’s latest forecast of financial results and
estimates made by the Group’s management for the next
five years and extrapolating in perpetuity using a long-term
growth rate of 1.5% to derive a terminal value. Discount rate
of 16% is used in the VIU calculation. Based on the results
of the impairment assessment, management concluded
that provision for impairment loss of RMB10,433,000 was
recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 30 June 2023.

As at 30 June 2022, the recoverable amount, being the
higher of VIU and fair value less costs of disposal, has been
determined by the Group’s management with reference to
a valuation report prepared by the Valuer using price-to-
earnings (P/E) multiple model. The fair value measurement for
the Group's recoverable amount of investment in an associate
was recognised into Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy based
on the inputs to valuation technique used. The average
price-to-earnings multiples of comparable companies of the
corresponding industries is 27.08 times and the discount rate
applied for lack of marketability was 20%, which was estimated
based on Asian Option Pricing Model. Based on the results
of the impairment assessment, management concluded
that provision for impairment loss of RMB21,988,000 was
recognised for the year ended 30 June 2022.

There are no commitments and contingent liabilities relating
to the Group's interest in an associate, and no contingent
liabilities of the associate itself.
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11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 1. BERATRE(E)

Set out below are the recognised financial information for TXHEYEMRe RN ERUEER
Jilin Jintian, which is accounted for using equity methods. WERERAARR ©
Summarised balance sheet EESGERBE
2023 2022
—E=HE —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETT
Current BP A
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEED 68,279 62,997
Trade and other receivables B 5 KE bR GIE 15,730 18,992
Total current assets REEEHLE 84,009 81,989
Trade and other payables B 5 REAM IR 67,669 70,924
Total current liabilities REBEEERE 67,669 70,924
Non-current JEEN A
Intangible assets mLAE - 47,152
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 59,482 60,871
Other non-current assets HMIERBEE 52,397 68,798
Total non-current assets FRBEELE 111,879 176,821
Deferred tax liabilities BEERIBAE - 11,794
Total non-current liabilities FREEERE - 11,794
Net assets EEEE 128,219 176,092
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BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
(BT =F A NA=THIFE

11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 1. BELARREE)
Summarised statement of comprehensive income RERBERME
2023 2022
—E=HF —E=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT AR TFIT
Revenue Wz 10,741 37,459
Cost of sales HEK A (7,466) (23,279)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAE (16,432) (17,308)
Administrative expenses THFAX (559) (696)
Impairment on property, plant and M - RE R EERE
equipment (10,675) =

Impairment on intangible assets BIVEERE (34,852) -
Other income HABUA 12 -
Financial expenses — net M58 R FE 195 120
Loss before income tax BATSRATEE (59,036) (3,704)
Income tax credit (expenses) FrsfiE R (M) 11,163 7)
Loss and total comprehensive loss BERESEHBRERE (47,873) (3,711)
The information above reflects the amounts presented in BB R R E A R B IRER T2
financial statements of the associate (and not the Group's share CeB(EARERTADIEZESHE) -
of those amounts). The associate has adopted accounting BE N R RMEREEERGSTECR
policies which are consistent with the Group's significant —BIEHBEK BET=FR=
accounting policies. No dividends were received from the TZFRAZTHLEFE  WEER
associate during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. B N B AR B, o
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11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

Reconciliation of recognised financial information

Reconciliation of the summarised financial information

1. BERATRE(E)
ERERPEER 2 H R
FT2 5|81 75 & BHEE 2 B 5 pABs: &0 B

presented to the carrying amount of its interest in the associate: w2 BREE R ¥R
2023 2022
—E=F —F==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AE¥TIT
Net assets at beginning of RBEHAN2EEFRE
the reporting period 176,092 179,803
Loss for the year FEEE (47,873) 3,711
Net assets at end of RBERREEFE
the reporting period 128,219 176,092
Share of net assets of the associate DIEBMEATEERE 56,134 77,093
Goodwill 5k 242,794 242,794
Accumulated impairment loss on Rt EEREEE
goodwill (242,794) (232,361)
Net carrying amount IR R E 56,134 87,526
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Year ended 30 June 2023

BHE—Z_=

12.

222

FANA=THLESFE

EQUITY INSTRUMENTS DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR

12 BEEREAABEFARMRS

VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE WHEERT A
INCOME
2023 2022
—E=-= T CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT AE#TIT
Unlisted equity instruments, FLEmEERTA BAREE
at fair value 13,381 12,056

The balance represents 11% equity interests in Wing Ming
International Group Holding Limited (“Wing Ming”), a
company incorporated in the Cayman Islands, held by the
Group. The principal activity of Wing Ming is investment
holding and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacture and sales of chinese medicines and supplements
in Hong Kong.

No equity instruments designated as at FVOCI was disposed
of during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 and no
transfers of any cumulative gain or loss arising from equity
instruments designated FVOCI within equity during the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The fair values of the unlisted equity investments were valued
by the Valuer at the end of the reporting period and an
increase in fair value of RMB370,000 (2022: RMB2,499,000) was
recognised in fair value reserve (non-recycling) for the year
ended 30 June 2023. The valuation techniques and significant
inputs used in the measurement of the fair values of the
unlisted equity investments are set out in note 3.3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The carrying amount is denominated in HKD.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Bt RR M

Year ended 30 June 2023
HE_ZT-_=F A=1THLFE

13. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 13. EMEE
2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETFT
Wild ginsengs, at fair value FEMTL  BAREE 98,496 98,161

On 21 June 2017, the Group acquired a forest land use
right and the wild ginsengs planted in this forest land from
an independent third party (the “Acquisition”). The forest
land is located in Tonghua City, Jilin Province in the PRC.
Upon completion of the Acquisition, the forest land use right
and wild ginsengs are accounted for as land use right and
biological assets respectively.

The wild ginsengs are measured at fair value less costs to
sell. As at 30 June 2023, the fair value of wild ginsengs is
RMB98,496,000 (2022: RMB98,161,000). During the year ended
30 June 2023, the change in fair value of RMB335,000 (2022:
RMB409,000) is credited to profit or loss. Except for the
changes in fair value less costs to sell, there are no other
changes during the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The fair values of the wild ginsengs as at 30 June 2023 and
2022 are estimated based on the valuation reports as of
respective dates issued by the Valuer using the statistical
sampling method and also taking into considerations of
factors related to the wild ginsengs as advised by ginsengs
experts who are employed by the Valuer.

In determining the fair value of the wild ginsengs, significant
estimates and judgements in relation to quantities, grading
and market prices based on grading are involved in the
process.

RZT—tHFRAZ+—AH A%EH
— R 5% =07 B M AR 48 R RX
MEENHERT2((REEE]) -
MNP BIEREBET - WES
RTEKIE - M ERERFER 2D
BIER IO REREMEEAK -

FAEMT2RA R BEREEKART
E-RBE-_=FRA=1+H  H4E
MT2 2R EE A AREES,496,0007T
T —F : AR¥98,161,0007T) °
HE-_Z-_=FA=1THLFE 2
AEEREHHARE335000T( T
F . AR®E409,0007T) 5T A - BRA
REEREEXNA eI BHEZT
TEFR-E-__FRXA=Z+HILF
B BIEEMEE) -

FEMT2RE_=FR=T =

NA=ZTHONAREETIREGEME
EZXABE A2 HERSFERAST M
% WERHEMZENONT2ERM
EMEBETEMT2HARETHEE -

REEHFEMRT 2R EER - B2
WEBREE  mARERRENTS
EBRNERMGF A -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

13. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

Valuation process

The Group engages a team of external experts, including
independent and qualified professional valuers and ginsengs
experts, to perform valuations of the Group's biological assets
for financial reporting purposes by using Level 3 inputs. The
external experts report directly to the General Manager of
Finance ("GMF"). Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the GMF and external experts once
every six months in line with the Group's half-yearly reporting

requirements.

The main Level 3 inputs used by the Group are derived and

evaluated as follows:

224

The quantities of the wild ginsengs are determined
based on the statistical sampling method and also taking
into considerations of other factors related to the wild
ginsengs as evaluated by the ginsengs experts. As at 30
June 2023, the Group has an estimation of approximately
192,000 (2022: 189,000) wild ginsengs in accordance with
the valuation report issued by the Valuer using statistic
techniques with an acceptable deviation estimated by
the Group.

The wild ginsengs are graded according to quality of
growth and there can be a considerable wide spectrum
of grades that may affect the prices achieved. According
to the valuation report as at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the
grading of the wild ginsengs is determined based on
the laboratory test results on the samples selected by
a certified institution in accordance with the standards
issued by China Ginsengs Products Standardization
Technical Committee.
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13. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)

13. £MEE(E)

Valuation process (continued) HERRE(E)
e As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the prices of the wild o MIE-ZFR-_FT-—FRA=

ginsengs for various grades are quoted by reference to
the quotations obtained from certain trading companies
or pharmaceutical companies that purchase wild ginsengs

in their normal business.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at the end of each
reporting period during the valuation discussion between
the GMF and external experts. As part of this discussion the
external experts present a report that explains the reason for

the fair value movements.

Information about fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (Level 3):

Fair value as at
30 June 2023

Description RMB'000 Unobservable Input

AREE
R-E-=F
~AZtE

it ARBTR FUREBAHE

TH BERENFEMT20E
RIIS2EEETREEXRHTEE
BERTL2HEZ RAIRHERF]

BUSHMEETRE -

EIRDABEZH NS REN KA
B 75 S IR R SMNER B RIS (E 5w B
EITOM o ERARRFT I —&ED - Sh
MERRE-—NREMARABEED
MREA e

EREANATBRRGAZBEBENAAEE

AHEREER(FE3R):

Range of inputs
(probability weighted average)
as at 30 June 2023

BABBEHE(BEMETY)
R-Z-=5XxA=1+H

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

FIEEAARBRAABEZBE

Ginsengs 98,496 Selling prices at
(2022: 98,161) various grades

HF2 98,496 TRMBHMERE

(Z2==F:
98,161)

Quantity

#

fn

RMB500 - RMB400 (2022: RMB500 -
RMB&00) per unit of wild ginsengs
BENFAMT2ARBO0TEARS
600TL(ZZT =% : ARM500E

ARH6007T)

192,000 (2022: 189,000) wild ginsengs

192,000 FEMTL(ZE==F:
189,00018)

The higher the grade, the higher the
selling price and the fair value

mds EERALEBELS

The greater the quantity of wild
ginsengs, the higher the fair value

HEMNT2HERS - RABEES

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23 225
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T e
Year ended 30 June 2023

BT CEAASHALEFE

O — = —

13. BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued)
Risk management strategy related to biological assets
The Group is exposed to a number of risks related to its wild
ginsengs:
(@) Regulatory and environmental risks
The Group is subject to laws and regulations in the
PRC where it operates. The Group has established
environmental policies and procedures aimed at
compliance with local environmental and other laws.

Climate and other risks

The Group's wild ginsengs are exposed to the risk of
damage from climatic changes, diseases, forest fires and
other natural forces. The Group has extensive processes
in place aimed at monitoring and mitigating those risks,
including regular forest health inspections and industry
pest and disease surveys.

13. £MEE(HE)
EAMEEERNEREERE
AEEEGESERT LN F2ERNE

(a) EEEMRERR
AEBAETHEERENTBAR
RIER - AEED HIERRBR
NAEFr - DA ST E IR E R E MR
(e

(b) RIREEAMRE

AEENHEN T2 EES RIRE
£~ RE - FMNEREMLBEAS
ERENAR - AEBEEHIERE
it e EEELREZEFRAR - 8
EERETHIEREREURITE
RRERE -

14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 14. IEEFREH
The analysis of deferred income tax assets is as follows: BIEFTSREEN DT ¢
2023 2022
—EB=HF e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMFT
Deferred income tax assets BLEFSHEE 5,990 -
The movements in deferred income tax assets during the year, RAFERNBREMEREENZ B
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances TR RIEER — R eDERE R Y A&
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: fR)
Tax loss
BIEEE
RMB’000
AR¥FT
As at 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022 RZBEZ—F+A—HB ZE-_FA=T1H
and 1 July 2022 —EF+HA—H =
Credited to profit or loss FFAEZ 5,990
As at 30 June 2023 R-ZE-_=FA=+H 5,990
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14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 14.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-
forwards to the extant that the recognised of the related tax
benefits through future taxable profits is probable.

Year ended 30 June 2023
BEZZT_=F HA=1tHLFE

Eﬁm SB(&)

R HABBRRRELTHE
BEE  EEAEMBUARTIN AR
ARERBEFRRERR o

Unrecognised deferred tax assets arising from RERIELEREEERA
2023 2022
—E-=F —E-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Deductible temporary differences AR R R 355,036 348,312
Tax losses IEEE 1,383,538 1,679,855
1,738,574 2,028,167

At 30 June 2023, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of unused tax losses of RMB1,383,538,000
(2022: RMB1,679,855,000) and deductible temporary differences
of RMB355,036,000 (2022: RMB348,312,000) mainly relating to
depreciation allowance and impairment loss on non-current
assets and impairment loss on investment in an associate and
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
assets have been recognised in relation to such deductible
differences and tax losses as it is not probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the unused tax losses
and deductible temporary difference can be recognised.

RZZEZ=FA=1+H  XEELX
HEEEIFERBEENERERRES
BUARBEARREREBEABAL
AR SE AR R FBER R B ATIBEEA
[R%:1,383,538,000L( Z T = —% : A
R #1,679,855,0007T ) K& 7] 18 & B =
%8 A R #355,036,0000( ZE ==
AR #348,312,00070 ) ERIELEFIBE
E - BRERRFERERERB A
BEBRAIMBAERZ8E 2 0T
X WIEEJLE&‘:‘HD/W%%EMRIHEE
BRERAELHEEE -
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Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

14. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

The expiry years of tax losses for which no deferred tax assets

14, IEEFRERH(2Z)

R|EMK - RERELEHAEE 2B

have been recognised at the end of the reporting period are BEEERFHOT
as follows:
2023 2022
—E=F —F==
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AE#BTIT
Tax losses without expiry date EIER 2 MIBEE 106,143 106,143
Tax losses expiring in year 2022 R-ZZEZ—FIHBIEEE - 311,646
Tax losses expiring in year 2023 RZZE_=FFHBIAEE 233,790 274,801
Tax losses expiring in year 2024 RZZ-_MFRHZ BIAEE 427,205 462,672
Tax losses expiring in year 2025 RZTZRFEE 2 FIAEE 344,141 355,362
Tax losses expiring in year 2026 RZZEZRNFIHZBIEEE 162,105 169,231
Tax losses expiring in year 2027 RZZ_+FIHZBIAEBE 110,154 =
1,383,538 1,679,855

Dividends derived from the Company’s subsidiaries in the
PRC earned after 1 January 2008 are subject to withholding
tax at the rate of 5%. For each reporting period, the
Group reassessed its needs to make distributions out of its
subsidiaries in the PRC. As at 30 June 2023, no provision for
withholding tax has been made (2022: Nil), as unremitted
earnings of those subsidiaries in the PRC are not expected to
be distributed in the foreseeable future. As at 30 June 2023,
unremitted earnings amounted to RMB218,948,000 (2022:
RMB234,654,000).
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15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

15. €M T AN E

Financial assets

Designated measured at
FVOCI amortised cost Total
BERE
AREEFTA REBHEBEHE
HitimR & W NEmERE et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#HFT ARBFT AR#FT
Financial assets SREE

As at 30 June 2023 R-EBE-=FXA=+H
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk HEAth FEWGRIE - 83,828 83,828
Unlisted equity instruments FELrmERTA 13,381 - 13,381
Restricted cash ZRHRE - 39,841 39,841
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEED - 42,995 42,995
13,381 166,664 180,045

Financial assets EREE

As at 30 June 2022 R-_ZFE-—FA=1+H
Trade and other receivables H 5 K H b UK GRIE = 101,443 101,443
Unlisted equity instruments JELmERTA 12,056 = 12,056
Restricted cash R B3R e - 30,488 30,488
Cash and cash equivalents ReEMREEED - 57,795 57,795
12,056 189,726 201,782
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Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 15 @®@IAESE(E)

(continued)

Financial liabilities
measured at
amortised cost

BB RATTEMN
SRaE
RMB’000
AREFIT
Financial liabilities cRIAE
As at 30 June 2023 R=ZB=-Z=F7-A=+H
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A T RIE 359,706
Borrowings B 40,000
Lease liabilities HEAaE 619
400,325
Financial liabilities TRIAE
As at 30 June 2022 WZZE-——FXA=+H
Trade and other payables B 5 KA At T RIE 354,101
Borrowings N 40,000
394,101
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

16. E5 R H W RIE

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARHF T ARBTFT

Trade receivables B 5 W RIA
— From third parties —ERE=HKIE 80,115 97,838

Prepayments TERTRIE

— Prepayments to third parties —TEaRE=7 2 FE 15,456 24,506
— Tax input credits — value added tax ~ —#BFEE — LB 3,885 2,969
19,341 27,475

Other receivables H th fE W kIR
— Deposits —®e 563 832
— Others —Efb 3,150 2,773
3,713 3,605
103,169 128,918

BREAKEE S M EMBRRIAM AT
MEERRHER SR A G REM

consolidated financial statements. £3.1(b) °

Information about the Group's exposure to credit risks of
trade and other receivables is included in note 3.1(b) to the
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Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 16. EZ REMBWRIRE)
(a) The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other (a) ANEEME S KHMEKFKIARE
receivables are denominated in the following currencies: BEATIIEHEEHE -
2023 2022
—ECZ=F —ZF-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFIL
RMB AR 102,792 128,307
HKD BT 377 611
103,169 128,918
17. INVENTORIES 17. B
2023 2022
—E=F T CF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARFIT
Finished goods BN 164,128 190,973
For the year ended 30 June 2023, the cost of inventories HE_Z-_=FA=THILFE  #
recognised as expense and included in cost of sales amounting RRRAX W AHEN TN FERES
to RMB1,079,811,000 (2022: RMB1,065,963,000) (note 26). AR #1,079,811,000c( —F = =

AERB1,065,963,0007T) (Fi5E26) ©
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18.

19.

RESTRICTED CASH
The balance of the restricted cash was pledged to secure
notes payable as further detailed in note 23(b).

All of the restricted cash was denominated in RMB.
As at 30 June 2023, interest rates on restricted cash, with
maturities within one year, ranging from 1.30% to 1.70% (2022:

1.90% to 2.05%) per annum.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

18. ZMRFIEL
ZREIR S M ERE RN 2B S
R — S BN EE23(b) ©

BEXRHIRSHUAREE -

RZE-_=FA=1+H —FRIF
HSZ PR #1138 & B F I R N F1.30%%
1.70%(ZZF == : 1.90%Z%2.05%) °

19. RERBREEEY

2023 2022

—EC-=F —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF ARETT
Cash on hand EFRE 452 434
Bank balances RITEE R 42,543 57,361
Total st 42,995 57,795

Bank balances earn interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates.

RITRRIRE B IRTTEZR R ZEH

EiHE -

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23 233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

19. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued) 19. RERREEEW(E)
As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the cash and bank balances RIE-_=F/K _FE-_—_F, A=+
were denominated in the following currencies respectively: B R& RBITERD BIAT I E ST
& :
2023 2022
—EC=F —E-_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FT ARBTT
RMB AR 41,614 56,463
HKD I 1,065 1,185
usbD Sy 316 147
Total FEb 42,995 57,795
20. SHARE CAPITAL 20. &
Number of Normal value of
ordinary share ordinary share
TEREE ZEREE
usD
E
Authorised: EE -
Ordinary shares of USD0.01 each RZZE-_—F+A—H"
as at 1 July 2021, 30 June 2022, —E-__FXA=1+H -
1 July 2022 and 30 June 2023 “E-—F+A—BRk
—E=%xXA=+H
BRREE0.01ETTH T AR 1,000,000,000 10,000,000
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20. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Issued and fully paid:

Number of
ordinary shares

20. BRA(4&)
ERTREE

Equivalent

Nominal value of Nominal value

ordinary shares  ordinary shares

Share premium

EERYE EEREE  EEREEEE R EE
usb RMB'000 RMB'000
ET ARETFT ARBEFL
As at 1 July 2021 N_F-—F+A—H 386,313,445 3,863,135 24,833 1,817,387
Issue of subscription shares in RZBZ—F+-ARIR
November 2021, net of expenses BRRG  MBFEX 77,262,689 772,626 4,931 3,468
Issue of subscription shares in RIZZZFRAETRE
June 2022, net of expenses Bfn - MBRRER 92,715,226 927,152 6,179 5315
As at 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RZZZZFXA=+AK
“E--%+A—H 556,291,360 5,562,913 35,943 1,826,170
Issue of subscription shares in RITZ=FNAETRE
April 2023, net of expenses (note) RiH - MBRFEZ (M) 111,258,272 1,112,583 7,644 3,927
As at 30 June 2023 R-B-=%XA=+H 667,549,632 6,675,496 43,587 1,830,097
Note: BaE -

On 4 April 2023, the Company completed the issuance of the subscription shares of the
year. A total of 111,258,272 subscription shares have been issued to four independent
third parties at the subscription price of HKD0.12 per subscription share, for a cash
consideration of HKD13,351,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB11,763,000), before
share issue expenses. The proceeds of approximately HKD8,675,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB7,644,000) representing the par value have been credited to the
Company'’s share capital and the remaining proceeds (net of share issue expenses of
HKD220,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB192,000) of HKD4,456,000 (equivalent to

approximately RMB3,927,000) have been credited to the share premium.

HE7T o AR FRS

RoP-=FMAME . KATE T AEER
m

11,763, 00075)

7,644 0007T ) - FJE*H\$ THX$E’J
1850 (3 B 3 8 7 B 220,000 7T, (18
192,0007T ) 434,456,000 7T (6 & R 4 A

L) B AR R -

RIEEGRREARND0.127
NEZFE /\a’é?ﬂﬂ 258,27 2h% 72 E%H%J‘
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21. RESERVES

(a) Share premium

Share premium represents the excess of the net proceeds
from issuance of the Company’s shares over its nominal
value. Under the law of the Cayman Islands and the
Company'’s Articles of Association, it is distributable to
the Company’s shareholders provided that the Company
is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary

course of business after the distribution.

(b) Capital reserves

Capital reserves includes reserves arising from (i)
deemed capital contribution from (distribution to) the
then controlling shareholder pursuant to the Group's
reorganisation for listing; and (ii) transactions with non-
controlling shareholders in connection with changes in
the Group’s ownership interest in subsidiaries which do

not result in loss of control.

(c) Statutory reserves

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations,
companies are required to appropriate 10% of their
respective net profits to statutory reserve until such
reserve reached 50% of the companies’ registered capital.
The statutory reserve can utilised, upon approval by the
relevant authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to
increase registered capital of the companies, providing
that such reserve is maintained at a minimum of 25% of

the companies’ registered capital.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, all profitable companies
have already had their statutory reserve reached 50%
of their respective registered capital. According to the
relevant PRC laws and regulations, there is no statutory
requirement for these companies to further appropriate

their net profits to statutory reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. RESERVES (continued)

(d)

(e)

Fair value reserve (non-recycling)
The reserve comprises the cumulative net change in
the fair value of Designated FVOCI at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies adopted.

Share-based compensation reserves

Share-based compensation reserves mainly comprise
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options granted to employees of the
Group recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments.

Other reserves

Other reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences
arising from the translation of the financial statements of
foreign operations.

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(a)

Share Option Scheme

The Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was approved for adoption on 18 November
2013 and as amended on 20 December 2018 for the
purpose to attract skilled and experienced personnel,
to incentivize them to remain with the Group and to
motivate them to contribute for the future development
and expansion of the Group by providing them with the
opportunity to acquire equity interests in the Company,
as well as for such other purposes as the Board of
Directors may approve from time to time. The Share
Option Scheme remains in force for a period of 10 years
until 17 November 2023.

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23
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22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

238

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
Board of Directors may, at their absolute discretion, grant
or invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes to take up options to subscribe for shares: the
Directors (including executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors), the directors of subsidiaries
of the Group, the employees, advisers and consultants
of the Group, providers of goods and/or services to
the Group and persons who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group.

In 2020 annual general meeting (the 2020 AGM"), the
resolutions for refreshment of Share Option Scheme
mandate limit (“2020 Scheme Mandate Limit") and the
share consolidation were passed. The refreshed maximum
number of shares that can be allotted and issued upon
the exercise of share options which may be granted by
the Company pursuant to the Share Option Scheme
under the 2020 Scheme Mandate Limit is 38,631,344,
being 10% of the total number of issued shares after the
Share Consolidation as at the date of the 2020 AGM.
Together with the total of 22,470,000 outstanding share
options granted in September 2017 and in March 2019,
the Company will be allowed to allot and issue a maximum
of 61,101,344 Shares (representing approximately 15.82%
of the issued shares as at 30 June 2021).
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30 June 2023

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

(a)

Share Option Scheme (continued)

Besides, the resolutions for approving the shortening and

extension of exercise period for the share options granted
on 12 September 2017 and 4 March 2019 respectively
were also passed in the 2020 AGM.

As at 30 June 2023, unless the 2020 Scheme Mandate Limit
is refreshed, the Company may only grant share options

to subscribe for up to 38,631,344 shares, representing

approximately 5.8% of the number of shares in issue of

the Company, pursuant to the Share Option Scheme.

Details of share options granted by the Company

BE_T_=F A=1+HIFE

22. R NER(E)

(a)

BRESBI(E)

AN - HERERERS IR -F
—tFAATZARE-IF=
AMARLBRETTESNRE
ENR_Z_TFRRBFASE
i e

RZE_=FR"A=1+RH" RE
BRETE ARFRETRER
% R HE38,631,344/% fx 17 & B AR
18 HARFEBEITROEE WL
58% M -_T - TFFERER
BAE FBRIN ©

$Qﬂ$ﬁ<}ﬁﬁ§ﬁ%§£§+§ﬂf’ AR A

pursuant to the Share Option Scheme and the share BER_ZE_=FR_T__FX
option outstanding as at 30 June 2023 and 2022 are as A=+ HERITRABREFIS
follows: N
Number of share options
BRERE
Number of ~ Outstanding Outstanding
share options as at asat  Exercise
Grant date granted  1July 2022  Forfeited  Exercised 30 June 2023 price  Exercisable period
RZBZZF RZBZZF
ERA tA-H AA=TH
Rt B BREHE tef RATBE 2RK =50 tef RATBE EE TEHE
HKD
BT
12 September 2017 20,000,000* 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 1.648* 12 October 2017 to
11 September 2027
—F—tFNATZA % t¢+ﬂ+—ﬁi
“EZEFAAT-A
4 March 2019 30,000,000 2,470,000 - - 2,470,000 0.740* 4 April 2021 to
3 March 2029
—F-NF-ANA :2: FUARAZE
“Z-NF=RA=H
50,000,000% 22,470,000 - - 22,470,000
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22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(a) Share Option Scheme (continued)
Number of share options

22. RSB AE)

(a) BBRESTEI(E

BREHR
Number of  Outstanding Outstanding
share options as at asat  Exercise
Grant date granted 1 July 2021 Forfeited  Exercised 30 June 2022 price  Exercisable period
R=%=-% R=2==%
BRit tA-H RAZTH
RHAM BREHR i RATEE BRK BT I R AT TEE TEHE
HKD
BT

12 September 2017 20,000,000 20,000,000 =

20,000,000 1.648* 12 October 2017 to
11 September 2027

“E—tFEARATZ i =
= ZEHFAAT-R
4 March 2019 30,000,000* 2,470,000 - 2,470,000 0.740* 4 April 2021 to
3 March 2029
—E-NE=AWA TR -FMANAEC
T-NF=R=R
50,000,000* 22,470,000 - 22,470,000
e The weighted average exercise price of the share options and the number * AN_Z_ZEFE+_ATHK G

of share option granted were adjusted following the share consolidation on
10 December 2020.

As at 30 June 2023, the total number of shares in respect
of which options had been granted to its employees and
directors was 50,000,000 (2022: 50,000,000), representing
12.94% (2022:12.94%) of the shares of the Company in
issue at the date of the 2020 AGM.
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22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)
(@) Share Option Scheme (continued)
The following table discloses details of the Company’s
share options under the Share Option Scheme:

22. BBZFER(E)

IR EI(E)
TREBEAD A ERES 27 T8
RRREEENS

2023 2022
—E=E —E--F
Average Number Average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options
per share outstanding per share outstanding
BR i8R AT =3 AT
FHTRE fBRERE FHTEE BREHE
HKD HKD
BT ET
At the beginning and at R E R ER
the end of the reporting
period 1.548 22,470,000 1.548 22,470,000

No share options were exercised during the year (2022:
Nil). All options are vested as at 30 June 2023 and 2022.

The options outstanding at 30 June 2023 had a weighted
average remaining contractual life of 4.37 (2022: 5.37)
years. At the end of the reporting period, the number
of exercisable options was 22,470,000 (2022: 22,470,000)
with a weighted average exercise price of HKD1.548
(2022: HKD1.548).

EAZIKEthM%H%@%ﬁTE(:;E
ZZFE) cRIE=F R
T _FRA= +E| Fi A B R i
xrmg"

—E=F,A=+H" ﬁ*f’ﬂi
ZEREFGMET AT
7%437¢(_-\,__$ 5.374F) °
IR & HR ‘m@ﬂ%ﬁx%%{a
#322,470,0000( — T = = £ :
22,470,00017 ) + hn#EFEHITEE
AB1548B (=T = ZF : 1.548
BIT) °
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22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (continued)

242

(b) Share Award Plan

The Company adopted the share award plan (the “Share
Award Plan”) on 23 April 2014. The purposes of the
Share Award Plan are to recognise the contributions by
eligible persons to the Group and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for continual operation
and development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group. The
Share Award Plan, unless early terminated, will remain
in force for 10 years until 22 April 2024.

Under the plan, the Company has appointed a trust
in Hong Kong for administration of the Share Award
Plan. The principal activity of the trust is administrating
and holding the Company'’s shares for the Share Award
Plan for the benefit of the Company’s eligible persons.
Pursuant to the Share Award Plan, the Company’s shares
will be purchased by the trust in the market out of cash
contributed by the Company and held in the trust for the
Company until such shares are awarded and vested in the
relevant beneficiary in accordance with the provisions of
the Share Award Plan.

As the Company has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies of the trust and can derive
benefits from the contributions of the employees who
have been awarded the shares of the Company through
their continued employment with the Group, the Group
controls and thus consolidates the trust.

During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, no shares
were awarded under the Share Award Plan. As at 30 June
2023 and 2022, no shares were held by the trust for the
purpose of the Share Award Plan.
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23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23. EZ R EMENKIEA

2023 2022
—EC-=F —E-CF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Mt ARHF T AR®TFT

Trade payables B RENFIA
— To third parties —ERE=F%E (a) 306,436 313,928
Notes payables ARESE (b) 45,750 29,583
Other payables HAh R FRIA (c) 31,331 46,855
77,081 76,438
383,517 390,366

(@) The credit period of trade payables is normally within
90 (2022: 90) days. Details of ageing analysis based on
recognition date of trade payables are as follows:

(a)

o EMZRENEER KA
B(ZZEZ-_-%F:90H)  ERE
SN FUAER B HMERER DT

T
2023 2022
—EC-=H —E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AR®TFT
Up to 3 months 38 B LAR 212,621 288,388
4 to 6 months 45 6(E B 87,736 20,148
7 to 12 months 7& 1218 A 6,079 5,392
306,436 313,928
AREEEREEERERAR FEHRE2022/23 243
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Year ended 30 June 2023
 ECE_ZFANAZTHILEFE

23. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(b) The credit period of notes payables is normally within
90-180 (2022: 180) days. As at 30 June 2023, the notes
payables of RMB37,185,000 (2022: RMB29,583,000) was
secured by restricted cash of RMB39,841,000 (2022:
RMB30,488,000) (note 18) and the remaining balance of
RMBS8,565,000 (2022: Nil) was secured by the buildings
with carrying amount of RMB27,337,000 (2022: Nil) (note
7). As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, the notes payables is
expected to be settled within one year.

(c) Details of other payables are as follows:

23. ESRHMBENRE(E)

(b)

ENEENEEH MK ANAEE
180A(=ZZFE=-=—F :180H) - ©
—TE-=FXA=1H ' AER%
37,185000L( —ZE - —F: AR
#29,583,0007T ) Y & < 2= & A
SR # 3R £ A R #39,841,0007C
(=== =% : AR¥30,488,000
L) EHR (KM 218 R AR ¥
8,565,000 ( - T - —F &)Y
£ %8 A BR B A R #27,337,0007C
(ZZEZ=F : E)NEFERE
(fisF7) R-B-_=FEKR-_ZT—
—FXA=Z1H EAZEEEHR
—FRNGEE -

His BB BAT

2023 2022

—EC-=F -
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT AEEFT
Salaries and welfare payable FERT 5 & R AE A 23,811 36,265

Sales commissions and HEME REHMAX

marketing expenses 782 562
Interest payables 2,098 898
Other taxes 1,304 1,304
Others 3,336 7,826
31,331 46,855

(d) The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other
payables are denominated in the following currencies:

(d)

REBWE 5 R E MR FIRRE
EATNIIEREHE

2023 2022

—Egq2-= —=E-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFT
RMB 382,143 388,572
HKD 1,374 1,794
Total 383,517 390,366

244 Universal Health International Group Holding Limited

Annual Report 2022/23



24. BORROWINGS

It represented loan advanced from an associate. The amount

25.

due is unsecured, carried an interest rate of 3% per annum

and wholly repayable on 30 September 2024.

24. &K
HIEME AR NNER - ZENKIE
REER  FHEEIBRENR_ZT=
MENA=THBHEE -

OTHER INCOME, (LOSSES) GAINS — NET 25. sl A ~ (B518) s — 58
2023 2022
—E-=E —ET-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#EFTT AREFIT
Other income Hibugr A
Consultancy service income RIS U A 2,844 5,976
Dividend income from equity HBEREA R BEFARMES
instruments designated as at FVOCI W r s T AR AR EIA - 807
Others Eith 87 487
Total 4Bt 2,931 7,270
Other (losses) gains — net Hit(&518) e — 58
(Loss) Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEKIB A A (EE) WS (1,932) 1,794
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries  FE 4] B A FE1E (1 (2,010)
Gain on disposals of property, plant HEME - BERZHKE
and equipment - 2,004
Others EAth (53) =
Total st (1,986) 1,788
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BHZE

26.

246

TE=EXRNAZTHIEFEE

EXPENSES BY NATURE

26. BUEEE DB

2023 2022

—E=-= —E-CF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBMHF T AEEFT

Costs of inventories sold (note 17) EEFERAN(MFE17) 1,079,811 1,065,963

Employee benefit expenses (note 27) B BR@AIR (Ma227) 183,829 245,533
Lease payments on short-term leases %I & 2 M EFHIE (M 778)

(note 8) 51,761 65,237
Transportation and related charges B MAEAE A 34,887 29,931
Depreciation of property, plant and M - BERRBINE(HE7)

equipment (note 7) 15,769 18,540
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (M)

(note 8) 466 7,515
Impairment loss on investment in an B AR ERERE(ME1)

associate (note 11) 10,433 21,988
Other tax expenses HAb R 2 6,149 5,620
Office and communication expenses NS R 4,760 3,108
Auditor's remuneration 2 25 B 5 BN 2,308 2,138
Electricity and other utility fees BENHMARZEE 2,024 1,839
Professional fees BXEM 1,510 1,270
Advertising and other marketing s R EH & SH R X

expenses 1,360 2,661
Travelling and meeting expenses ERRGHMAX 551 280
Other expenses Hibfx 1,122 126

1,396,740 1,471,749
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27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

27. RERAMX

2023 2022

—EC=HF —E-

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARMFT

Salaries and wages HehkIE 132,240 177,245
Contributions to pension plans RINSET B 49,474 63,469
Other benefits EhigH) 2,115 4,819
183,829 245,533

(a) Five highest paid individuals
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include four (2022: four) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented
in note 35. The emoluments payable to the remaining
one (2022: one) individual during the year are as follows

(a) EEEBEHFAL

RAFERNAEBREZHERIHAL
BREOZ(ZE__F:OK)E
= HHEMF BRI E35F5
2o REREENB T —R(Z
T F —B)ATHEBMET:

2023 2022

—E-=F —E-CF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFTT ARBF T

Salaries and wages HFekI& 430 425
Contributions to pension plans RINEEH B 5 5
435 430
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BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

27. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (continued) 27. BREBARX (&)
(a) Five highest paid individuals (continued) (a) BEBEFAT(E)
The emoluments were paid to the one (2022: one) highest IMF—R(ZE-—F —F)&
paid individual as follows: RFATHEFMBMAT
2023 2022
—E=F B
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
AE A
Nil to HKD1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 1 1
For the year ended 30 June 2023, neither the directors nor HE_ZT_=F"A=1+THILF
the five highest paid individuals received any emolument B EEElitRarALTE
from the Group as an inducement to join, upon joining AREBUWEUL BN € E A I AAE
or leaving the Group, or as compensation for loss of AR EE B SBERAEE
office (2022: Nil). FEB S EABBmE( T ——
FoE)o
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28. FINANCE INCOME - NET

29.

28. BAFWA — FER

2023 2022
—EB-=F —EF-—
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARETT
Finance income WA
Exchange gains — net b 5 2 — 5 AR 7,863 1,578
Interest income B A 925 2,064
8,788 3,642
Finance costs g3 5%
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBEFE (70) (276)
Interest on borrowings BRAE (1,200) (898)
Other charges Hih & (240) (146)
(1,510) (1,320)
Finance income — net B U A — 258 7,278 2,322
INCOME TAX CREDIT 29. RSB %
2023 2022
—EC-=F —EC-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFr
Deferred income tax (note 14) TSI (MI5E14) (5,990) -
Total income tax credit SRR eRsE (5,990) =
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Year ended 30 June 2023

BHZE

TE=EXRNAZTHIEFEE

29. INCOME TAX CREDIT (continued) 29. FiiSBiER (&)
The difference between the actual taxation charge in profit or BaRNERTIIEE R SR ST ATE
loss and the amounts which would result from applying the BRERAEHEAERIENZZHERN
enacted tax rate to loss before income tax can be reconciled ™~
as follows:
2023 2022
—E-= T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Loss before income tax MrATSFLRTE 18 (112,105) (188,013)
Tax calculated at PRC statutory tax BHRBUEER R 25% T E /I THIA
rate of 25% (2022: 25%) (ZZTE=——4%F :25%) (28,026) (47,003)
Tax effects of: AR EIENMBZE
- Expenses not deductible for tax — A HIBR X
purpose 246 1,170
— Income not subject to tax —HEMTEBA (820) (905)
— Tax losses for which no deferred —RERBELEFFEHEENT
income tax asset was recognised TE &8 27,714 42,315
— Utilisation of tax losses previously — MR LRI AR ERNBIERE
not recognised (5,873) (920)
— Recognition of previously —ERE AR ERNEL
unrecognised deferred tax assets FieHi&E (5,990) -
— Effect of different applicable tax —HTHB AR TREARE
rates for certain subsidiaries Eof2= 107 241
— Results of an associate —HE N AR ERA 5,240 406
- Unrecognised temporary — RERNE R ERE
differences 1,412 4,696
Income tax credit FREHiK % (5,990) -

250

Hong Kong profits tax has not been provided as there were

no assessable profits subject to Hong Kong profits tax for
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022. The subsidiaries of
the Group in the PRC are subject to corporate income tax at
a rate of 25% (2022: 25%) on its taxable income or deemed
profit method as determined in accordance with the relevant

PRC income tax rules and regulations.
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30. LOSS PER SHARE

(a)

Basic

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss for
the year attributable to owners of the Company by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

30 June 2023
BE_T_=FAA=THLFE

30. BRER

(a)

%N
BRENEBERTIRARBER AR
HFEEBERAFEEETERK
IEEFHHEE -

2023 2022
—E-=HF —E-F
Loss attributable to owners of the RARHEE ANEGEE
Company (in RMB’000) (AE#FT) (105,397) (187,647)
Weighted average number of ordinary B 277 A% hE F IR 2K
shares in issue (in thousands) (FAR) 583,115 439,825
Basic loss per share (RMB cents) BREXABFB(ARED) (18.07) (42.66)

The number of shares for the purpose of calculating
basic loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022 have been adjusted to reflect the subscription
shares issued during the year.

Details of which have been set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Diluted
Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

As the effect of the assumed conversion of the potential
ordinary shares from exercising the Company’s share
options is anti-dilutive, the basic loss per share is equal
to diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June
2023 and 2022.

ABREEBREEEZERERAT FTERE2022/23
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
2R =F A= THIEFE

31. DIVIDENDS 31. RE
The Board does not recommend the payment of any dividend EEQUWITEBRNAFE 2 EMIAKRE
in respect of the Year (2022: Nil). (ZF=—=—F  &|) -
32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION 2. HWREREBER
(@) Reconciliation of loss before income tax to cash used in (a) BRETISHAIEEELLEMAREZ
operations: R -
2023 2022
—ZE=-= - F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T AREFIT
Loss for the year FEEE (106,115) (188,013)
Adjustments for: R
— Income tax credit (note 29) — e G (K1at29) (5,990) -
— Dividend income from equity —EERED A BE AL
instruments designated as at Sl R TRMR WA
FVOCI (note 25) (K1a£25) - (807)
— Depreciation of property, plant and  —#1% « BE MEETE(H27)
equipment (note 7) 15,769 18,540
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —{£REEEE (H1:78)
(note 8) 466 7,515
— Gain on disposals of property, plant —HEWE - BE &&ERE
and equipment (note 25) (#iaE25) - (2,004)
— Loss on deregistration of — TSP N BB R (A A7 25)
subsidiaries (note 25) 1 2,010
- Loss (Gain) on disposal of —HEWNBAREE(WKE)
subsidiaries (note 25) (#17E25) 1,932 (1,794)
— Impairment loss on investment in an —Et& R RIRERERIE (ML)
associate (note 11) 10,433 21,988
— Change in fair value of biological —EYEERARBEER(MF13)
assets (note 13) (335) (409)
— Finance income — net —MBIA — R 585 (744)
- Share of post-tax results of an —DEHE R BRI A
associate (note 11) (B1aF11) 20,959 1,625
— Effect on foreign exchange rate —INEERFE B
changes (1,002) (1,574)
(63,297) (143,667)
Changes in working capital: LEELE
— Inventories —F8 26,845 72,620
— Trade and other receivables —B 5 REMEWFIA 21,872 5,346
— Trade and other payables — B REMERNKIE (6,436) 23,117
Cash used in operations KEFTAR S (21,016) (42,584)
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32. OTHER CASH FLOW INFORMATION (continued)

(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

2. HREREER (&

(b)

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash

and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing

activities are those for which cash flows were, or future

cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated

cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

BERDELNABYER
TRFINAKEREETDHELN

B MERHELENBER/E XK
RASBEHRASRERDERR
BRPELHSRECHENENR
ARIBRERENAE -

Lease liabilities Borrowings Total
HEAE LEEN e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE#HF T ARBTF T ARBTF T
(note 8) (note 24)
(Kt5t8) (Kiz#24)
As at 1 July 2021 RZZE-_—F+A—H 3,930 - 3,930
Cash flows: BREemeE
Repayment of lease liabilities {EEHEAE (3,930) = (3,930
Inception of borrowings FIEME R - 40,000 40,000
(3,930) 40,000 36,070
As at 30 June 2022 and 1 July RZZTZZFXA=+H
2022 ;r—E-—F+A—H - 40,000 40,000
Cash flows: BEmneE
Repayment of lease liabilities (EEHEAE (301) = (301)
Other non-cash changes: Hib3ER S #8) -
New lease HE 920 S 920
As at 30 June 2023 R-ZBEZ=FxA=1H 619 40,000 40,619
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

33. COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure commitments

The Group had no significant capital commitment as at 30

June 2023 and 2022.

34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The transactions with related parties are carried out on
pricing and settlement terms agreed with counterparties in

the ordinary course of business.

(a) Transactions with related parties

33. &iE
B ARIE
REBR - E-=F K _F-—F,XA
=+ B ET(AEKREAEE -

4. BHAR S

BRI R P I — R EFBE P IR E
F I E R EE MAERIRTETT ©

(a) EABEARZ

2023 2022
—E-=HF —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBTFT
Director of the Company: RAAES :
— Lease payments on short-term leases — 2Bt E < HE KA 500 500
An associate of the Company: ZA/NS]): /N
— Interest expenses —HFERX 1,200 898

254

None of these related party transactions constitutes
a connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction which are required to be disclosed in this
annual report in compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
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34. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) M. EBIRS (&)

(b) Key management compensation (b) TEEEASHMH
Key management includes directors (executive and non- ITEERABBRESE(NTES
executive), members of the Executive Committee, the MIERMITEES) BITEE @K
Company Secretary and the Head of Internal Audit. The 8 RAIWERABETEE B
compensation paid or payable to key management for EERBENIENEEZEETREAR
employee services is shown below: FEanT
2023 2022
—E=F —F=-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF T AE®TFT

Salaries and other short-term employee #& Rk E b2 #E B &R

benefits 3,086 3,480
Post-employment benefits BEERIZ RN 21 30
3,107 3,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023

.-

=FRA=THILFE

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments

256

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive

is set out below:

For the year ended 30 June 2023
Emoluments paid or payable to a person in respect of

services as a director, whether of the Company or its

subsidiary undertaking:

35. EEREA R ERE

(a) EER&ZSTHAEZHMN
BEZRESITHRABR ZHMED
LN

BE-—E_=—FANA=1HIEE
MIERES(BERARTIHENB
RNAa) 2RI HEN TRALT
ZEB

Employer's
contribution
to retirement

Salaries and Discretionary ~ Share-based benefit
Fees allowances bonuses  payments scheme Total
ExaHne
Name #H BE HERIE  BERA ROXGER AR @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARBTR AREFT ARETT ARETT AREFR
Executive Directors HiEE
Mr. Jin Dongtao (Note (a)) SRERE (W) 59 329 - - 3 391
Mr. Jin Dongkun SREEHE 101 411 - - 5 517
Mr. Chu Chuanfu (Note (a)) MIERE W) 107 an - - - 518
Mr. Zhao Zehua BEERA 235 247 - - - 482
Independent non-executive BikHTES
directors
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie IRERT 160 - - - - 160
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BEREE 160 - - - = 160
Mr. Zou Haiyan FEREE 160 S S S S 160
982 1,398 - - 8 2,388
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35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 35 BE={FEARER(E)

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive's emoluments (continued) (a) EERBRSTHRABZEHMNE)
For the year ended 30 June 2022 B EC—FNA=THIFFE
Emoluments paid or payable to a person in respect of HIEREZ(BRALBIHEN B
services as a director, whether of the Company or its NEZRE NS EMFTZAL
subsidiary undertaking: ZE

Employer's

contribution

to retirement

Salaries and  Discretionary ~ Share-based benefit
Fees  allowances bonuses  payments scheme Total

EFRKE5T
Name % we HeRIA B RihxHER 2t @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT  ARETT AREFT ARBFTT AREFT ARETR

Executive Directors HITEE

Mr. Jin Dongtao SRBEE 9% 658 - - 5 759
Mr. Jin Dongkun EREAHE % 411 = = 5 512
Mr. Chu Chuanfu MExE 3 377 = = = 470
Mr. Zhao Zehua HEELE 23 247 - - S 40
Mr. Sun Libo Rugxs 8 = = = S 8

Independent non-executive BUFHTES

directors
Ms. Chiang Su Hui Susie P+ 152 = = = = 152
Mr. Cheng Sheung Hing BEREE 152 - - - - 152
Mr. Zou Haiyan PEREE 152 - - - = 152
972 1,693 - - 10 2,675
Note: Bt :
(@) Mr. Jin Dongtao resigned as the chairman of the Board of Directors and as (@) SRBEEN-_Z-_—_F+-_A+_-HAF
executive director of the Company on 12 December 2022. Mr. Chu Chuanfu ERAREETGERRATES - YIE
was appointed as the chairman of the Company on 12 December 2022. EERZZ__F+-_A+-HEZEAR

RRBER °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

35. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (continued)
During the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to any of these
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group, or as a compensation for loss of office.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any remuneration during the years

ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

(b) Directors’ material interestsintransactions, arrangements

or contracts

Saved as disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group's business to which
the Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time

during the year (2022: Nil).
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(a)

Year ended 30 June 2023
BEZZT_=F HA=1tHLFE

36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36. A AR EEEERRFHEESHE
THE COMPANY e
Balance sheet of the Company (@) AXRAEEREBER
2023 2022
—E-=F —E -
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HaE AR¥F T AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries REBERRZIRE 3,533 3,533
Loans to subsidiaries ERTHBLAF 42,008 58,859
Equity instruments designated BERRARBEFAL
as at fair value through other iR W ame R T A
comprehensive income 12 13,381 12,056
Total non-current assets FRBEELEE 58,922 74,448
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H U kIR 247,378 332,039
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 1,035 1,157
Total current assets B EEMAE 248,413 333,196
Total assets BEEAEE 307,335 407 644
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EnkaE
Equity attributable to owners of the  Z&AB#EHE AFEIGHEZ
Company
Share capital [N 20 43,587 35,943
Reserves R 36(b) 1,196,304 1,192,007
Accumulated losses REHEE 36(b) (937,116) (833,079)
Total equity DB 302,775 394,871
LIABILITIES =N
Current liabilities REIAE
Other payables H b FE (T 5RIA 4,560 12,773
Total liabilities EE8a 4,560 12,773
Total equity and liabilities EnRkAEAE 307,335 407,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36. X AFEEEBREBHEETE

THE COMPANY (continued) ()
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued) (a) XATREEAEBR(E)
These balance sheet of the Company was approved and ARRZHEEERRROAESTE
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 RZBZ=FNA-+tRHLER
September 2023 and signed on its behalf by RENNELHANATEERBESR
Chu Chuanfu Zhao Zehua
AIE HEE
Director Director
EF EF
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36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36. A ARIEEEBREBEESDE

THE COMPANY (continued) (&
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (b) RATREEEER
Reserves
fife
Fair value
Share-based reserve
Share  compensation (non- Other Accumulated
premium reserves  recycling) reserves Sub-total losses Total
AEBERE . " R
ROGE RAHHEE (FUER)  EtEG Nt RitEE @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT ARETT  ARETT AREFT  ARETT ARETI
(note)
(i)
Balance at 1 July 2021 A\ZE--F+A-AMER 1,817,387 13513 (14931)  (635,244) 1,180,725 (631,549) 549,176
Loss for the year EREE - = = = - (2015300 (201,530)
Fair value changes in equity instruments 82 B A% BE AL
designated as fair value through FalRnER IR,
other comprehensive income NMEEES - - 2499 - 2,49 - 249
Total comprehensive loss RABRER - - 2499 - 2499 (201530)  (199,031)
Transaction with owners in their capacity EEAANEIEBRBAZ
as owners R
Issue of subscription shares in November W= =—5+—A%&{17%
2021, net of expenses (note 20) R MBE (W) 3,468 - - - 3,468 = 3,468
Issue of subscription shares in June KRB ZERAERTAE
2022, net of expenses (note 20) ety - RER (Hi20) 5,315 - - - 5,315 5 5,315
Total transaction with owners intheir ~ EBBAMEEAEAAZ
capacity as owners 5% 548 8,783 S S S 8,783 = 8783
Balance at 30 June 2022 RZB==FxA=1AH
g 1,826,170 13513 (12432)  (635,244) 1,192,007 (833,079) 358,928
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BOTI B RRMEE

Year ended 30 June 2023
BE_ZT-_=FA=1+THLEFE

36. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF 36. X AFEEEBREBHEETE
THE COMPANY (continued) m(E)
(b) Reserve movement of the Company (continued) (b) ARQBEBEEEER(EZ)

Reserves

L

Fair value
Share-based reserve
Share  compensation (non- Other Accumulated
premium reserves  recycling)  reserves  Sub-total losses Total

HEERRE
RiEE ROFHEE (FUER)  HpES Mt EHER it

RMB000 RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBO0D
ARRTL  ARETT ARETL ARETL ARRTL  ARRTL  ARETR

(note)
(i)
Balance at 1 July 2022 RZE--ELA-BiEH 1,826,170 13513 (12,432) (635,244) 1,192,007 (833,079) 358,928
Loss for the year EREE - S S S - (104037)  (104,037)
Fair value changes in equity instruments £ BZA2 BEFALM
designated as fair value through FRlENERTAY
other comprehensive income MEEED - 370 - 370 5 370
Total comprehensive income (loss) BAkE(ERAE - - 370 - 370 (104,037)  (103,667)
Transaction with owners in their EEEAMRERREALZ
capacity as owners %%
Issue of subscription shares in Apri R-E-=EMARARE
2023, net of expenses (note 20) R’ RERHE2) 3927 _ - - 3927 - 3927
Total transaction with owners in their ~ HEAA (NHEBEEAZ
capacity as owners ah)%54E 3927 - - - 3927 S 3927
Balance at 30 June 2023 RZBZZERR=TAN
3] 1,830,097 13513 (12,062) (635,244) 1,196,304 (937,116) 259,188
Note: Other reserves represent the deemed distribution upon the Group's Hiat - EthEBEASE FMEEERADE

reorganisation for listing.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBEREE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non- TX&EHIAEENBEAFEGTBREERFEE
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, MNMNREE - BENFEEREZME - itk
as extracted from the published audited financial statements, is BB TIE&EZIBHRE ©

set out below.

RESULTS E S

For the year ended 30 June
BEAAZTHLERE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-cE —E--F —E--F - 34 “E-NE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBEFR ARBTT ARETT ABEBTT NERTT

Revenue W 1,297,036 1,273,572 1,185,168 1,510,126 2,424,416
Gross profit E7H 213,846 204,162 156,904 188,500 326,807
Loss before income tax BREEREER (112,105) (188,013) (670,804) (492,22¢) (263,866)
Income tax credit (expenses) FERES (B 5,990 - (5,203) (1,245) (3,237)
Loss for the year FEBE (106,115) (188,013) (676,007) (493,471) (267,103
Loss attributable to: THEAERER:
— Owners of the Company ~RAFHEEA (105,397) (187,647) (675,396) (491,405) (265,629
- Non-controlling interests — IR ER (718) (366) 611) (2,066) (1,474)
(106,115) (188,013) (676,007) (493,471) (267,103)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBERRE

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

BE  SERFERERS

As at 30 June
WRA=TH
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—E-zF - a3 —Eo-F - 3 “E-NE
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT AREFIL ARETFT AEETT ARETT
Total assets EENE 738,864 839,076 957,841 1,495,102 2,003,340
Total liabilities BREEE (424,136) (430,366) (381,924) (249,748) (269,547)
Non-controlling interests FERER - (579) (945) (1,556) (3,622)
Equity attributable to owners of RATHEE AEEER
the Company 314,728 408,131 574,972 1,243,798 1,730,171
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